PROJECT MANUAL

FOR

RFP 2020-04

TRENTON RD AT PROFESSIONAL DR SIGNAL CONSTRUCTION

FOR





2020

Page Intentionally Blank

CITY OF EDINBURG TITLE SHEET

Document 00001

TITLE SHEET

PROJECT MANUAL FOR CITY OF EDINBURG TRENTON RD AT PROFESSIONAL DR SIGNAL CONSTRUCTION

FOR

EDINBURG, TEXAS

PREPARED BY

TEDSI INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP, INC 1201 E. INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 2 MISSION TX 78572 PH 956-424-7898



AUTHORIZED 2019-12-31

END OF DOCUMENT



CITY OF EDINBURG TITLE SHEET

Page Intentionally Blank



Document 00003

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Document</u>	<u>Title</u>	No. of <u>Pages</u>
	INTRODUCTORY INFORMATION	
00001	Title Sheet	2
00003	Table of Contents	
00004	List of Drawings	
00010	Request For Proposals	
00020	Notice to Bidders	
00100	Instruction to Bidders	
	BIDDING REQUIREMENTS	
BID FORMS		
00300	Intent to Respond	2
00310	Form of Proposal	4
SUPPLEME	NTS TO BID FORMS	
00405	Schedule of Unit Price Work	3
00411	Bid Bond	
00420	Statement of Bidders Qualifications.	
00423	Certificate of Bidder's Experience & Qualifications	
00425	Equipment & Material Suppliers List	
00429	Non-Bribery Model Form	
POST-BID F	PROCEDURES	
00450	Post Bid Procedures	2
00460	Noncollusion Affidavit	2
CONTRACT		
00500	Agreement	10
00510	Notice of Award	3
00550	Notice to Proceed	2
00610	Performance Bond	4
00620	Payment Bond	4
00625	Affidavit of Insurance	2
00630	Forms of Business	
00631	Resolution of Corporation	
00632	Contractor's Resolution on Authorized Representative	2
00635	Contractor's Act of Assurance	2
00640	Certification Regarding Department Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters	
	Conflict of Interest Disclosure	2
OFNED AT	CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT	
GENERAL	Consequence Constitutions	70
00700	General Conditions	/8
	NTARY CONDITIONS	4.0
00800	Supplementary Conditions	13

7	00811 00830	Wage Rates
(DENDA 00900 00910	Addenda (For filing)
((For filing)	Documents listed "for filing" are to be provided by the Bidder and are not included in this Project Manual unless indicated for example only. The Document numbers and titles hold places for actual documents to be submitted by the Contractor during the bid, post-bid, or construction phase of the Project.
SPE	CIFICATI	ONS 5
		STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS SPECIAL PROVISIONS CITY OF EDINBURG CONSTRUCTION SIGN

I. STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT)
Standard Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of Highways, Streets, and Bridges
November 1, 2014
Except as noted below

ITEMS	S 1–9	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS AND COVENANTS
Item	1	Abbreviations and Definitions
	2-4	<u>OMITTED</u>
	5	Control of the Work
	6	Control of Materials
	7	Legal Relations and Responsibilities
	8	Prosecution and Progress
	9	Measurement and Payment
100 IT	ГЕМЅ	EARTHWORK AND LANDSCAPE
Item	100	Preparing Right of Way
	103	Disposal of Wells
	104	Removing Concrete
	105	Removing Treated and Untreated Base and Asphalt Pavement
	106	Obliterating Abandoned Road
	110	Excavation
	112	Subgrade Widening
	132	Embankment
	134	Backfilling Pavement Edges
	150	Blading
	152	Road Grader Work
	154	Scraper Work
	156	Bulldozer Work
	158	Specialized Excavation Work
	160	Topsoil Topsoil
	161	Compost



	162 164 166 168 169 170 180 192 193	Sodding for Erosion Control Seeding for Erosion Control Fertilizer Vegetative Watering Soil Retention Blankets Irrigation System Wildflower Seeding Landscape Planting Landscape Establishment
200 IT	EMS	SUBGRADE TREATMENTS AND BASE
Item	204	Sprinkling
пст	210	Rolling
	216	Proof Rolling
	247	Flexible Base
	251	Reworking Base Courses
	260	Lime Treatment (Road-Mixed)
	263	Lime Treatment (Plant-Mixed)
	265	Fly Ash or Lime-Fly Ash Treatment (Road-Mixed)
	275	Cement Treatment (Road-Mixed)
	276	Cement Treatment (Plant-Mixed)
	292	Asphalt Treatment (Plant-Mixed)
300 IT	EMS	SURFACE COURSES AND PAVEMENTS
Item	300	Asphalts, Oils, and Emulsions
	301	Asphalt Antistripping Agents
	302	Aggregates for Surface Treatments
	305	Salvaging, Hauling, and Stockpiling Reclaimable Asphalt Pavement
	310	Prime Coat
	314	Emulsified Asphalt Treatment
	315	Fog Seal
	316	Seal Coat
	320	Equipment for Asphalt Concrete Pavement
	330	Limestone Rock Asphalt Pavement
	334	Hot-Mix Cold-Laid Asphalt Concrete Pavement
	340	Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt (Small Quantity)
	341	Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt
	342	Permeable Friction Course
	344	Superpave Mixtures
	346	Stone-Matrix Asphalt
	347	Thin Overlay Mixtures
	348	Thin Bonded Friction Courses
	350	Microsurfacing
	351	Flexible Pavement Structure Repair
	354	Planing and Texturing Pavement
	356	Fabric Underseal
	358	Hot In-Place Recycling of Asphalt Concrete Surfaces
	360	Concrete Pavement
	361	Repair of Concrete Pavement



400 ITEMS	STRUCTURES
Item 400	Excavation and Backfill for Structures
401	Flowable Backfill
402	Trench Excavation Protection
403	Temporary Special Shoring
404	Driving Piling
405	Foundation Load Test
406	Timber Piling
407	Steel Piling
409	Prestressed Concrete Piling
410	Soil Nail Anchors
411	Rock Nail Anchors
416	Drilled Shaft Foundations
420	Concrete Substructures
421	Hydraulic Cement Concrete
422	Concrete Superstructures
423	Retaining Walls
424	Precast Concrete Structural Members (Fabrication)
425	Precast Prestressed Concrete Structural Members
426	Post-Tensioning
427	Surface Finishes for Concrete
428	Penetrating Concrete Surface Treatment
429	Concrete Structure Repair
431	Pneumatically Placed Concrete
432	Riprap
434	Bridge Bearings
438	Cleaning and Sealing Joints
439	Bridge Deck Overlays
440	Reinforcement for Concrete
441	Steel Structures
442	Metal for Structures
445	Galvanizing
446	Field Cleaning and Painting Steel
447	Structural Bolting
448	Structural Field Welding
449	Anchor Bolts
450	Railing
451	Retrofit Railing
454	Bridge Expansion Joints
458	Waterproofing Membranes for Structures
459	Gabions and Gabion Mattresses
460	Corrugated Metal Pipe
461	Structural Plate Structures
462	Concrete Box Culverts and Drains
464	Reinforced Concrete Pipe
465	Junction Boxes, Manholes, and Inlets
466	Headwalls and Wingwalls
467 471	Safety End Treatment
471 472	Frames, Grates, Rings, and Covers
472 474	Removing and Re-Laying Culvert
474	Linear Drains

	476	Jacking, Boring, or Tunneling Pipe or Box
	479	Adjusting Manholes and Inlets
	480	Cleaning Existing Culverts
	481	Pipe for Drains
	483	Concrete Bridge Deck Surfacing
	490	Timber Structures
	491	Timber for Structures
	492	Timber Preservative and Treatment
	495	Raising Existing Structures
	496	Removing Structures
	497	Sale of Salvageable Material
	499	Adjusting Steel Shoes
500 IT	EMS	MISCELLANEOUS CONSTRUCTION
Item	500	Mobilization
	502	Barricades, Signs, and Traffic Handling
	504	Field Office and Laboratory
	506	Temporary Erosion, Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls
	508	Constructing Detours
	510	One-Way Traffic Control
	512	Portable Traffic Barrier
	514	Permanent Concrete Traffic Barrier
	520	Weighing and Measuring Equipment
	528	Colored Textured Concrete and Landscape Pavers
	529	Concrete Curb, Gutter, and Combined Curb and Gutter
	530	Intersections, Driveways, and Turnouts
	531	Sidewalks
	533	Milled Rumble Strips
	536	Concrete Medians and Directional Islands
	538	Right of Way Markers
	540	Metal Beam Guard Fence
	542	Removing Metal Beam Guard Fence
	543	Cable Barrier System
	544	Guardrail End Treatments
	545	Crash Cushion Attenuators
	550	Chain Link Fence
	552	Wire Fence
	556	Pipe Underdrains
	560	Mailbox Assemblies
	585	Ride Quality for Pavement Surfaces
600 IT	EMS	LIGHTING, SIGNING, MARKINGS, AND SIGNALS
Item	610	Roadway Illumination Assemblies
	613	High Mast Illumination Poles
	614	High Mast Illumination Assemblies
	616	Performance Testing of Lighting Systems
	617	Temporary Roadway Illumination
	618	Conduit
	620	Electrical Conductors
	621	Tray Cable
		J. Company of the com



622	Duct Cable
624	Ground Boxes
625	Zinc-Coated Steel Wire Strand
627	Treated Timber Poles
628	Electrical Services
636	Signs
643	Sign Identification Decals
644	Small Roadside Sign Assemblies
647	Large Roadside Sign Supports and Assemblies
650	Overhead Sign Supports
654	Sign Walkways
656	Foundations for Traffic Control Devices
658	Delineator and Object Marker Assemblies
662	Work Zone Pavement Markings
666	Retroreflectorized Pavement Markings
668	Prefabricated Pavement Markings
672	Raised Pavement Markers
677	Eliminating Existing Pavement Markings and Markers
678	Pavement Surface Preparation for Markings
680	Highway Traffic Signals
681	Temporary Traffic Signals
682	Vehicle and Pedestrian Signal Heads
684	Traffic Signal Cables
685	Roadside Flashing Beacon Assemblies
686	Traffic Signal Pole Assemblies (Steel)
687	Pedestal Pole Assemblies
688	Pedestrian Detectors and Vehicle Loop Detectors
690	Maintenance of Traffic Signals
	· ·

700 ITEMS		MAINTENANCE
Item	700	Pothole Repair
	712	Cleaning and Sealing Joints and Cracks (Asphalt Concrete)
	713	Cleaning and Sealing Joints and Cracks (Concrete Pavement)
	720	Repair of Spalling in Concrete Pavement
	721	Fiber Reinforced Polymer Patching Material
	730	Roadside Mowing
	731	Herbicide Treatment
	734	Litter Removal
	735	Debris Removal
	738	Cleaning and Sweeping Highways
	740	Graffiti Removal and Anti-Graffiti Coating
	745	Picnic Area Maintenance
	751	Landscape Maintenance
	752	Tree and Brush Removal
	760	Cleaning and Reshaping Ditches
	764	Pump Station and Drainage System Cleaning
	770	Guard Fence Repair
	771	Repair Cable Barrier System
	772	Post and Cable Fence
	774	Attenuator Repair
	776	Metal Rail Repair



778	Concrete Rail Repair
780	Concrete Crack Repair
784	Steel Member Repair
785	Bridge Joint Repair or Replacement
786	Carbon Fiber Reinforced Polymer
788	Concrete Beam Repair
789	Treatment for ASR-Affected Concrete



II. SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) 2014 Special Provisions (All) Statewide and Districtwide, Current Except as noted below

ITEMS 000 - 009, GENERAL REQUIREMENTS AND COVENANTS

001. Abbreviations And Definitions

002-004 OMITTED

- 005. Control Of The Work
- 006. Control Of Materials
- 007. Legal Relations And Responsibilities
- 008. Prosecution And Progress
- 009. Measurement And Payment

ITEMS 100 - 199, EARTHWORK AND LANDSCAPE

- 100. Preparing Right Of Way
- 103. Disposal Of Wells
- 104. Removing Concrete
- 105. Removing Treated And Untreated Base And Asphalt Pavement
- 106. Obliterating Abandoned Road
- 110. Excavation
- 112. Subgrade Widening
- 132. Embankment
- 134. Backfilling Pavement Edges
- 150. Blading
- 152. Road Grader Work
- 154. Scraper Work
- 156. Bulldozer Work
- 158. Specialized Excavation Work
- 160. Topsoil
- 161. Compost
- 162. Sodding For Erosion Control
- 164. Seeding For Erosion Control
- 166. Fertilizer
- 168. Vegetative Watering
- 169. Soil Retention Blankets
- 170. Irrigation System
- 180. Wildflower Seeding
- 192. Landscape Planting
- 193. Landscape Establishment

ITEMS 200 - 299, SUBGRADE TREATMENTS AND BASE

- 204. Sprinkling
- 210. Rolling
- 216. Proof Rolling
- 247. Flexible Base
- 251. Reworking Base Courses



- 260. Lime Treatment (Road-Mixed)
- 263. Lime Treatment (Plant-Mixed)
- 265. Fly Ash Or Lime-Fly Ash Treatment (Road-Mixed)
- 275. Cement Treatment (Road-Mixed)
- 276. Cement Treatment (Plant-Mixed)
- 292. Asphalt Treatment (Plant-Mixed)

ITEMS 300 - 399, SURFACE COURSES AND PAVEMENTS

- 300. Asphalts, Oils, And Emulsions
- 301. Asphalt Antistriping Agents
- 302. Aggregates For Surface Treatments
- 305. Salvaging, Hauling, And Stockpiling Reclaimable Asphalt Pavement
- 310. Prime Coat
- 314. Emulsified Asphalt Treatment
- 315. Fog Seal
- 316. Seal Coat
- 320. Equipment For Asphalt Concrete Pavement
- 330. Limestone Rock Asphalt Pavement
- 334. Hot-Mix Cold-Laid Asphalt Concrete Pavement
- 340. Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt (Small Quantity)
- 341. Dense-Graded Hot-Mix Asphalt
- 342. Permeable Friction Course (Pfc)
- 344. Superpave Mixtures
- 346. Stone-Mix Asphalt
- 347. Thin Overlay Mixtures (Tom)
- 348. Thin Bonded Friction Courses
- 350. Microsurfacing
- 351. Flexible Pavement Structure Repair
- 354. Planing And Texturing Pavement
- 356. Fabric Underseal
- 358. Hot In-Place Recycling Of Asphalt Concrete Surfaces (Hir)
- 360. Concrete Pavement
- 361. Repair Of Concrete Pavement

ITEMS 400 - 499, STRUCTURES

- 400. Excavation And Backfill For Structures
- 401. Flowable Backfill
- 402. Trench Excavation Protection
- 403. Temporary Special Shoring
- 404. Driving Piling
- 405. Foundation Load Test
- 406. Timber Piling
- 407. Steel Piling
- 409. Prestressed Concrete Piling
- 410. Soil Nail Anchors
- 411. Rock Nail Anchors
- 416. Drilled Shaft Foundations
- 420. Concrete Substructures
- 421. Hydraulic Cement Concrete



- 422. Concrete Superstructures
- 423. Retaining Walls
- 424. Precast Concrete Structural Members (Fabrication)
- 425. Precast Prestressed Concrete Structural Members
- 426. Post-Tensioning
- 427. Surface Finishes For Concrete
- 428. Penetrating Concrete Surface Treatment
- 429. Concrete Structure Repair
- 431. Pneumatically Placed Concrete
- 432. Riprap
- 434. Bridge Bearings
- 438. Cleaning And Sealing Joints
- 439. Bridge Deck Overlays
- 440. Reinforcement For Concrete
- 441. Steel Structures
- 442. Metal For Structures
- 445. Galvanizing
- 446. Field Cleaning And Painting Steel
- 447. Structural Bolting
- 448. Structural Field Welding
- 449. Anchor Bolts
- 450. Railing
- 451. Retrofit Railing
- 454. Bridge Expansion Joints
- 458. Waterproofing Membranes For Structures
- 459. Gabions And Gabion Mattresses
- 460. Corrugated Metal Pipe
- 461. Structural Plate Structures
- 462. Concrete Box Culverts And Drains
- 464. Reinforced Concrete Pipe
- 465. Junction Boxes, Manholes, And Inlets
- 466. Headwalls And Wingwalls
- 467. Safety End Treatment
- 471. Frames, Grates, Rings And Covers
- 472. Removing And Re-Laying Culvert
- 474. Linear Drains
- 476. Jacking, Boring, Or Tunelling Pipe Or Box
- 479. Adjusting Manholes And Inlets
- 480. Cleaning Existing Culverts
- 481. Pipe Or Drains
- 483. Condrete Bridge Deck Surfacing
- 490. Timber Structures
- 491. Timber For Structures
- 492. Timber Preservative And Treatment
- 495. Raising Existing Structures
- 496. Removing Structures
- 497. Sale Of Salvageable Material
- 499. Adjusting Steel Shoes

ITEMS 500 - 599, MISCELLANEOUS CONSTRUCTION

500. Mobilization



- 502. Barricades, Signs, and Traffic Handling
- 504. Field Office and Laboratory
- 506. Temporary Erosion, Sedimentation, and Environmental Controls
- 508. Constructing Detours
- 510. One-Way Traffic Control
- 512. Portable Traffic Barrier
- 514. Permanent Concrete Traffic Barrier
- 520. Weighing and Measuring Equipment
- 528. Colored Textured Concrete and Landscape Pavers
- 529. Concrete Curb, Gutter, and Combined Curb and Gutter
- 530. Intersections, Driveways, and Turnouts
- 531. Sidewalks
- 533. Milled Rumble Strips
- 536. Concrete Medians and Directional Islands
- 538. Right of Way Markers
- 540. Metal Beam Guard Fence
- 542. Removing Metal Beam Guard Fence
- 543. Cable Barrier System
- 544. Guardrail End Treatments
- 545. Crash Cushion Attenuators
- 550. Chain Link Fence
- 552. Wire Fence
- 556. Pipe Underdrains
- 560. Mailbox Assemblies
- 585. Ride Quality for Pavement Structures

ITEMS 600 - 699, LIGHTING, SIGNING, MARKINGS, AND SIGNALS

- 610. Roadway Illumination Assemblies
- 613. High Mast Illumination Poles
- 614. High Mast Illumination Assemblies
- 616. Perfomance Testing of Lighting Systems
- 617. Temporary Roadway Illumination
- 618. Conduit
- 620. Electrical Conductors
- 621. Tray Cable
- 622. Duct Cable
- 624. Ground Boxes
- 625. Zinc-Coated Steel Wire Strand
- 627. Treated Timber Poles
- 628. Electrical Services
- 636. Signs
- 643. Sign Identification Decals
- 644. Small Roadside Sign Assemblies
- 647. Large Roadside Sign Supports and Assemblies
- 650. Overhead Sign Supports
- 654. Sign Walkways
- 656. Foundations for Traffic Control Devices
- 658. Delineator and Object Marker Assemblies
- 662. Work Zone Pavement Markings
- 666. Retroreflectorized Pavement Markings



- 668. Prefabricated Pavement Markings
- 672. Raised Pavement Markers
- 677. Eliminating Existing Pavement Markings and Markers
- 678. Pavement Surface Preparation for Markings
- 680. Highway Traffic Signals
- 681. Temporary Traffic Signals
- 682. Vehicle and Pedestrian Signal Heads
- 684. Traffic Signal Cables
- 685. Roadside Flashing Beacon Assemblies
- 686. Traffic Signal Pole Assemblies (Steel)
- 687. Pedestal Pole Assemblies
- 688. Pedestrian Detectors and Vehicle Loop Detectors
- 690. Maintenance of Traffic Signals

ITEMS 700 - 799, MAINTENANCE

- 700. Pothole Repair
- 712. Cleaning and Sealing Joints and Cracks (Asphalt Concrete)
- 713. Cleaning and Sealing Joints and Cracks (Concrete Pavement)
- 720. Repair of Spalling in Concrete Pavement
- 721. Fiber Reinforced Polymer Patching Material
- 730. Roadside Mowing
- 731. Herbicide Treatment
- 734. Litter Removal
- 735. Debris Removal
- 738. Cleaning and Sweeping Highways
- 740. Graffiti Removal and Anti-Graffiti Coating
- 745. Picnic Area Maintenance
- 751. Landscape Maintenance
- 752. Tree and Brush Removal
- 760. Cleaning and Reshaping Ditches
- 764. Pump Stations and Drainage System Cleaning
- 770. Guard Fence Repair
- 771. Repair Cable Barrier System
- 772. Post and Cable Fence
- 774. Attenuator Repair
- 776. Metal Rail Repair
- 778. Concrete Rail Repair
- 780. Concrete Crack Repair
- 784. Steel Member Repair
- 785. Bridge Joint Repair or Replacement
- 786. Carbon Fiber Reinforced Polymer (CFRP)
- 788. Concrete Beam Repair
- 789. Treatment for ASR-Affected Concrete



III. CITY OF EDINBURG CONSTRUCTION SIGN

END OF DOCUMENT



Page Intentionally Blank



CITY OF EDINBURG LIST OF DRAWINGS

Document 00004

LIST OF DRAWINGS

The list of Drawings is provided on the Title Sheet of "Traffic Signal Improvements Trenton Rd at Professional Dr City of Edinburg" Plan Set.

END OF DOCUMENT



CITY OF EDINBURG LIST OF DRAWINGS

Page Intentionally Blank





REQUEST FOR BIDS

The City of Edinburg is soliciting sealed Request for Bids; hereinafter referred to as RFB, to be received by the City Secretary's Office located at 415 W. University Drive, Edinburg, Texas 78539. City of Edinburg normal business days are Monday through Friday between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and shall be closed on recognized holidays. A pre-bid conference will be conducted by the Owner /Engineer on <u>January 13, 2020 at 9:30 am.</u> The pre-bid conference shall be conducted at the City of Edinburg Engineering Conference Room: located at 415 W. University Drive Edinburg, Texas 78539. Attendance by prospective Bidders is recommended for all general contractors submitting bids. Sub-contractors, suppliers, and equipment suppliers may attend.

RFP'S will be received until 3:00 p.m. Central Time, on Monday, January 20, 2020, shortly thereafter all submitted RFP'S will be gathered and taken to the Edinburg City Hall Community Room, 1st Floor, to be publicly opened and read aloud. Any RFP received after the closing time will not be accepted and will be returned to the submitter unopened. It is the responsibility of the submitter to see that any RFP submitted shall have sufficient time to be received by the City Secretary's Office prior to the RFP opening date and time. The receiving time in the City Secretary's Office will be the governing time for acceptability of the RFP's. RFP's will not be accepted by telephone or facsimile machine. All RFP'S must bear original signatures and figures. The RFP shall be for:

RFP 2020-04 TRENTON RD AT PROFESSIONAL DR SIGNAL CONSTRUCTION

Bidders receiving a "NOTICE TO BIDDERS" and/or "REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS" notice in the mail or reading same in the newspaper are advised that the proposal documents may be obtained from the City of Edinburg web page address: www.cityofedinburg.com, or may obtain copies by contacting the office of: LORENA FUENTES, PURCHASING AGENT, LOCATED AT 415 W. UNIVERSITY DRIVE, EDINBURG, TEXAS 78539 by calling (956) 388-1895 or by emailing your request to the following address: Ifuentes@cityofedinburg.com. General and/or Prime Contractors submitting bids and/or proposals to the City of Edinburg shall be non-refundable.

Plans, proposal forms, specifications, and contract documents may be purchased from the Engineering Department, or are available for printing at http://cityofedinburg.com/departments/finance/open_bid_notices.php. and http://cityofedinburg.com/departments/finance/open_bid_notices.php. and https://cityofedinburg.com/departments/finance/open_bid_notices.php. and https://cityofedinburg.com/departments/finance/open_bid_notices.php.

City of Edinburg Engineering Department – 2nd Floor 415 W. University Drive Edinburg, Texas 78539

<u>Hand Delivered RFB'S:</u>
415 W. University Drive

C/o City Secretary Department (1st Floor)

If using Land Courier (i.e. FedEx, UPS): City of Edinburg

C/o City Secretary 415 W. University Drive Edinburg, Texas 78539 **If Mailing Proposals:**

City of Edinburg C/o City Secretary P.O. Box 1079 Edinburg, Texas 78540-1079

The City of Edinburg reserves the right to refuse and reject any or all RFP's and to waive any or all formalities or technicalities and to accept the RFP deemed most advantageous to the City, and hold the RFP's for a period of **90** days without taking action.

RFP's must be submitted in an envelope sealed with tape and prominently marked on the lower left hand corner of the envelope with corresponding RFP number and title.

Please read your requirements thoroughly and be sure that the RFP offered complies with all requirements/specifications noted. Any variation from the solicitation requirements/specifications must be clearly indicated by letter, on a point by point basis, attached to and made a part of your RFP. If no exceptions are noted, and you are the successful respondent, it will be required that the service(s) be provided as specified.

PURPOSE

(1) The purpose of these solicitation documents is to provide a proposal for signal construction improvements consisting of traffic signal components, signing and pavement markings for:

Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction

INTENT

(2) The services to be provided under this RFP shall be in accordance with and shall meet all specifications and/or requirements as shown in this solicitation for RFP. There is no intention to disqualify any respondent who can meet the requirements.

SUBMITTAL OF RFP

(3) RFPs shall be submitted in sealed envelopes as referenced on the attached solicitation. Three (3) complete sets of the response, one (1) original marked "ORIGINAL," and three (3) copies marked "COPY". RFPs submitted by facsimile (fax) or electronically shall NOT be accepted. Submittal of an RFP in response to this solicitation constitutes an offer by the respondent. Once submitted, RFP's become the property of the City of Edinburg and as such the City reserves the right to use any ideas contained in any RFP regardless of whether that respondent/firm is selected. Submission of a RFP in response to this solicitation, by any respondent, shall indicate that the respondent(s) has/have accepted the conditions contained in the RFP, unless clearly and specifically noted in the RFP submitted and confirmed in the contract between the City and the successful respondent otherwise. RFPs which do not comply with these requirements may be rejected at the option of the City. RFPs must be filed with the City of Edinburg before the deadline day and hour. No late RFPs will be accepted. They will be returned to respondent unopened (if properly identified). Failure to meet RFP requirements may be grounds for disqualification.

Hand Delivered RFP'S:

415 W. University Drive c/o City Secretary Department (1st Floor)

If using Land Courier (i.e. FedEx, UPS): City of Edinburg

c/o City Secretary 415 W. University Drive Edinburg, Texas 78541

<u>If Mailing RFP's:</u> City of Edinburg

c/o City Secretary P.O. Box 1079

Edinburg, Texas 78540-1079

RFP DOCUMENTS: Copies of the RFP Documents, including Drawings, Contract Documents and Technical Specifications may be obtained at the following locations:

City of Edinburg Engineering Department at 415 W. University Dr, Edinburg, Texas 78542 office for \$100.00 *non-refundable* deposit payable to City of Edinburg.

Download free of charge at www.civcastusa.com

TIME ALLOWED FOR ACTION TAKEN

(4) The City of Edinburg may hold RFP/s <u>90</u> days after deadline without taking action. Respondents are required to hold their RFP/s firm for same period of time.

RIGHT TO REJECT/AWARD

(5) The City of Edinburg reserves the right to reject any or all RFPs, to waive any or all formalities or technicalities, and to make such awards of contract as may be deemed to be the best and most advantageous to the City of Edinburg.

ASSIGNMENT

(6) Respondents are advised that the City of Edinburg shall not allow the successful respondent to sell, assign, transfer, or convey any part of any contract resulting from this RFP in whole or in part, to a third party without the written approval of the City of Edinburg.

AWARD

(7) Respondents are advised that the City of Edinburg is soliciting RFPs and award shall be made to the respondent that in the opinion of the City of Edinburg is the best qualified.

NUMBER OF CONTRACTS

(8) THE CITY reserves the right to award one or no contract in response to this RFP.

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

(9) It shall be the responsibility of the successful respondent to comply with all applicable State & Federal laws, Executive Orders and Municipal Ordinances, and the Rules and Regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over the work to be performed hereunder and such shall apply to the contract throughout, and that they will be deemed to be included in the contract as though written out in full in the contract documents.

ALTERATIONS/AMENDMENTS TO RFP

(10) RFP **CANNOT** be altered or amended after opening time. Alterations made before opening time must be initialed by respondent guaranteeing authenticity. No RFP may be withdrawn after opening time without acceptable reason in writing and only after approval by the City of Edinburg.

NO RESPONSE TO RFP

(11) If unable to submit a RFP, respondent should return inquiry giving reasons.

LIST OF EXCEPTIONS

(12) The respondent shall attach to his/her RFP a list of any exceptions to the specifications/ requirements.

PAYMENT

(13) The City of Edinburg will execute payment by mail in accordance with the State of Texas Pay Law after <u>SERVICES</u> have been completed, introduced to the City, and found to meet City of Edinburg specifications/requirements. No other method of payment will be considered.

SYNONYM

(14) Where in this solicitation package <u>SERVICES</u> is used, its meaning shall refer to the request for the South East Original Drainage Improvements as specified.

RESPONDENT'S EMPLOYEES

(15) Neither the Respondent nor his/her employees engaged in fulfilling the terms and conditions of this Service Contract shall be considered employees of the City. The method and manner of performance of such undertakings shall be under the exclusive control of the vendor on contract. The City shall have the right of inspection of said undertakings at any time.

INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE

(16) The Respondent agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City, from all suits and actions of every nature and description brought against them or any of them, for or on account of the use of patented appliances, products or processes, and he shall pay all royalties and charges which are legal and equitable. Evidence of such payment or satisfaction shall be submitted upon request of the Purchasing Agent, as a necessary requirement in connection with the final estimate for payment in which such patented appliance, products or processes are used

INTERPRETATIONS

(17) Any questions concerning the project and/or specifications/requirements with regards to this solicitation for statement(s) of qualifications shall be directed to the designated individuals as outlined in the RFP. Such interpretations, which may affect the eventual outcome of this request for statements of qualifications, shall be furnished in writing to all prospective Respondents via Addendum. No interpretation shall be considered binding unless provided in writing by the City of Edinburg in accordance with paragraph entitled "Addenda and Modifications".

VERBAL THREATS AND OFFICIAL CONTACT

(18) Any threats made to any employee of the City, be it verbal or written, to discontinue the providing of item/material/services for whatever reason and/or reasons shall be considered a breach of contract and the City will immediately sever the contract with the Respondent/Consultant on contract.

Respondents shall not offer gratuities, favors or any monetary value to any official or employee of the City for purpose of influencing the selection. Any attempt by any Respondent to influence the selection process by any means, other than disclosure of qualifications and credentials through the proper channels, shall be grounds from exclusion from the selection process. Once the project is advertised, there shall be no contact with any city official or employee unless using the formal process through the Purchasing Department. Failure to comply will result in the firm being disqualified from the process.

Questions and answers that change or substantially clarify the Request for Proposals will be affirmed in writing and copies will be provided to all firms on record responding to RFP. Any inquiries to this RFP must be submitted Ms. Lorena Fuentes, Purchasing Agent, at (956) 388-1895 or at the following e-mail address: Ifuentes@cityofedinburg.com no later than <u>January 13, 2020 by 5:00 pm.</u>

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

(19) Any information deemed to be confidential by the respondent should be clearly noted on the pages where confidential information is contained; however, the City cannot guarantee that it will not be compelled to disclose all or part of any public record under Texas Public Information Act, since information deemed to be confidential by the respondent may not be considered confidential under Texas Law, or pursuant to a Court order.

PAST PERFORMANCE

(20) Respondent's past performance shall be taken into consideration in the evaluation of RFP submittal.

JURISDICTION

(21) Contract(s) executed as part of this solicitation shall be subject to and governed under the laws of the State of Texas. Any and all obligations and payments are due and performable and payable in Hidalgo County, Texas.

RIGHT TO AUDIT

(22) The City of Edinburg reserves the right to audit the vendor's books and records relating to the performance of this contract. The City of Edinburg, at its own expense, shall have the right at all reasonable times during normal business hours and upon at least twenty-four (24) hours' advance notice, to audit, to examine, and to make copies of or extracts from the books of account and records maintained by the vendor(s) with respect to the Supply/Service and/or Purchase Contract. If such audit shall disclose overpayment by City to vendor, written notice of such overpayment shall be promptly reimbursed by vendor to the City. In the event any such overpayment is not paid within ten (10) business days after receipt of such notice, the unpaid amount of such overpayment shall bear interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per month from the date of such notice until paid.

VENUE

(23) The parties agree that venue for purposes of any and all lawsuits, cause of action, and/or any other dispute(s) shall be in Hidalgo County, Texas.

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS ABOUT COMPLIANCE, PLEASE CONSULT YOUR OWN

LEGAL COUNSEL. COMPLIANCE IS THE INDIVIDUAL RESPONSIBILITY OF EACH PERSON OR AGENT OF A PERSON WHO IS SUBJECT TO THE FILING REQUIREMENT. AN OFFENSE UNDER CHAPTER 176 IS A CLASS "C" MISDEMEANOR.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

(24) CHAPTER 176 OF THE TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE

Effective January 1, 2006, Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code requires that any vendor or person considering doing business with a local government entity disclose in the Questionnaire Form CIQ, the vendor or person's affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest with a local government entity. By law, this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the City of Edinburg not later than the 7th business day after the date the person becomes aware of facts that require the statement be filed. See Section 176.006, Local Government Code. A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor. For more information or to obtain Questionnaire CIQ go to the Texas Ethics Commission web page at www.ethics.state.tx.us/forms/CIQ.pdf.

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES (Form 1295)

(25) In 2015, the Texas Legislature adopted <u>House Bill 1295</u>, which added section 2252.908 of the Government Code. The law states that a governmental entity or state agency may not enter into certain contracts with a business entity unless the business entity submits a disclosure of interested parties to the governmental entity or state agency at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency. The law applies only to a contract of a governmental entity or state agency that either (1) requires an action or vote by the governing body of the entity or agency before the contract may be signed or (2) has a value of at least \$1 million. The disclosure requirement applies to a contract entered into on or after January 1, 2016. For more information go to the Texas Ethics Commission web page at www.ethics.state.tx.us/forms/CIQ.pdf.

CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION AND SECURITY

(26) Should the successful respondent become the holder of and have access to confidential information in the process of fulfilling its responsibilities in connection with an awarded contract the successful respondent agrees that it shall keep such information confidential and will comply fully with the laws and regulations of the State of Texas, ordinances and regulations of the City, and any applicable federal laws and regulations relating to confidentiality.

TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

(27) The City of Edinburg reserves the right to terminate the contract if, in the opinion of the City of Edinburg, the successful vendor's performance is not acceptable, no funds are available, or if the City wishes, without cause, to discontinue this contract. Termination will be in written form allowing a 30-day notice.

RESPONSE DEADLINE

(28) Responses to the RFP must be addressed to City Secretary, City of Edinburg, 415 W. University Drive by Monday, January 20 2020 until 3:00 p.m. for consideration. An (1) original and three (3) copies of complete sets of the response must be submitted no later than this date and time in a sealed envelope indicating that its contents are in response to the RFP for the

<u>"Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction"</u>. Respondents are advised that all confidential records must be submitted in a separate sealed envelope and marked accordingly.

<u>Hand Delivered RFP's:</u> 415 W. University Drive

c/o City Secretary Department (1st Floor)

If using Land Courier (i.e.FedEx, UPS): City of Edinburg

c/o City Secretary 415 W. University Drive Edinburg, Texas 78541

If Mailing RFPs: City of Edinburg

c/o City Secretary P.O. Box 1079

Edinburg, Texas 78540-1079

ADDENDA AND MODIFICATIONS

(29) Any changes, additions, or clarifications to the RFP are made by amendments (addenda). Any respondent in doubt as to the true meaning of any part of the RFP or other documents may request an interpretation from the Purchasing Division. At the request of the respondent, or in the event the Purchasing Division deems the interpretation to be substantive, the interpretation will be made by written addendum. Said Addenda shall be mailed, e-mailed, hand delivered and/or faxed, to all prospective respondents. All Addenda issued in respect to this RFP shall be considered official changes to the original documents. Verbal statements in response to inquiries and/or requests for explanations shall not be authoritative or binding. It shall be the respondent's responsibility to ensure that they have received all Addenda in respect to this project. Furthermore, respondents are advised that they must recognize, comply with, and attach a signed copy of each Addendum which shall be made part of their RFP Submittal. Respondent(s) signature on Addenda shall be interpreted as the respondent's "recognition and compliance to" official changes as outlined by the City of Edinburg and as such are made part of the original solicitation documents. Failure of any respondent to receive any such addendum or interpretation shall not relieve such respondent from its terms and requirements. The City may issue a written addendum no later than five calendar days prior to the date bids must be received. Addendums are available online at www.cityofedinburg.com.

RFP PREPARATION COSTS

(30) The City of Edinburg shall not be held liable for any costs incurred by any respondent for work performed in the preparation of and production of a RFP or for any work performed prior to execution of contract.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

(31) Respondent agrees that they will not discriminate in hiring, promotion, treatment, or other terms and conditions of employment based on race, sex, national origin, age, disability, or in any way violate Title VII of 1964 Civil Rights Act and amendments, except as permitted by said laws.

AUTHORIZATION TO BIND RESPONDENT TO RFP

(32) RFPs MUST give full firm name and address of respondent, and be manually signed. Failure to do so will disqualify your RFP. Person signing bid must show title or <u>AUTHORITY TO BIND HIS/HER FIRM IN A CONTRACT</u>. Firm name and authorized signature must appear on each page that calls for this information. The legal status of the Respondent whether corporation, partnership, or individual, shall also be stated in the RFP. A corporation shall execute the RFP by its duly authorized officers in accordance with its corporate by-laws and shall also list the state in which it is incorporated. A partnership Respondent shall give full names and addresses of all partners. All partners shall execute the RFP. Partnership and Individual Respondent shall state in the proposal the names and addresses of all persons with a vested interest therein. The place of residence of each Respondent, or the office address in the case of a firm or company, with county and state and telephone number, shall be given after the signature.

BRAND OR MANUFACTURER REFERENCE

(33) Unless otherwise specified, any catalog or manufacturer's reference or brand name used in describing an item is merely descriptive, and not restrictive, and is used only to indicate type and style of product desired. Proposals on alternate brands will be considered if they meet specification requirements. If a bidder quotes on equipment other than the one(s) specified in the bid, sufficient specifications and descriptive (pictured literature) data must accompany same to permit thorough evaluation. In the absence of these qualifications, he/she will be expected to furnish the product called for.

COOPERATIVE PRICING

(34) Bidders are advised that in addition to responding to our "local" solicitation for bids/Bids with Dealer pricing, vendors/contractors are encouraged to provide pricing on the below referenced items/products/services based on BuyBoard, TX-MAS, H-GAC and/or any other State of Texas recognized and approved cooperative which has complied with the bidding requirements for the State of Texas. If bidding other than or in addition to "dealer" pricing, kindly duplicate the bid forms for each bid being provided from a cooperative contract. Any and all applicable fees must be included. All cooperative pricing must be submitted on or before bid opening date and hour.

HB 89

- (35) The 85th Texas Legislature approved new legislation, effective Sept. 1, 2017, which amends Texas Local Government Code Section 1. Subtitle F, Title 10, Government Code by adding Chapter 2270 which states that a governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it:
 - 1) does not boycott Israel; and
 - 2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract

<u>Confidential Information</u> Respondents are advised that all confidential records must be submitted in a separate sealed envelope and marked accordingly.

SECTION I SCOPE OF THE PROPOSAL

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of the RFP is to solicit and obtain from interested parties (also referred to herein as "Vendor" or "Vendors") the best possible proposal for the "Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction". The City of Edinburg intends to select the most competitive proposal that meets the City's requirements and specifications listed within the proposal and then enter into negotiations with the Vendor/s for purposes of reaching a satisfactory agreement for the City for the "Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction".

BACKGROUND

The City of Edinburg "Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction" project will mitigate the congestion issues occurring within the intersection of Trenton Rd and Professional Dr

SCOPE OF WORK

The City is soliciting competitive proposals from experienced and qualified companies for the "Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction". The project will improve the traffic flow in the area.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The City of Edinburg is requesting that RFP's (Request for Proposal) be routed to: The CITY Secretary, at 415 West University, Edinburg, Texas 78541.

NON-COLLUSION

Submitters, by submitting a signed submission, certify that the accompanying submission is not the result of, or affected by, any unlawful act of collusion with any other person or company engaged in the same line of business or commerce, or any other fraudulent act punishable under Texas or United States law.

NON-DISCRIMINATION

Submitters, during the performance of this contract, will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, sex, national origin or disability except where religion, sex, national origin or disability is a bona fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the contractor.

PROCESSING TIME FOR PAYMENT

Submitters are advised that a minimum of thirty (30) days is required to process invoices for payment.

ELECTRONIC SUBMISSION OF BIDS

The City of Edinburg's City Secretary Department will not accept telegraphic or electronically transmitted submissions.

PROOF OF FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS CAPABILITY

Submitters must, upon request, furnish satisfactory evidence of their ability to furnish products or services in accordance with the terms and conditions of these requirements. The CITY will make the final determination as to the submitter's ability.

SUBMITTER DEFAULT

The City of Edinburg reserves the right, in case of submitter default, to procure the articles or services from other sources and hold the defaulting submitter responsible for any excess costs occasioned thereby.

RESTRICTIVE OR AMBIGUOUS REQUIREMENTS

It is the responsibility of the submitter to review the Request for Proposals (RFP) packet and to notify the City Engineering Department if the requirements are formulated in a manner that would unnecessarily restrict competition. Any such protest or question regarding the requirements or bidding procedures must be received in the City Secretary Department not less than seventy-two hours prior to the time set for the opening. These criteria also apply to requirements that are ambiguous.

RFP DELIVERY

The City of Edinburg requires submitters, when hand-delivering proposals by **3:00 pm on January 20**, **2020**, to have a City Secretary Department representative time/date stamp and initial the envelope.

SIGNING OF PROPOSALS

In order to be considered, all submittals **must** be signed.

WAIVING OF INFORMALITIES

THE CITY reserves the right to waive minor informalities or technicalities when it is in the best interest of THE CITY.

SUBCONTRACTING

The successful submitter may not subcontract the award without the written consent of the City.

BIDDER RESPONSIBILITY

It is the responsibility of each vendor before submitting a proposal:

- To examine thoroughly the contract documents and other related data identified in the proposal documents.
- To visit the site to become familiar with and satisfy vendor as to the general, local, and site
 conditions that may affect cost, progress, performance, etc.
- To consider federal, state, and local laws and regulations that may affect costs, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.
- To study and carefully correlate vendor's knowledge and observations with the contract

documents and such other related data.

• To promptly notify THE CITY Purchasing of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies which vendor has discovered in or between the contract documents and such other related documents.

TERMINATION

THE CITY has the authority and express right to terminate any Agreement awarded under this RFP or any Work Order resulting from the Agreement at any time for any reason, including but not limited to, instances where THE CITY finds that the Contractor's work is negligent, not satisfactory, or not in accordance with the Agreement requirements.

SECTION II RFP REQUIREMENTS

PURPOSE

The intent of this Request for Proposal and resulting contract is to obtain proposals to <u>Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction</u>.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

The required contents and limitations for the preparation of the RFP are described in this section. Failure to provide the requested information or adhere to any of The CITY limitations will result in disqualification of the submitted RFP. A total of **one (1) original and four (4) copies** of the RFP shall be submitted to the address on the cover letter. Letter of Intent from Surety Company to provide Payment and Performance Bonds shall also be required from the proposer as part of RFP.

SUBMITTAL

For proper comparison and evaluation, THE CITY requests that proposals address, at a minimum, the following format.

- 1) **Cover Letter -** A brief introductory letter of representation.
- 2) **Executive Summary** A brief summary highlighting the most important points of the proposal. If used, the Summary should not exceed five pages.
- 3) Degree of Compliance A statement that all products and services quoted in proposal is in full accord with the specifications or a brief listing of all those specification sections to which the Proposer takes exception. All explanations, exceptions, comments, etc., pertaining to the specific sections of the specifications shall be listed and numbered in order of the respective article of the specification.

CONTENTS

The required contents for the RFP are presented below in the order they should be incorporated into the submitted document.

- 1) **UNDERSTANDING OF THE PROJECT:** This section should demonstrate the submitter's understanding of the project's needs, the work required, and any local issues or concerns. This description should be concise, candid, and limited to 2 pages in length.
- 2) FIRM QUALIFICATIONS, PERSONNEL AND STAFFING (00420 Statement of Bidder's Qualifications): The CITY is seeking a contract with a competent firm(s); with a minimum of 5 years' experience of installation of Traffic Signals.
 - a) Qualifications:
 - i) List Firm's qualifications and ability to perform the service requirements.

ii) List qualifications of key personnel to be assigned to this project, including but not limited to education, training, registrations, certifications and licenses.

b) Experience:

- i) Number of years of experience as a General Contractor.
- ii) Relevant experience with projects of similar size and scope performed over the past five (5) years. For each project listed, date services provided and name, titles, and telephone numbers of each client or client's representative.
- iii) Specific experience with public entity clients, especially large municipalities. If company submitting proposal for new construction has provided services to the CITY in the past, identify the name of the project and the department for which services were provided.
- iv) If company submitting proposal for this project is submitting as a team or joint venture, provide the same information for each member of the team or joint venture.
- v) Provide the following information for key personnel to be assigned to this project:
 - (1) Total years' experience.
 - (2) Primary work assignment for the projects outlined in this RFP.
 - (3) Relevant experience with projects of similar size and scope.

c) Previous Project Performance:

- i) Provide evidence of satisfactory performance on past projects
- ii) List past assignments over the past five (5) years
- iii) Provide copies of outstanding service letters, letters of commendation, service awards, etc.
- iv) Provide five recent references who may be contacted to verify performance of similar services. For each reference, provide a current phone number and e-mail address. References may not be present or former CITY employees.

d) Quality of Service:

- i) Company submitting proposal for the Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction Availability: Identify any concurrent or near future commitment that would impede the firm's ability to perform this contract.
- ii) Describe company submitting proposal for the Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction policies, procedures and plans to ensure quality services (continuing education, on-going training, internal quality practices, etc.)
- iii) If company submitting proposal for the Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction has ever had a contract terminated or has been dismissed due to alleged unsatisfactory performance, state when, where and why the contract was terminated

- and/or Security Consultant dismissed, the client's name, and the contact person's phone number.
- 3) **Proposal Pricing/Delivery** Pricing shall be inclusive for all items requested in this proposal. Brief notes referencing specific line items may be included, if necessary, for explanation. Proposal shall state all labor, materials and equipment necessary to complete the project as stated in the SCOPE OF WORK (Page 2).
- 4) Contractor Background Information This section should include a description of the Proposer experience with other services similar to the one described herein. This information should include scope of several similar jobs including magnitude and cost, customer contacts and other information that THE CITY can use as a basis for performance evaluation. This section should also include information on your organization and staff assigned to the project.
- 5) References Proposer shall submit with this proposal a list of at least three (3) references where like services or similar projects have been performed by their firm. Include name of firm, address, telephone number and name of representative.
- 6) **Schedule** Proposer shall submit the amount of working days that will take company to complete project.

SECTION III SELECTION AND SCHEDULES

SELECTION PROCEDURES

The RFP shall be submitted according to the schedule below.

PROPOSAL RANKING

A selection committee will evaluate and rank the written RFPs on a per project basis. After the RFPs have been ranked, the committee will make a recommendation to the CITY Council.

RFP SUBMITTED TO

An original and four (4) copies of RFPs should be submitted to:

City of Edinburg c/o City Secretary 415 West University P.O. Box 1079 Edinburg, Texas 78541

RFPs must be submitted by <u>no later than</u> 3:00 p.m. on Monday, January 20, 2020.

SECTION IV FIRM and RFP EVALUATION

RFP – EVALUATION

The evaluation system consists of a 100 Point system. The RFP will be ranked after evaluation. All RFP's submitted will be ranked and evaluated based on specified RFP criteria. The submittal evaluation will be based on the following criteria.

- 40 Points: Proposer's itemized and total proposed price
 - Total estimated cost for base bid submitted*
 - *Alternates might be included based on what is most advantageous to City.
- 40 Points: Proposer's qualifications/experience and performance/references
 - o Demonstrated prior experience for similar projects (20 points)
 - Number of years in business (5 points)
 - Litigation History/Lawsuit History (5 points)
 - o References (10 points)
- 10 Points: The Proposer's Team and Subcontractors.
 - o Resumes for Key Individuals (5 points)
 - Project Superintendent
 - Project Manager
 - List of Subcontractors (5 points)
- 10 Points: Schedule.
 - Lowest total days (10 points)
 - o Within 30 days of lowest (8 points)
 - Within 60 days of lowest (6 points)
 - o More than 60 days from lowest (5 points)

Proposed Price (40 points):

The price will be evaluated and scored based on the main proposal cost. The City reserves the right to include any and all alternate price proposals in the price evaluation process. The established budget will determine which, if any, alternates will be recommended and accepted as part of the overall price ranking evaluation. After the highest ranked firm is selected, negotiations on price and changes on the scope of work may occur with the firm that provides the best value to the City.

Points will be awarded based upon the total number of offers submitted. The lowest offeror will receive the maximum number of points and the highest offeror will receive the minimum number of points. A point spread system will be established once all the offers are tabulated. The closer the prices of the offers, the larger the point spread will be.

SAMPLE: Utilizing the 80% Spread Formula

Contractor	Price		Points
Offeror No. 01	\$1,000	,000.00	40.0
Offeror No. 02	\$1,050	,000.00	37.33
Offeror No. 03	\$1,100	,000.00	34.67
Offeror No. 04	\$1,150	,000.00	32.0
70% spread: $40 \times 70\% = 28.0$	points	Results: 12 points spre	ead
75% spread: 40 x 75% = 30.0	points	Results: 10 points spre	ead
80% spread: $40 \times 80\% = 32.0$	points	Results: 8 points sprea	nd
85% spread: $40 \times 85\% = 34.0$	points	Results: 6 points sprea	nd
90% spread: 40 x 90% = 36.0	points	Results: 4 points sprea	nd
95% spread: $40 \times 95\% = 38.0$	points	Results: 2 points sprea	nd

If the committee decided to utilize the 90% spread formula, Offeror No. 04 is only 4 points away from Offeror No. 1. The committee may feel that a 4 point difference is too close, and is unfair to the lowest price offeror. A 70% spread, or 12 point difference, may be too far spread out and may be considered unfair to the highest price offer. Especially since the prices are not too far apart on a \$1 Million project. The point spread could be very different on a \$300,000.00 project budget versus a \$30 million project budget.

After the percentage spread is agreed upon, in this case the 80% formula, the lowest offeror gets the maximum 40 points and the highest offeror gets 32 points. Everyone else in the middle will get their points scored proportionately (extrapolated). This is the scoring system which will be utilized by the ranking committee on the price category for all construction projects. The point system will vary from project to project depending on the project budget ranges, on the number of offers submitted, and on the price spread differences between all offerors.

RESPONDENT - EVALUATION

The evaluation system consists of a 100-point system. The firms will be ranked after evaluation. Categories under the 100-point system include response to RFP. RFP submittal evaluation will be based on the following criteria.

STAFFING OF PROJECT TEAM

The firms should provide information on their proposed professional team members, i.e., applicable certifications/registrations and other pertinent information that demonstrates their qualifications to perform the contract. The professional team members shall have experience in performing similar contracts for counties, cities, irrigation districts, TX DOT or other clients as stated in the Request for Proposals (RFP). Similar experience gained though other clients should be substantiated by reference. A list and scope of the various projects for comparative purposes shall be included in an appendix.

EXPERIENCE OF PROJECT TEAM/ABILITY TO COMMIT RESOURCES

The provider shall designate experienced staff to completely and efficiently perform the work. Also, in this section, outline the firm's contingency plans for servicing the project in the event that one or more key personnel are not available for any reason during the period of performance.

METHODOLOGY

The RFP should provide a description of the firm's approach to the methodology and management to the scope of services for the project.

UNDERSTANDING OF PROJECT/SIMILAR PROJECTS

The proposal shall include the following:

- 1. Address appropriate Federal/State/Local regulations and policies
- 2. Identify information to be gathered or obtained

The respondents should provide as much background information as to its experience in providing similar services to State, CITY, County or any other governmental agencies. Reference information should be as current as possible, especially contact persons and telephone numbers.

FAMILIARITY WITH APPLICABLE RULES AND REGULATIONS

The RFP should indicate, through past experience of the proposed Team, that they possess sufficient knowledge of governmental regulations, appropriate codes, guidelines, professional standards and policies (as required).

SECTION V AWARD OF CONTRACT, RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

Number of Contracts

The CITY reserves the right to award one or no contract(s) in response to this RFP.

Advantageous Contract

The Contract/s, if awarded, will be awarded to the vendor/s submitting proposal for the Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction whose Submittal(s) is/are deemed most advantageous to the CITY and, as determined by the selection committee, upon approval of the CITY Council.

Final Selection and City Council Approval

The CITY may accept any Submittal in whole or in part. If subsequent negotiations are conducted, they shall not constitute a rejection or alternate RFP on the part of THE CITY. However, final selection of a company submitting proposal for the Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction is subject to City Council approval.

Remedy of Technical Errors

The CITY reserves the right to accept one or more submittals or reject any or all submittals received in response to this RFP, and to waive informalities and irregularities in the submittals received. The CITY also reserves the right to terminate this RFP, and reissue a subsequent solicitation, and/or remedy technical errors in the RFP process.

Preparation Costs

This RFP does not commit the CITY to enter into a Contract, award any services related to this RFP, nor does it obligate the CITY to pay any costs incurred in preparation or submission of a submittal or in anticipation of a contract.

Insurance and Indemnity

If selected, vendor/s submitting proposal for Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction will be required to comply with the Insurance and Indemnity Requirements established herein.

Independent Contractor

The company/s submitting proposal for the Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction agrees and understands that, if selected, it and all persons designated by it to provide services in connection with a contract, is (are) and shall be deemed to be (an) independent contractor(s), responsible for its (their) respective acts or omissions, and that THE CITY shall in no way be responsible for company submitting proposal for the TRENTON RD AT PROFESSIONAL DR SIGNAL CONSTRUCTION actions, and that none of the parties hereto will have authority to bind the other or to hold out to third parties.

Purchase Orders, As Needed

Execution of a contract does not obligate the CITY to engage any delivery orders, Purchase Orders, or other commitments for services. Service delivery shall be at the CITY's discretion, as needed, and will be communicated to the company submitting proposal for the Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction through individual Purchase Orders.

ATTACHMENT I Insurance Requirements

The Respondent awarded the contract shall furnish proof of insurance, which will also include any subcontractor that is subcontracted by the bidder in at least the following limits, to be in place prior to providing any services under this Contract and to continue in effect at all times during the term of this Contract:

- 1 Professional liability insurance policy with limits of at least One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, or limited to claims made, include at least a five (5) year extended reporting period.
- 1 Automobile liability insurance policy with limits of at least Three Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$300,000) per person and \$500,000 per occurrence consistent with potential exposure to The CITY under the Texas Tort Claims Act. Coverage should include injury to or death of persons and property damage claims (with limits up to \$500,000) arising out of the services provided to The CITY hereunder.
- 1 Uninsured/Underinsured motorist coverage in an amount equal to the bodily injury limits set forth immediately above;
- 1 A Five Hundred Thousand Dollar (\$500,000) Comprehensive General Liability insurance policy providing additional coverage to all underlying liabilities of The CITY consistent with potential exposure of The CITY under the Texas Tort Claims Act;
- 1 Workers' compensation insurance in amounts established by Texas law, unless the Bidder is specifically exempted from the Texas Workers' Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code Chapter 401, et. Seq.

Certificates of insurance naming The CITY as an additional insured shall be submitted to The CITY for approval prior to any services being performed by Contractor. Each policy of insurance required hereunder shall extend for a period equivalent to, or longer than the term of the Contract, and any insurer hereunder shall be required to give at least thirty (30) days written notice to The CITY prior to the cancellation of any such coverage on the termination date, or otherwise. This Contract shall be automatically suspended upon the cancellation, or other termination, of any required policy of insurance hereunder, and such suspension shall continue until evidence that adequate replacement coverage is provided to The CITY. If replacement coverage is not provided within thirty (30) days following suspension of the Contract, the Contract shall automatically terminate.

ATTACHMENT II Insurance Requirement Acknowledgement

Ι,		, authorized representative for		
		, Company/Vendor		
		by acknowledge the receipt of The CITY's required insurance limits. Said ements:		
		Will be acquired within 10 working days after notification from the Engineering Department of proposal awarded by The CITY of Edinburg; (*An insurance certificate for the required insurance limits shall be provided to the City Engineer in order to qualify for award of bid and to execute a contract between the Company and The CITY.)		
 Will acquire additional amount needed to meet The CITY's requi within 10 working days after notification from the Engineering Dep of bid awarded by The CITY of Edinburg; currently carry the following 				
		Professional Liability (Errors & Omissions): \$		
\$_		Automobile Liability: \$ General Liability:		
		(* An insurance certificate for the required insurance limits shall be provided to the City Engineer in order to qualify for award of bid and to execute a contract between the Company and The CITY.) OR		
		Have already been met (see attached copy of insurance certificate).		
		Authorized Representative Date		

Notice to Bidder: Failure to provide Certificates of Insurance to the City Engineer will cause the bid award to be rescinded and then awarded to next lowest bidder. Certificates of Insurance will be monitored/verified on a **quarterly basis** to ensure that coverage policy is in place. It is the Company's obligation to maintain the appropriate insurance coverage throughout the term of the contract.

THIS FORM MUST ACCOMPANY BID PACKET

ATTACHMENT III

Project Requirements Acknowledgement

This is to certify that I,APPLICABLE:	, possess all of the
1. Licenses:	
2. Bonds:	
3. Certificates:	
4. Permits:	
5. Other:	
of the required documentation, so that	oject. Furthermore, I am providing copies if my company is awarded the bid, I may CITY and proceed to complete the project
presented as part of the bid packet	ermits, etc. which are required <u>must be</u> in order to expedite the bid evaluation d documentation will result in the
Authorized Signature	Date
Company	
Address	
City. State. Zip	

ATTACHMENT IV

LITIGATION DISCLOSURE FORM

Failure to fully and truthfully disclose the information required by this Litigation Disclosure form may result in the disqualification of your submittal from consideration or termination of the contract, once awarded.

1. Have you or any member of your Firm or Team to be assigned to this engagement ever been indicted or convicted of a felony or misdemeanor greater than a Class C in the last five (5) years?

Circle One YES NO

2. Have you or any member of your Firm or Team to be assigned to this engagement ever been terminated (for cause or otherwise) from any work being performed for the CITY or any other Federal, State or Local Government, or Private Entity?

Circle One YES NO

3. Have you or any member of your Firm or Team to be assigned to this engagement ever been involved in any claim or litigation with the CITY or any other Federal, State or Local Government, or Private Entity during the last ten (10) years?

Circle One YES NO

If you have answered "Yes" to any of the above questions, please indicate the name(s) of the person(s), the nature, and the status and/or outcome of the information, indictment, conviction, termination, claim or litigation, as applicable. Any such information should be provided on a separate page, attached to this form and submitted with your submittal.

ATTACHMENT V

VENDOR/S PROVIDING PROPOSAL FOR TRENTON RD AT PROFESSIONAL DR SIGNAL CONSTRUCTION QUALIFICATIONS GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE

1	Name/Name of Agency/Company:
2	(Full, correct legal name) Address:
3.	Telephone/Fax:
4.	Does your Company anticipate any mergers, transfer of organization ownership, management reorganization, or departure of key personnel within the next twelve (12) months that may affect the organization's ability to carry out its submittal?
	Yes No
5.	Is your Company authorized and/or licensed to do business in Texas? Yes No
6.	Where is the Company's corporate headquarters located?
7.	a. Does the Company have an office located in Edinburg, Texas?
	Yes No
	b. If the answer to the previous question is "yes", how long has the Company conducted business from its Edinburg office?
	(years) (months)
	c. State the number of full-time employees at the Edinburg office.
8.	a. If the Company does not have an Edinburg office, does the Company have an office located in Hidalgo County, Texas?
	Yes No

	b. If the answer to the previous question is yes, how long has the Company conducted business from its Hidalgo County office?
	(years) (months)
	c. State the number of full-time employees at the Hidalgo County office
9.	Has the Company or any of its principals been debarred or suspended from contracting with any public entity? Yes No
	If yes, identify the public entity and the name and current phone number of a representative of the public entity familiar with the debarment or suspension, and state the reason for or circumstances surrounding the debarment or suspension, including but not limited to the period of time for such debarment or suspension.
10	.Indicate person whom The CITY may contact concerning your submittal or setting dates for meetings.
	Name:
	Address: Telephone:
	Fax: Email:
11	.Surety Information
	Have you or the Company ever had a bond or surety instrument "called," canceled, or forfeited? Yes () No ().
	If yes, state the name of the bonding company, date, amount of bond and reason for such bond being "called," or its cancellation or forfeiture.
12	. Bankruptcy Information
	Have you or the Company ever been declared bankrupt or filed for protection from creditors under state or federal proceedings? Yes () No () If yes, state the date, court, jurisdiction, cause number, amount of liabilities

amount of assets.
Provide any other names under which your business has operated within the 10 years.

ATTACHMENT VI

HOUSE BILL 89 VERIFICATION

I,, the undersigned representative
of
(hereafter referred to as company) being an adult over the age of eighteen (18) years of age, verify that the company named-above, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, Government Code Chapter 2270:
1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.
3) Is not currently listed on the State of Texas Comptroller's Companies that Boycott Israel List Iocated at https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/publications/divestment.php
Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code:
1. "Boycott Israel" means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business purposes; and
2. "Company" means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, or any limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those entities or business associations that exist to make a profit.
SIGNATURE OF COMPANY REPRESENTATIVE:
TYPE/PRINT NAME AND TITLE:
DATE:

ATTACHMENT VII

SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST

This checklist is to help the company submitting proposal for the Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction ensure that all required documents have been included in its submittal.

Document and Location in Submittal	Check or Initial to Indicate Document is Attached to Submittal
Tob A Interest Statement	
Tab A – Interest Statement	
Tab B - Company submitting proposal for the TRENTON RD AT	
PROFESSIONAL DR SIGNAL CONSTRUCTION Qualification	
General Questionnaire (Attachment VI in RFP)	
Tab C – *Project Requirements Acknowledgement (Attachment V in RFP)	
Tab D – Litigation Disclosure (Attachment IV in RFP)	
Tab E – Proof of Insurability (Letter from Insurance Provider and copy of current Insurance Certificate)	
Tab F – *Insurance Requirement Acknowledgement (Attachment II in RFP)	
Tab G – Letter of Intent from Surety Company to provide Payment and Performance Bonds. (Section II in RFP Requirements)	
Tab H – Submittal Checklist (Attachment VI in RFP)	
Tab I - *House Bill 89 Verification (Attachment VI)	
Tab J- *Formal Proposal for the TRENTON RD AT PROFESSIONAL DR SIGNAL CONSTRUCTION	
1 Original* and 2 Copies of Submittal	

^{*}Documents marked with an asterisk on this checklist require a signature. Be sure they are signed prior to submittal.

Page Intentionally Blank

Document 00020

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

Owner: City of Edinburg

415 W. University Drive Edinburg, Texas 78539 Phone: (956) 388-8211 Fax: (956) 383-7111 Engineer: TEDSI Infrastructure Group, Inc

1201 E. Interstate Highway 2

Mission, Texas 78572 Phone: 956-424-7898 Fax: 956-424-7022

1.00 INVITATION

A. Bidders are invited to submit an offer for performance of a Contract to the City of Edinburg located at the above address, for the following construction Project:

Project: Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction

Located: Intersection of Trenton Rd and Professional Dr in Edinburg TX, Hidalgo County

- B. Work of the Project consists of Construction of proposed traffic signal, signing and pavement markings.
- C. The Contract Documents are identified (Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction) as listed in the Project Manual, issued by the City of Edinburg/Jose A. Sanchez, P.E. TEDSI Infrastructure Group Inc.
- D. The bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its bid, and the Owner will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.
- E. When requested, the successful Bidder shall present satisfactory evidence that Bidder has regularly engaged in furnishing products and performing construction work as proposed, and has the capital, labor, equipment, and material to execute the Work required by Contract Documents.

2.00 BID SUBMISSION

- A. Bids signed by an officer of the company and dated will be received at the City Secretary's Office, at 415 W. University Drive, Edinburg, TX 78539 until **3:00 PM** local time, on **January 20, 2020**
- B. Bids submitted after the above time will be returned to the Bidder unopened.
- C. Bids shall be submitted in United States Currency and the English language on the Bid Forms and Supplements to Bid Forms provided with this Project Manual.
- D. Oral, telephonic, facsimile, or telegraphic bids are invalid and will not receive consideration.
- E. Bids will be opened and publicly read in the City of Edinburg City Hall Community Room at 415 W. University Drive, Edinburg, TX 78539 on the same date bids are received.
- F. Bids will be irrevocable for 90 **days** from the bid date. Bidder may withdraw after 90 days without penalty if no mutual agreement can be reached.



3.00 MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL

A. Bids submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the City of Edinburg at the place and prior to the time designated for receipt of Bids. Such notice shall be in writing over the signature of the Bidder and shall be so worded as not to reveal the amount of the original Bid.

- B. Oral, telephonic, facsimile, or telegraphic modification of Bids will not receive consideration.
- C. Withdrawn Bids may be resubmitted up to the time designated for receipt of Bids.

4.00 CONTRACT TIME

- A. The Work shall be performed within the date established in the Notice to Proceed.
- B. Contractor shall pay liquidated damages in the amounts stated in Document 00500 Agreement for failure to complete the Work within the Contract Time. Contractor must provide a contract time as part of his proposal.
- C. The work is to be performed only during weekdays 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM (Monday to Friday). City recognized holidays are recommended to be avoided. Work performed during weekends (Saturday-Sunday) and holidays will incur a Contractor payment of **\$50** per hour to Owner for onsite inspection.

5.00 SECURITY DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS

A. Bids shall be accompanied by a security deposit as stated in Document 00100 - Instructions to Bidders.

6.00 EXAMINATION

A. Bid Documents are on display on the City of Edinburg website, may be examined at the location below or downloaded for free at www.civcastusa.com (Browse bids as Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction):

City of Edinburg Engineering Department – 2nd Floor 415 W. University Drive Edinburg, Texas 78539

7.00 AVAILABILITY

A. Bid Documents may be purchased from the Engineering Department or are available for printing at

http://cityofedinburg.com/departments/finance/open_bid_notices.php.

www.civcastusa.com

- B. All official notifications, addenda, and other Bidding Documents will be offered only through the designated website and www.civcastusa.com Neither Owner nor Engineer will be responsible for Bidding Documents, including addenda, if any, obtained from sources other than the designated website.
- C. Bid Documents may be purchased by bidders upon receipt of a cashier's check, certified check, money order, company check, or personal check in the amount established by the City of Edinburg or Engineer of Record. The cost includes the Project Manual w/ Specifications and one full sized set of Drawings. They can also be downloaded at no cost, as specified on 7(A).



D. The cost for the bid documents will not be refunded.

E. Bid Documents are made available only for the purpose of obtaining offers for this Project. Purchase of Bid Documents does not grant a license for other purposes.

E. On receipt of Bid Documents, verify that documents are legible and complete. Compare contents of Project Manual with Table of Contents; see that all drawings listed in the List of Drawings are included. Notify City of Edinburg should the documents be incomplete as issued.

8.00 QUESTIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

- A. Bidder is required to study Bid Documents, the site, and conditions affecting the Work, and submit written questions on interpretation of those documents and conditions, or other factors affecting the Work, to the City of Edinburg.
- B. Written questions may be submitted by facsimile or email, addressed to the Engineer. **No questions** will be accepted after 5:00 PM, January 13, 2020. All facsimile communications shall be confirmed by mailing the original correspondence to the City of Edinburg Purchasing Department, if applicable.
- C. Immediately notify the Engineer upon finding discrepancies or omissions in the Bid Documents.

9.00 ACCEPTANCE/REJECTION OF BIDS

A. The Owner reserves the right to reject or accept any bids as stated in Document 00100 - Instructions to Bidders.

10.00 PRE-BID CONFERENCE

- A. One (1) pre-bid conference will be conducted by the Owner on <u>January 13, 2020 at 9:30 AM</u> The pre-bid conference shall be conducted at the City of Edinburg Engineering Conference Room: located at 415 W. University Drive Edinburg, Texas 78539.
- B. **Attendance by prospective Bidders is highly recommended.** Sub-contractors, suppliers, and equipment suppliers may attend.
- C. Recognizing that free and open communication will benefit all participants, the Owner does not intend to limit or curtail the exchange of information between the Engineer and the prospective Bidders. However, the pre-bid conference is conducted primarily for the benefit of prospective Bidders. As such, a specific procedure will be followed during the conference:
 - All attendees will sign-in, indicating their role with the project: contractor, supplier, manufacturer, etc.
 - b. Seating priority will be given to Prospective Bidders. Sub-contractors, suppliers, and manufacturer's representatives shall remain behind the contractor area.
 - c. The Owner will make introductions of his staff and consultants.
 - d. The Owner and consultants will give a brief description of the project.



e. Only Contracting firms (Prospective Bidders) are permitted to ask questions. Sub-contractors suppliers, and manufacturer's shall deliver their questions to the Contractor they are working with for presentation.

- f. Questions and answers will be recorded and developed into Meeting Minutes. Meeting Minutes will be distributed to meeting attendees. The Owner reserves the right to use electronic recording, or some other method to record the meeting.
- D. The meeting will be conducted in English. Translators will <u>not</u> be provided.
- E. If necessary, written clarifications or instructions will be issued in the form of an Addendum. Refer to Section 00100 Instructions to Bidders for specific information concerning Addendums.

END OF DOCUMENT

Page Intentionally Blank



Document 00100

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

1.00 SUMMARY

1.01 DOCUMENT INCLUDES

- A. Bid Documents and Contract Documents.
- B. Site Assessment.
- C. Subcontractors/Suppliers/Others.
- D. Bid Submission.
- E. Bid Enclosure Requirements.
- F. Offer, Acceptance, Rejection.

1.02 RELATED DOCUMENTS

- A. Document 00020 Notice to Bidders: Date, time and place for receipt of bids; Contract Time.
- B. Document 00310 Form of Proposal.
- C. Document 00405 Schedule of Unit Price Work.
- D. Document 00450 Post Bid Procedures.
- E. Document 00500 Agreement.
- F. Document 00700 General Conditions.
- G. Document 00800 Supplementary Conditions.

2.00 BID DOCUMENTS AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

2.01 DEFINITIONS

- A. Definitions set forth in Document 00700 General Conditions and in other Contract Documents, are applicable to the Bid Documents.
- B. Addenda: Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Bids, which clarify, modify, correct, or change the Bid Documents.
- C. Alternate Bid: The total amount bid for additions to the Work, as described in the Bid Documents. Each Alternate Bid shall include the cost of effects on adjacent or related components, and the Contractor's overhead and profit.
- Bid Documents: The Project Manual and Drawings, including Addenda, plus Notice to Bidders, Instructions to Bidders, and Supplements to Bid Forms identified in Document 00310 -Form of Proposal.
- E. Bidder: A person or entity who submits a Bid.
- F. Low Bidder: The apparent successful Bidder who qualifies as a responsible Bidder and who submits the Bid with the lowest Total Bid Price.

00100-1 of 9



- G. Bid, Offer, Bidding: The act of submitting a complete and properly signed offer in accordance with these Instructions to Bidders. The Bid will be in the English language.
- H. Total Bid Price: The monetary amount for performing the Work as identified by the Bidder in Document 00310 Form of Proposal, which amount includes Cash Allowances and Alternate Bids, if any. Bid Price(s) will be in United States.
- I. Security Deposit: A certified check, cashiers check or bid bond in at least the sum of 5 percent of the Total Bid Price which includes Cash Allowances and Alternate Bids, if any.

2.02 QUESTIONS, INTERPRETATIONS

- A. Bidder shall: 1) carefully study the Bid Documents and compare them with each other, 2) examine the site, conditions thereon, and local conditions, and 3) report at once to the Engineer any errors, inconsistencies or ambiguities discovered.
- B. Bidder assumes sole responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete documents, by Bidder itself or by its prospective Subcontractors and Suppliers.
- C. Direct questions to Engineer.
- D. Verbal discussions and answers are not binding. Requests from Bidders for clarifications and interpretations of content of documents must be in writing (mail or facsimile transmission only), and must be received not less than 5 business days before the date set for receipt of Bids.
- E. The reply will be by Addendum.

2.03 ADDENDA

- A. Addenda issued to Bidding Requirements are applicable only during the bidding period.

 Addenda to the Post-Bid Procedures are applicable only through the issuance of the Notice to Proceed. Any Addenda issued to Contract Forms, Conditions of the Contract, Specifications or Drawings become a part of the Contract Documents. Include resultant costs in the Total Bid Price.
- B. Addenda will be issued by the Engineer to Bidders of record by email. Addenda will also be posted on the City website.
- C. Each Bidder shall ascertain, prior to submitting a Bid that the Bidder has received all Addenda issued. The Bidder shall acknowledge their receipt in the place indicated in Document 00310 Form of Proposal.

2.04 SUBSTITUTIONS OF MATERIALS/EQUIPMENT

- A. No substitutions will be considered on this Project during the bidding period.
- B. Voluntary substitutions by the Bidder will not be considered.

3.00 SITE ASSESSMENT

A. Bidders shall examine the Project site before submitting a Bid, become familiar with local conditions under which the Work will be performed, conduct appropriate explorations, and correlate personal observations with requirements of the Bid Documents. Work will be



- performed in public right-of-way and City property. The site may be examined at any time during daylight hours.
- B. Bidder shall make site investigations to the extent Bidder deems necessary to ascertain the extent of subsurface conditions and variations thereof.
- C. Failure to perform such investigations during the bid period shall not relieve Bidder from responsibility for investigations, interpretations and proper use of available information in preparation of Bidder's proposal.
- D. Publications by the United States Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service and others may be helpful to the bidder in his subsurface site investigation.
- E. Geotechnical investigation reports for the proposed project site may also be helpful to the bidder in his subsurface site investigation.

4.00 SUBCONTRACTORS/SUPPLIERS/OTHERS

A. The Owner reserves the right to reject a proposed Subcontractor or Supplier for reasonable cause.

5.00 BID SUBMISSION

5.01 SUBMISSION PROCEDURES

- A. Bidders shall be solely responsible for the delivery of their Bids in the manner and time prescribed in Document 00020 Notice to Bidders.
- B. Submit **one copy of the original executed offer** on the bid forms provided, properly signed, with required Security Deposit, and other Supplements to Bid Forms, in a sealed, opaque envelope. On the outside of the envelope, clearly indicate that it is a sealed bid and include the Bidder's name, Project name and Owner name. Bids submitted by mail shall be enclosed in a separate envelope addressed for mailing, and identifying the enclosure as a bid. In addition, **four copies must also be submitted**.
- C. Fill in all blanks in the Bid forms. Acknowledge receipt of Addenda. Bid all Alternate Bids required by Bid Documents.
- D. A summary of submitted Bids will be made available to Bidders following the Bid opening.
- E. All costs and expenses incurred by the Bidder that are associated with preparation of the Bid shall be paid by and be the sole responsibility of the Bidder.

5.02 BID INELIGIBILITY

- A. Failure to provide required Security Deposit in the proper amount will be cause to declare the Bid invalid.
- B. Improperly completed information may be cause for declaring the Bid invalid.
- C. Bids that are unsigned, improperly signed, illegible, obscure, altered, or which contain qualifications or irregularities of any kind, may be declared invalid. Document 00310 - Form of Proposal, Supplements to the Bid Forms identified in the Form of Proposal, or enclosures which are improperly prepared, may be declared invalid.



6.00 BID ENCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

6.01 SUPPLEMENTS TO BID FORMS

A. Bid submittals shall include any other documents specified in Document 00310 - Form of Proposal.

6.02 SECURITY DEPOSIT

- A. Bids shall be accompanied by a Security Deposit.
- B. The Security Deposit of the Bidders will be retained until after the Contract is executed.
- C. After execution of the Contract, Security Deposits will be returned to the Bidders.
- D. If no Contract is awarded, all Security Deposits will be returned to the respective Bidders.

6.03 CERTIFIED CHECK/CASHIER'S CHECK

- A. Make certified check or cashier's check (security checks) payable to the Owner.
- B. The security checks are submitted on the condition that if the Bidder is named apparent Low Bidder and then fails either to timely execute the Agreement or to timely provide any required bonds, or to do both, then in that event the Owner will cash the security check.
- C. The Owner will retain an amount equal to the difference between the Bid of the Bidder providing the security check and the Bid of the Bidder who is finally awarded the Contract and who executes the Agreement and provides the required bonds.
- D. Any balance remaining will be reimbursed by the Owner to the Bidder who provided the security check.

6.04 BID BOND

- A. The bid bond must be a valid and enforceable bond, executed by a corporate Surety authorized by the Texas State Board of Insurance to conduct insurance business in the State of Texas and shall comply with other requirements set out by law or included in the Bid Documents.
- B. Endorse the bid bond in the name of the Owner as obligee, signed by the Contractor as principal and executed, signed and sealed by the Surety.
- C. The bid bond must be conditioned such that if the Bidder is named apparent Low Bidder and then fails either to execute the Agreement timely or to provide any required bonds timely, or to do both, then in that event the Surety will be obligated to pay to the Owner an amount equal to the difference between the Bid of the Bidder on whom the bond was written and the Bid of the Bidder who is finally awarded the Contract and who executes the Agreement and provides the required bonds, up to the penal sum of the Bond.
- D. In addition, the Owner expressly reserves the right to reject any Bid if the Bid Bond (or Bid Bond rider) conditions the Bid in a way inconsistent with the Bid Documents. Examples include but are not limited to:
 - a condition prohibiting the Owner from making a Claim against the Performance Bond Surety that would be allowable under the Contract and Performance Bond form published in the Bid Documents;

00100-4 of 9



- 2. a condition that provides that the Performance Bond Surety cannot be held liable for completing the Contract in case of default; or
- 3. a condition limiting the Performance Bond Surety's liability for damages inconsistent with the Contract and Performance Bond form published in the Bid Documents.
- E. On all contracts that will equal to or exceed \$100,000, the performance bond and the payment bond must be provided by a surety that has a rating of "A" from AM BEST, MOODY'S or STANDARD & POORS.

In the event that the total bid amount is \$50,000 or less, the successful contractor has the option to enter into a single payment contract with the City of Edinburg in lieu of a Performance Bond, provided that no money shall be paid to the contractor until completion of the work by the contractor and accepted of same by the City of Edinburg. In the event that the total bid amount is \$25,000 or less, the successful contractor has the option to enter into a single payment contract with the City of Edinburg in lieu of a Payment and Performance Bond.

6.05 BID FORM SIGNATURE

- A. Document 00310 Form of Proposal shall be signed by the Bidder as follows:
 - 1. Sole Proprietorship: Full name, address, and signature of sole proprietor, signed in the presence of a witness who will also sign. Insert the words "Sole Proprietor" under the signature.
 - 2. Partnership: Name and address of the firm, signature of each partner in the presence of a witness who will also sign. The full name and address of each partner shall be given.
 - 3. Corporation: Signature of duly authorized officer.
 - 4. Joint Venture: Each party of the joint venture shall execute Document 00310 Form of Proposal under their respective seals in a manner appropriate to such party as described above, similar to the requirements of a Partnership.

7.00 DETERMINING LOWEST RESPONSIVE, RESPONSIBLE BIDDER

7.01 BIDDERS QUALIFICATIONS

A. Bids must contain evidence of Bidder's qualifications to do business in the state of Texas. To demonstrate that the Bidder is responsible and able to perform the Work, funding policies dictate each Bidder must submit, as a part of the Bidding Documents, all of the items listed below:

00310 Form of Proposal

00405 Schedule of Unit Price Work

00411 Bid Bond

00420 Statement of Bidder's Qualifications

00423 Certification of Bidder's Qualifications

00425 Equipment & Material Suppliers List

00460 Non-Collusion Affidavit

00429 Non-Bribery Model Form

00100-5 of 9



- B. Only the above data/information provided with the Bidding Documents may be used for evaluation and developing the Recommendation to Award by the Engineer. Bidders will not be allowed to substitute any "Key Personnel" other than alternates presented in the bid or examples of previous projects submitted in the bid package. Minor clarifications of submitted materials will be permitted after bid opening. Such request for clarifications will only be initiated by the Engineer in writing and only written responses will be accepted.
- C. In determining the lowest responsible, responsive Bidder, in addition to price, the following elements will be considered:
 - 1. The quality, availability, and adaptability of the supplies, materials, equipment, or contractual services, to the particular use required;
 - The ability, capacity and skill of the bidder to perform the contract or to provide the service required;
 - 3. Whether the bidder can perform the contract and provide the service promptly, or within the time required, without delay or interference;
 - 4. The character, responsibility, integrity, reputation, and experience of the bidder;
 - 5. The quality of performance of previous services, or contracts;
 - 6. The previous and existing compliance by the bidder with laws relating to the contract or service;
 - Any previous or existing noncompliance by the bidder with specifications, or requirements relating to time of submission of specified data such as samples, models, drawings, certificates, or other information;
 - 8. The sufficiency of the financial resources and ability of the bidder to perform the contract or to provide the service; and
 - 9. The ability of the bidder to provide competent personnel for the job, as demonstrated by the submitted listing of the names and the skills of experienced personnel, including potential alternates, whom the bidder currently employs and who will be available for performing this work:
 - 10. The experience of the bidder in performing work similar in type, size and complexity to this project, as demonstrated by a listing of projects, with verifiable references (names, addresses, phone numbers, etc.), successfully completed.
 - 11. Bidder shall provide with the Bid an experience statement with pertinent information regarding similar projects and other evidence of qualifications for each such Subcontractor, Supplier, person, or organization.

7.02 BIDDER MUST MEET THE FOLLOWING MINIMUM CRITERIA:

- (A) The Bidder must demonstrate **Successful Completion during the last five (5) years of at least one project comparable in nature and scope to this project. The comparable scope shall be at least 1/4 the size of the proposed project.
- (B) At least two *Key Personnel, and their potential alternate, employed by the Bidder must have a minimum of five (5) years experience in similar construction projects.



- (C) The Bidder must have an employee, to be dedicated to this project, who is experienced in scheduling, with demonstrated ability in employing scheduling techniques similar to those to be used for this project.
- (D) Bidder may, at its discretion, include resumes of alternates for Key Personnel, and if in the process of bid evaluation, the Owner rejects any Key Personnel, the Owner will consider the alternates.
- * KEY PERSONNEL: Individuals who will be directly assigned to this project. Resumes of Key Personnel must be submitted with the Bid (include in Document 00420) and accepted by the Owner in order for Bidder to receive the Award. At the minimum, the resumes for the following personnel that are to be assigned to this Project are to be submitted.
- (a) Owner or Principals of the Bidder
- (b) The Project Manager
- (c) The Project Superintendent
- (d) The Project Scheduler
- (e) Minimum of two Foremen

**SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION: Defined as completion of a project on time, no more than thirty (30) days later than the original contract time, and within budget, within 5% of the original contract price. If there is any project submitted by the Bidder as qualifying, but which does not meet these requirements, in order to be fully responsible, the Bidder is required to submit detailed information on that project demonstrating what caused the increases to cost or time. The name and telephone numbers of the Design Engineer and the Client are to be provided for evaluation as to whether the project may be considered "successful". For any project where liquidated damages were assessed, the Bidder will not be considered to have been on time.

7.03 BIDDERS ARE REQUIRED TO SUBMIT WITH THEIR BID:

00310 Form of Proposal

00405 Schedule of Unit Price Work

00411 Bid Bond

00420 Statement of Bidder's Qualifications

00423 Certification of Bidder's Qualifications

00425 Equipment & Material Suppliers List

00429 Non-Bribery Model Form

00460 Non-Collusion Affidavit

(A) Failure to submit these items with the bid will result in a finding that the bid is non-responsive and the bid will be disqualified.

7.04 The Owner will evaluate and compare only the bids determined to be responsive in accordance with the following:

- (a) Is the bid complete (all Bidding Documents submitted);
- (b) Have documents been properly signed;
- (c) Are the required bid securities part of the bid package; and



- (d) Are there any computational errors present?
- 7.05 The Owner reserves the right to accept or reject any variation, deviation, or alternative offer which is not submitted in accordance with the bidding documents. Variations, deviations, alternative offers, and other factors that are in excess of the requirements of the bidding documents or which otherwise result in unsolicited benefits for the Owner, shall not be taken into account in bid evaluation.
- 7.06 In evaluating the bids, the Owner will determine for each bid, the evaluated bid price by adjusting the bid price as follows:
 - A. Making any correction for errors;
 - B. Excluding provisional sums and the provision, if any, for contingencies in the price schedules;
 - C. Taking an appropriate adjustment for any other quantifiable acceptable non-material variations, deviations or alternative offers; and
 - D. Making appropriate adjustments to reflect additional factors in the manner and to the extent indicated in the Bidding Documents.
- 7.07 The Owner will award the contract to the bidder whose bid has been determined to be substantially responsive to the bidding documents and who has offered the lowest evaluated bid price provided that such bidder has been determined to be qualified to perform the contract satisfactorily in accordance with the provisions of the Bidding Documents.

8.00 OFFER ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION

8.01 ACCEPTANCE

- A. The Owner will give notice of intent to award the Contract to the Low Bidder. Acceptance by the Owner is conditioned upon Bidder's submission of information for establishing satisfactory qualifications, if required; and execution of submittals required in Document 00450 Post-Bid Procedures.
- B. The Bid shall remain open to acceptance and shall be irrevocable for the Period for Bid Acceptance stated in Document 00020 Notice to Bidders.
- C. Additional time taken by Contractor to fulfill requirements for submittals, including review and resubmittal, shall be added to the acceptance period.

8.02 REJECTION

A. The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all Bids or to accept any Bid deemed advantageous to it.

8.03 BID TABULATION

- A. The Engineer will tabulate, record, and evaluate the Bids of all responsible Bidders after the Bid opening.
- B. In tabulating Bids, the amount written for a unit price governs over the total amount calculated. Therefore, the Engineer may correct any mathematical errors in the extension of the total amount based on the unit price given by a Bidder and adjust their Total Bid Price.

9.00 APPROVAL BY THE FUNDING AGENCIES



A. All addenda, contracts, work directives, change orders, time extensions, and other matters specified in the Contract Documents are not valid until approved in accordance with the City of Edinburg's Purchasing Policies and Procedures Manual.

END OF DOCUMENT



CITY OF EDINBURG INTENT TO RESPOND

Document 00300

CONTRACTOR NOTICE OF INTENT TO RESPOND

City of Edinburg

Attn: Mardoqueo Hinojosa, P.E.

Owner:

Firms interested in submitting a bid on the project as outlined in the specifications, should indicate their intention by signing, dating and returning the form to the address below prior to **January 13, 2020**, so that they may receive any addendums to the specifications should the need arise.

Engineer:

TEDSI Infrastructure Group, Inc.

Attn: Jose A. Sanchez, P.E.

	415 W. University Drive Edinburg, Texas 78539 (956) 388-8204 Cc: LFuentes@CityOfEdinburg.com	1201 E. Interstate Highway 2 Mission, Texas 78572 (956) 424-7898
Bidder: _	[Please print or type the full name of your prop	rietorship, partnership, corporation, or joint
	venture.*)	
Contact	Name: [Please print or type name]	[Title]
Address	[Mailing]	
	[Street, if different]	
Telephor	ne:	
	[Print or type telephone number]	
Fax:		
	[Print or type telephone number]	
Email:	[Print or type telephone number]	
	[Print or type telephone number]	

END OF DOCUMENT



CITY OF EDINBURG INTENT TO RESPOND

Page Intentionally Blank



Document 00310

FORM OF PROPOSAL

To: CITY	OF EDINBURG	
Project N	No.: <u>RFP 2020-04</u>	
Project:	Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction	
Bidder:		
	[Print or type full name of proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or joint venture]	
1.0	OFFER	
Contract I	Having examined the place of the Work and all matters referred to in the Bid Documents, an Documents prepared by or approved by the Engineer for the named Project, we, the under offer to enter into a Contract to perform the Work for the Total Bid Price of:	signed,
		(Dollars)
	[Print or type in words, Bidder's Total Bid Price]	
(\$)
(+	[Print or type in figures, Bidder's Total Bid Price]	
	180	
	[Calendar Days]	

Unit Price or Combination Stipulated Price and Unit Price Contract. If the Bid is for a Unit Price Contract or a combination of Stipulated Price and Unit Price Contract, the Total Bid Price, including Cash Allowances, if any, is tabulated in: Document 00405 - Schedule of Unit Price Work for a Project with no Alternate Bids, or Document 00407 - Schedule of Alternates for a Project with Alternate Bids.

Cash Allowances. All Cash Allowances, totaled in either Document 00405 - Schedule of Unit Price Work, as applicable, and described in the Bid Documents are included in the Total Bid Price.

Changes in Contract Price Due to Variations in Actual Quantities. For items quoted in Document 00405 - Schedule of Unit Price Work, the Total Bid Price is based in whole or in part on the Unit Price multiplied by the quantity for each of the items listed. The Contract Price is subject to change due to variation in the actual quantities of each item in the completed Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Alternate Bids. Alternate Bid work, as described in the Bid Documents, will be performed for an amount added or deducted to the Total Bid Price for each Alternate Bid that is accepted by the Owner. The Owner may accept or reject any or all Alternate Bids.

Security Deposit. Included herewith is a Security Deposit in the amount of 5 percent of the greatest amount of the Total Bid Price, or Total Alternate Bid Price(s).

Period for Bid Acceptance. This offer shall be open to acceptance and is irrevocable for 90 days from the Bid date. That period may be extended by mutual written agreement of the Owner and the Bidder. After 90 days, the Bidder may withdraw without penalty if no mutual agreement can be reached.



2.0 CONTRACT TIME

If this offer is accepted, Substantial Completion of the Work will be achieved within the time stated in Document 00020 - Notice to Bidders. The Date of Commencement will be established by the Notice to Proceed.

3.0 ADDENDA

The following Addenda have been received. The modifications to the Bid Documents noted therein have been considered and all costs relating thereto are included in the Bid Price:

	Addendum No	_, dated	
	Addendum No	_, dated	
	Addendum No	_, dated	
	Addendum No	_, dated	
	Addendum No	_, dated	
	Addendum No	, dated	
4.0	SUPPLEMENTS TO THIS BID:		
	The following Supplements are attach	ned as an integral part of this Bid:	
5.0	Document 00411 – Bi Document 00420 – St Document 00423 – Co	chedule of Unit Price Work, if applicable Bid Bond (Form supplied by Bidder) Bitatement of Bidder's Qualifications Certification to Bidder's Experience & Qualifications Equipment & Material Suppliers List	
	Bidder:		
	[Please print or type the full venture.*)	I name of your proprietorship, partnership, corporation, o	or joint
	By:[Signature]**		
	Name: [Please print or type name]	[Title]	
	Address:		
	[Mailing]		
	[Street, if different]		



Te	lep	hc	n	e:

[Print or type telephone number]

* If the Bid is a joint venture, add additional Bid form signature sheets for each member of the joint venture.

** The undersigned, as bidder, certifies that the only person or parties interested in this proposal as principals are those named herein; that the Bidder has not, either directly or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the Contract for the Project.

Note: This document constitutes a <u>government record</u>, as defined by § 37.01 of the Texas Penal Code. Submission of a false government record is punishable as provided In § 37.10 of the Texas Penal Code.

END OF DOCUMENT



Page Intentionally Blank



Document 00405

SCHEDULE OF UNIT PRICE WORK

This Document, constitutes a Supplement to Document 00310 - Form of Proposal. When a Contract is awarded, this Document becomes a supplement to Document 00500 - Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor.

BASE BID						
SPEC NO.	DESCRIPTION	QTY	UNIT	UNIT PRICE (1) (in figures)	UNIT TOTAL (in figures)	
0416-6032	DRILL SHAFT (TRF SIG POLE) (36 IN)	64	LF	\$	\$	
0500-6001	MOBILIZATION	1	LS	\$	\$	
0502-6001	BARRICADES, SIGNS AND TRAFFIC HANDLING	6	MO	\$	\$	
0506-6038	TEMP SEDMT CONT FENCE (INSTALL)	150	LF	\$	\$	
0506-6039	TEMP SEDMT CONT FENCE (REMOVE)	150	LF	\$	\$	
0618-6016	CONDT (PVC) (SCH 40) (1")	52	LF	\$	\$	
0618-6023	CONDT (PVC) (SCH 40) (2")	791	LF	\$	\$	
0618-6033	CONDT (PVC) (SCH 40) (4")	36	LF	\$	\$	
0618-6047	CONDT (PVC) (SCH 80) (2") (BORE)	50	LF	\$	\$	
0620-6007	ELEC CONDR (NO.8) BARE	20	LF	\$	\$	
0620-6009	ELEC CONDR (NO.6) BARE	20	LF	\$	\$	
0620-6010	ELEC CONDR (NO.6) INSULATED	60	LF	\$	\$	
0621-6005	TRAY CABLE (4 CONDR) (12 AWG)	215	LF	\$	\$	
0624-6002	GROUND BOX TY A (122311)W/APRON	11	EA	\$	\$	
0624-6008	GROUND BOX TY C (162911)W/APRON	1	EA	\$	\$	
0625-6002	ZINC-COAT STL WIRE STRAND (3/16")	1158	LF	\$	\$	
0625-6004	ZINC-COAT STL WIRE STRAND (5/16")	951	LF	\$	\$	
0628-6301	ELC SRV TY T 120/240 000(NS)GS(L)TS(O)	1	EA	\$	\$	
0644-6001	IN SM RD SN SUP&AM TY10BWG(1)SA(P)	8	EA	\$	\$	
0644-6076	REMOVE SM RD SN SUP&AM	1	EA	\$	\$	
0666-6036	REFL PAV MRK TY I (W)8"(SLD)(100MIL)	200	LF	\$	\$	
0666-6315	RE PM W/RET REQ TY I (Y)4"(SLD)(100MIL)	1173	LF	\$	\$	
0668-6076	PREFAB PAV MRK TY C (W) (24") (SLD)	216	LF LF	\$	\$ \$	
0668-6077	PREFAB PAV MRK TY C (W) (24) (SLD)	1	EA	\$	\$	
		3	EA	\$	\$	
0668-6085	PREFAB PAV MRK TY C (W) (WORD)	22	LF	\$		
0668-6108	PREFAB PAV MRK TY C (Y) (24") (SLD)				\$	
0672-6007	REFL PAV MRKR TY I-C	18	EA	\$	\$	
0672-6009	REFL PAV MRKR TY II-A-A	62	EA	\$	\$	
0677-6001	ELIM EXT PAV MRK & MRKS (4")	1200	LF	\$	\$	
0680-6002	INSTALL HWY TRF SIG (ISOLATED)	1	EA	\$	\$	
0682-6001	VEH SIG SEC (12")LED(GRN)	4	EA	\$	\$	
0682-6002	VEH SIG SEC (12")LED(GRN ARW)	3	EA	\$	\$	
0682-6003	VEH SIG SEC (12")LED(YEL)	4	EA	\$	\$	
0682-6004	VEH SIG SEC (12")LED(YEL ARW)	4	EA	\$	\$	
0682-6005	VEH SIG SEC (12")LED(RED)	6	EA	\$	\$	
0682-6006	VEH SIG SEC (12")LED(RED ARW)	1	EA	\$	\$	
0682-6023	BACK PLATE (12")(3 SEC)	4	EA	\$	\$	
0682-6024		1	EA	\$	\$	
0684-6010	TRF SIG CBL (TY A)(12 AWG)(5 CONDR)	609	LF	\$	\$	
0684-6012	TRF SIG CBL (TY A)(12 AWG)(7 CONDR)	215	LF	\$	\$	
0684-6080	TRF SIG CBL (TY C)(14 AWG)(2 CONDR)	2126	LF	\$	\$	
0686-6019	INS TRF SIG PL AM (S)STR(TY D)	2	EA	\$	\$	
0686-6020	INS TRF SIG PL AM (S)STR(TY D)LUM	2	EA	\$	\$	
0688-6004	VEH LP DETECT (SAWCUT)	1230	LF	\$	\$	
1000-6001	OPTICOM SYSTEM	1	EA	\$	\$	
	DISCREPANCIES, UNIT PRICE RULES OVER UNIT TO	OTAL				



TOTAL BASE BID PRICE (Sum of Base Bid Unit Total Prices) \$

Notes:

⁽¹⁾ United States Dollars. In the event of a discrepancy, this column shall govern.

ALTERNATE BID 1						
SPEC NO.	DESCRIPTION	QTY	UNIT	UNIT PRICE (1) (in figures)	UNIT TOTAL (in figures)	
0531-6001	CONC SIDEWALKS (4")	18	SY	\$	\$	
0531-6018	CURB RAMPS (TY 1)	1	SY	\$	\$	
0531-6010	CURB RAMPS (TY 7)	1	EA	\$	\$	
0644-6001	IN SM RD SN SUP&AM TY10BWG(1)SA(P)	3	EA	\$	\$	
IN CASE OF DISCREPANCIES, UNIT PRICE RULES OVER UNIT TOTAL						

TOTAL ALTERNATE BID 1 PI	RICE (Sum of Alternate Bid 1 Unit Total Prices)
Notes: (1) United States Dollars. In the ev	rent of a discrepancy, this column shall govern.
Project: Trenton Rd at Professiona	Il Dr Signal Construction .
Project No. <u>RFP 2020-04</u>	Bidder's Signature:
Company:	Name:
Date:	Title:

END OF DOCUMENT



Document 00411

BID BOND

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

This section describes the standardized bid bond form to be submitted with the bid on the project.

- 1.02 REFERENCES Not Used
- 1.03 DEFINTIONS Section 0700
- 1.04 BID BOND FORMS

Bidder is to inset an original bid bond or a copy of cashiers check provided for bid bond Purposes. Original check is to be submitted along with bid.

PART 2 - PRODUCT - Not Used

PART 3 - EXECUTION

STANDARIZED FORMS FOLLOW



BID BOND (PENAL SUM FORM)

Bidder	Surety
Name: [Full formal name of Bidder]	Name: [Full formal name of Surety]
Address (principal place of business):	Address (principal place of business):
[Address of Bidder's principal place of business]	[Address of Surety's principal place of business]
Owner	Bid
Name: [Full formal name of Owner]	Project (name and location):
Address (principal place of business):	[Owner project/contract name, and location of the project]
[Address of Owner's principal place of business]	the project;
	Bid Due Date: [Enter date bid is due]
Bond	
Penal Sum: [Amount]	
Date of Bond: [Date]	
Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound he do each cause this Bid Bond to be duly executed by	
Bidder	Surety
(Full formal name of Bidder)	(Full formal name of Surety) (corporate seal)
Ву:	Ву:
(Signature)	(Signature) (Attach Power of Attorney)
Name:	Name:
(Printed or typed)	(Printed or typed)
Title:	Tial a
	Title:
Attest:	Title:Attest:
Attest: (Signature)	
(Signature) Name:	Attest: (Signature) Name:
(Signature) Name:(Printed or typed)	Attest: (Signature) Name: (Printed or typed)
(Signature) Name: (Printed or typed) Title:	Attest: (Signature) Name:



- 1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of the penal sum is the extent of Bidder's and Surety's liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bond will be Owner's sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder.
- 2. Default of Bidder occurs upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.
- 3. This obligation will be null and void if:
 - 3.1. Owner accepts Bidder's Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or
 - 3.2. All Bids are rejected by Owner, or
 - 3.3. Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required by Paragraph 5 hereof).
- 4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.
- 5. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of Award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including extensions does not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety's written consent.
- 6. No suit or action will be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default required in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety, and in no case later than one year after the Bid due date.
- 7. Any suit or action under this Bond will be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the state in which the Project is located.
- 8. Notices required hereunder must be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States Postal Service registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and will be deemed to be effective upon receipt by the party concerned.
- 9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such Bond and bind the Surety thereby.



10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond will be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute governs and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith continues in full force and effect.

11. The term "Bid" as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

END OF SECTION

1.02

DOCUMENT 00420

STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS

ARTICLE 1—GENERAL INFORMATION

1.01 Provide contact information for the Business:

Legal Na	ame of Business:				
Corpora	te Office				
Name:				Phone number	er:
Title:				Email address	5:
Business	s address of corpo	rate office:		·	
Local Of	fice				
Name:				Phone number	er:
Title:				Email address	5:
Business	s address of local	office:			·
Provide	information on th	ne Business's	organiza	ational structure:	
Form of	Business:	ole Proprieto	rship 🗆	Partnership □ Co	rporation
☐ Limite				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	following companies:
1.				•	
2.					
3.					
Provide	a separate Qualif	ication Stater	ment for	each Joint Ventu	rer.
Date Bu	siness was forme	d:	5	State in which Bus	iness was formed:
Is this B	usiness authorize	d to operate	in the Pr	roject location?	☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Pending



1.03	Identify all busines: (25% or greater) ov		whole or in	part (25% or	greater), or that are wholly or
	Name of business:		Aff	iliation:	
	Address:		I		
	Name of business:		Aff	iliation:	
	Address:		<u> </u>	•	
	Name of business:		Aff	iliation:	
	Address:			<u>.</u>	
.04		n regarding the Business's	· ·	artners, and I	imits of authority.
	Name:		Title:		
		contracts: ☐ Yes ☐ No	<u> </u>	of Authority:	\$
	Name:		Title:		
	Authorized to sign	contracts: ☐ Yes ☐ No	Limit c	of Authority:	\$
	Name:		Title:		
	Authorized to sign	contracts: ☐ Yes ☐ No	Limit c	of Authority:	\$
	Name:		Title:		
. RTIC .01	LE 2—LICENSING Provide information	n regarding licensure for E	Business, if	applicable:	
	Name of License:				
	Licensing Agency:				
	License No:		Expiration	Date:	
	Name of License:			<u> </u>	
	Licensing Agency:				
	License No:		Expiration	Date:	



ARTICLE 3—DIVERSE BUSINESS CERTIFICATIONS

3.01 Provide information regarding Business's Diverse Business Certification, if any. Provide evidence of current certification.

Certification	Certifying Agency	Certification Date
☐ Disadvantaged Business Enterprise		
☐ Minority Business Enterprise		
☐ Woman-Owned Business Enterprise		
☐ Small Business Enterprise		
☐ Disabled Business Enterprise		
☐ Veteran-Owned Business Enterprise		
☐ Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business		
☐ HUBZone Business (Historically Underutilized) Business		
□ Other		
□ None		

ARTICLE 4—SAFETY

4.01 Provide information regarding Business's safety organization and safety performance.

Name of Business's Safety Officer:		
Safety Certifications		
Certification Name	Issuing Agency	Expiration

4.02 Provide Worker's Compensation Insurance Experience Modification Rate (EMR), Total Recordable Frequency Rate (TRFR) for incidents, and Total Number of Recorded Manhours (MH) for the last 3 years and the EMR, TRFR, and MH history for the last 3 years of any proposed Subcontractor(s) that will provide Work valued at 10% or more of the Contract Price. Provide documentation of the EMR history for Business and Subcontractor(s).

Year									
Company	EMR	TRFR	МН	EMR	TRFR	МН	EMR	TRFR	МН



ARTICLE 5—FINANCIAL

5.01 Provide information regarding the Business's financial stability. Provide the most recent audited financial statement, and if such audited financial statement is not current, also provide the most current financial statement.

Financial Institution:			
Business address:			
Date of Business's mo	st recent financial statement:		☐ Attached
Date of Business's mo	st recent audited financial statement:		☐ Attached
Financial indicators from	om the most recent financial statement		
Contractor's Current R	Ratio (Current Assets ÷ Current Liabilities)	
	tio ((Cash and Cash Equivalents + Accour ts) ÷ Current Liabilities)	ts Receivable +	

ARTICLE 6—SURETY INFORMATION

6.01 Provide information regarding the surety company that will issue required bonds on behalf of the Business, including but not limited to performance and payment bonds.

Surety Name:				
Surety is a corpo	ration organiz	zed and existing u	nder the laws of the	state of:
Is surety authoriz	zed to provide	e surety bonds in	the Project location?	Yes □ No
Federal Bonds ar	nd as Accepta	ble Reinsuring Co	,	cceptable Sureties on in Department Circular 570 of the Treasury?
Mailing Address				
(principal place o	of business):			
Physical Address				
(principal place o	of business):			
Phone (main):			Phone (claims):	



ARTICLE 7—INSURANCE

Provide information regarding Business's insurance company(s), including but not limited to its Commercial General Liability carrier. Provide information for each provider. 7.01

	Name of insurar	nce provider, a	and typ	e of policy (CLE, auto,	etc.):		
	In	surance Provid	der		Туре	e of Polic	y (Coverage	Provided)
								1
	Are providers lic					Project	location?	☐ Yes ☐ No
	Does provider h		est Rat	ing of A-VII	or better?			☐ Yes ☐ No
	Mailing Address (principal place							
	(principal place	oi busiiless).						
	Physical Address							
	(principal place	of business):						
	Dhono (main):				Phone (cla	imc).		
	Phone (main):				PHONE (CIA	11115).		
	LE 8—CONSTRUC							
8.01	Provide informa	tion that will i	identify	the overall	size and ca	apacity o	of the Busine	ess.
	Average numbe	r of current fu	II-time	employees:				
	Estimate of reve	enue for the cu	urrent y	/ear:				
	Estimate of reve	nue for the p	revious	year:				
8.02	Provide informa	tion regardinç	g the Bu	usiness's pre	evious cont	racting e	experience.	
	Years of experie	nce with proje	ects like	e the propos	ed project	:		
	As a general cor	ntractor:		As a joint	venturer:			
	Has Business, or	a predecesso	r in inte	erest, or an	affiliate ide	entified i	n Paragraph	า 1.03:
	Been disqualif ☐ Yes ☐ No	ied as a bidde	r by an	y local, state	e, or federa	al agency	within the	last 5 years?
	Been barred fr ☐ Yes ☐ No	rom contractir	ng by ai	ny local, sta	te, or feder	al agend	cy within the	e last 5 years?
	Been released	from a bid in	the pas	st 5 years? [☐ Yes ☐ No)		
	Defaulted on a	a project or fa	iled to	complete ar	y contract	awarde	d to it? □ Y	es □ No



Refused to construct or refused to provide materials defined in the contract documents or in
a change order? □ Yes □ No
Been a party to any currently pending litigation or arbitration? \square Yes \square No
Provide full details in a separate attachment if the response to any of these questions is Yes.

- 8.03 List all projects currently under contract in Schedule A and provide indicated information.
- 8.04 List a minimum of three and a maximum of six projects completed in the last 5 years in Schedule B and provide indicated information to demonstrate the Business's experience with projects similar in type and cost of construction.
- 8.05 In Schedule C, provide information on key individuals whom Business intends to assign to the Project. Provide resumes for those individuals included in Schedule C. Key individuals include the Project Manager, Project Superintendent, Quality Manager, and Safety Manager. Resumes may be provided for Business's key leaders as well.

ARTICLE 9—REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS

- 9.01 Provide the following information with the Statement of Qualifications:
 - A. If Business is a Joint Venture, separate Qualifications Statements for each Joint Venturer, as required in Paragraph 1.02.
 - B. Diverse Business Certifications if required by Paragraph 3.01.
 - C. Certification of Business's safety performance if required by Paragraph 4.02.
 - D. Financial statements as required by Paragraph 5.01.
 - E. Attachments providing additional information as required by Paragraph 8.02.
 - F. Schedule A (Current Projects) as required by Paragraph 8.03.
 - G. Schedule B (Previous Experience with Similar Projects) as required by Paragraph 8.04.
 - H. Schedule C (Key Individuals) and resumes for the key individuals listed, as required by Paragraph 8.05.
 - I. Additional items as pertinent.



This Statement of Qua	alifications is offered by:
Business:	
	(typed or printed name of organization)
By:	(individual's signature)
Nome	(inaividual 8 signature)
Name:	(typed or printed)
Title:	(constanting d)
D.	(typed or printed)
Date:	(date signed)
(If Business is a corposign.)	oration, a partnership, or a joint venture, attach evidence of authority to
Attest:	(individual's signature)
Name:	(mand an arist d)
Title:	(typed or printed)
	(typed or printed)
Address for giving no	
Designated Represent	ative:
Name:	(typed or printed)
Title:	(typed of prince)
	(typed or printed)
Address:	
Phone:	
Email:	
L/111U11.	



Schedule A—Current Projects

Name of Organization						
Project Owner			Project Name			
General Description of Project	oject					
Project Cost			Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Superintendent	tendent	Safet	Safety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name						
Reference Contact Inform	Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates approval to contacting the names individuals as a reference)	approval to contacting t	the names indiv	iduals as a r	eference)	
	Name	Title/Position	Organization	ıtion	Telephone	Email
Owner						
Designer						
Construction Manager						
Project Owner			Project Name			
General Description of Project	oject					
Project Cost			Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Superintendent	tendent	Safet	Safety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name						
Reference Contact Inform	Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates approval to contacting the names individuals as a reference)	approval to contacting t	the names indiv	iduals as a r	eference)	
	Name	Title/Position	Organization	ition	Telephone	Email
Owner						
Designer						
Construction Manager						
Project Owner			Project Name			
General Description of Project	oject					
Project Cost			Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Superintendent	tendent	Safet	Safety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name						
Reference Contact Inform	Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates approval to contacting the names individuals as a reference)	approval to contacting t	the names indiv	iduals as a r	eference)	
	Name	Title/Position	Organization	ition	Telephone	Email
Owner						
Designer						





Construction Manager					
Schedule B—Previous	Schedule B—Previous Experience with Similar Projects	· Projects			
Name of Organization					
Project Owner			Project Name		
General Description of Project	oject				
Project Cost			Date Project		
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Superintendent		Safety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name					
Reference Contact Inform	Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates approval to contacting the names individuals as a reference)	s approval to contacting	the names individuals as	a reference)	
	Name	Title/Position	Organization	Telephone	Email
Owner					
Designer					
Construction Manager					
Project Owner			Project Name		
General Description of Project	oject		-		
Project Cost	_		Date Project		
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Superintendent		Safety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name					
Reference Contact Inform	Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates approval to contacting the names individuals as a reference)	s approval to contacting	the names individuals as	a reference)	
	Name	Title/Position	Organization	Telephone	Email
Owner					
Designer					
Construction Manager					
Project Owner			Project Name		
General Description of Project	oject		-		
Project Cost			Date Project		
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Superintendent		Safety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name					
Reference Contact Inform	Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates approval to contacting the names individuals as a reference)	s approval to contacting	the names individuals as	a reference)	
	Name	Title/Position	Organization	Telephone	Email



00420 - 9 of 15



Owner			
Designer			
Construction Manager			



Schedule B—Previous Experience with Similar Projects

Schedule B—Previous E	Schedule B—Frevious Experience with Similar Project	rojects				
Name of Organization						
Project Owner			Project Name			
General Description of Project	ect					
Project Cost			Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Superintendent	tendent	Safety	Safety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name						
Reference Contact Information	Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates approval to contacting the names individuals as a reference)	approval to contacting	the names indivi	duals as a re	ference)	
	Name	Title/Position	Organization	ion	Telephone	Email
Owner						
Designer						
Construction Manager						
Project Owner			Project Name			
General Description of Project	ect					
Project Cost			Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Superintendent	tendent	Safety	Safety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name						
Reference Contact Informat	Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates approv	approval to contacting	al to contacting the names individuals as a reference)	duals as a re	ference)	
	Name	Title/Position	Organization	ion	Telephone	Email
Owner						
Designer						
Construction Manager						
Project Owner			Project Name			
General Description of Project	ect					
Project Cost			Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Superintendent	tendent	Safety	Safety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name						
Reference Contact Information	Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates approval to contacting the names individuals as a reference)	approval to contacting	the names indivi	duals as a re	ference)	
	Name	Title/Position	Organization	ion	Telephone	Email
Owner						
Designer						



Schedule C—Kev Individuals

Project Manager		
Name of individual		
Years of experience as project manager		
Years of experience with this organization		
Number of similar projects as project manager		
Number of similar projects in other positions		
Current Project Assignments		
Name of assignment	Percent of time used for Est	timated project
		mpletion date
Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates a		als as a reference)
Name	Name	
Title/Position	Title/Position	
Organization	Organization	
Telephone	Telephone	
Email	Email	
Project	Project	
Candidate's role on	Candidate's role on	
project	project	
Project Superintendent	T	
Name of individual		
Years of experience as project superintendent		
Years of experience with this organization		
Number of similar projects as project superintendent		
Number of similar projects in other positions		
Current Project Assignments		
Name of assignment		timated project
	this project cor	mpletion date
Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates a		als as a reference)
Name	Name	
Title/Position	Title/Position	
Organization	Organization	
Telephone	Telephone	
Email	Email	
Project	Project	
Candidate's	Candidate's	
role on project	role on project	



Safety Manager				
Name of individual				
Years of experience as project	manager			
Years of experience with this of	organization			
Number of similar projects as	project manager			
Number of similar projects in o	other positions			
Current Project Assignments		•		
Name of assignment		Percent of time	used for	Estimated project
		this project		completion date
		1		
Reference Contact Information	ո (listing names indicates aբ		named indi	viduals as a reference)
Name		Name		
Title/Position		Title/Position		
Organization		Organization		
Telephone		Telephone		
Email		Email		
Project		Project		
Candidate's role on		Candidate's role	on	
project Nanagar		project		
Quality Control Manager Name of individual				
	cuporintondont			
Years of experience as project Years of experience with this of				
•	-			
Number of similar projects as project superintendent Number of similar projects in other positions				
	ottiei positions			
Current Project Assignments Name of assignment		Porcont of time	used for	Estimated project
Name of assignment		Percent of time used for this project		completion date
		tins project		completion date
Reference Contact Information	n (listing names indicates ar	oproval to contact r	named indi	viduals as a reference)
Name	· (Name		
Title/Position		Title/Position		
Organization		Organization		
Telephone		Telephone		
Email		Email		
Project		Project		



Candidate's	Candidate's	
role on project	role on project	

END OF DOCUMENT



DOCUMENT 00423

CERTIFICATE OF BIDDER'S EXPERIENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

The undersigned bidder certifies that he is, at the time of bidding, and shall be, throughout the period of the contract, licensed by the State of Texas to do the type of work required under terms of the contract documents. Bidder further certifies that he is skilled and regularly engaged in the general class and type of work called for in the contract documents.

The bidder represents that he is competent, knowledgeable and has special skills on the nature, extent and inherent conditions of the work to be performed. Bidder further acknowledges that there are certain peculiar and inherent conditions existent in the construction of the particular facilities which may create, during the construction program, unusual or peculiar unsafe conditions hazardous to persons and property. Bidder expressly acknowledges that he is aware of such peculiar risks and that he has the skill and experience to foresee and to adopt protective measures to adequately and safely perform the construction work with respect to such hazards.

Signed this	day of	, 20
		Name of Bidder
		Signature of Bidder
		Title of Signatory

END OF SECTION



Page Intentionally Blank



DOCUMENT 00425

EQUIPMENT & MATERIAL SUPPLIERS LIST

PURPOSE: To assist the Owner in determining the ability of each Bidder to properly fulfill the requirements of this proposed contract, the Bidder shall complete the following items. All questions must be answered and the data given must be clear and comprehensive. If necessary, questions may be answered on separate attached sheets as specified by 00420 Statement of Bidder's Qualifications. If, in the course of evaluating the bids, the Owner discovers that answers to these questions are false or misleading then the Owner reserves the right to reject the bid based on non-responsiveness. **This statement must be notarized.**

The undersigned hereby authorizes and requests any person, firm, or corporation to furnish any information requested by the Owner in verification of the recitals comprising this Statement of Bidder's Qualifications.

A. EQUIPMENT AVAILABLE FOR THIS CONTRACT: The Bidder shall provide below a list of equipment available for use on this contract:

EQUIPMENT	OWN	RENT/LEASE (Supplier & Phone #)



B. MATERIALS AND MAJOR EQUIPMENT: The Bidder shall provide below a list of manufacturers and suppliers of major equipment and materials proposed on this contract:

ITEM	MANUFACTURER OR SUPPLIER



BIDDER Executed this: Day of: 20. By: BIDDER Title: State of Texas County of: Subscribed and sworn to before me this:

NOTARY PUBLIC

END OF SECTION



Page Intentionally Blank



DOCUMENT 00429

CITY OF EDINBURG NON-BRIBERY MODEL FORM

[Bidder's letterhead]

[Date]

[Name and address]

Dear [Name of Owner] :

The undersigned party certifies that [Name of bidding company] complies with the following criteria:

- 1. They have not engaged and will not engage in bribery of officials related to potential or active City of Edinburg projects.
- 2. Respondents shall not offer gratuities, favors or any monetary value to any official or employee of the City for purpose of influencing the selection. Any attempt by any Respondent to influence the selection process by any means, other than disclosure of qualifications and credentials through the proper channels, shall be grounds from exclusion from the selection process. Once the project is advertised, there shall be no contact with any city official or employee unless using the formal process through the Purchasing Department. Failure to comply will result in the firm being disqualified from the process.
- 3. They have corporate policies that clearly prohibit the use of any bribery in a corporate activity.
- 4. They have neither been convicted of (nor found by a civil judgment to have committed) bribery of domestic officials, fraud, embezzlement, theft, forgery, destruction of records, making false statements to government officials, receiving stolen property, or any other offense indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty, within five years of the date of this certification.

Printed name	
Signature	



Position i	n bidding company
Date	

END OF SECTION



Page Intentionally Blank



Document 00450

POST-BID PROCEDURES

1.0 DOCUMENT INCLUDES

- A. Notice of Intent to Award.
- B. Agreement.
- C. Requirements of Bidder.
- D. Failure of Bidder to comply with requirements.
- E. Notice to Proceed.
- F. Pre-construction Conference.
- G. Starting the Project.

2.0 NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD

A. Owner will provide written Notice of Intent to Award (the Contract) to the selected bid or proposal, stating that upon compliance with the conditions listed herein within 14 days after receipt of the notice, and on approval by Owner, Owner will execute and deliver the Agreement.

3.0 FORM OF AGREEMENT

A. The Agreement shall be Document 00500 - Agreement between the Owner and Contractor, together with Supplements enumerated in and attached thereto.

4.0 REQUIREMENTS OF BIDDER

- A. Within 14 days of receipt of the Notice of Intent to Award, the selected bidder or proposal shall execute and deliver to the Engineer for the Owner's approval those documents indicated by an "X" below:
 - [X] Document 00500 Agreement Between the Owner and Contractor
 - [X] Document 00610 Performance Bond (100% of the Contract Amount)
 - [X] Document 00620 Payment Bond (100% of the Contract Amount)
 - [X] Document 00625 Affidavit of Insurance (with Certificate of Insurance attached)

5.0 FAILURE OF BIDDER TO COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENTS

- A. Should the Bidder on receipt of the Notice of Intent to Award fail to comply with requirements of this Document 00450 within the stated time, the Owner may declare the award in default and require forfeiture of the Security Deposit.
- B. After Owner's written notice of default to the Bidder or proposal, Owner may award the Contract to the responsible Bidder whose offer is the next advantageous bid or proposal, and the Security Deposit of



the Bidder in default shall be forfeited to the Owner in accordance with the provisions of Document 00100 - Instructions to Bidders.

6.0 NOTICE TO PROCEED

A. Upon Owner's execution of the Agreement and delivery to Contractor, the Engineer shall give the Contractor Notice to Proceed within 30 days after the Effective Date of the Agreement, which notice shall establish the Date of Commencement of the Work.

7.0 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE

A. Not later than 10 days after the date of Notice to Proceed, but before Contractor starts work at the site, Owner will convene a Pre-construction Conference as specified in Section 01312 - Coordination and Meetings.

8.0 STARTING THE PROJECT

- A. Contractor shall start performance of the Work at the site on the Date of the Commencement of the Work, but no Work shall be done at the site prior to that date.
- B. As Contractor, verify that you and all Subcontractors pay the Prevailing Wage.

END OF DOCUMENT



SECTION 00460

NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

This section describes the standardized forms for use in Bidder and Contractor representations and certifications for the project.

- 1.02 REFERENCES Not Used
- 1.03 DEFINTIONS Section 0700
- 1.04 REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS
- A. Affidavit of Non-collusion
- B. Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Certification (Bidder to insert appropriate certification notice at the end of this Section).
- PART 2 PRODUCT Not Used
- PART 3 EXECUTION Not Used

STANDARIZED FORMS FOLLOW



NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER

	ITY OF HIDALGO
	, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:
(1)	(Name) He is President of, the Bidder that has submitted the attached Bid; (Company)
(2)	He is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Bid and of all pertinen circumstances respecting such Bid;
(3)	Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid.
(4)	Neither said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees of parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed directly or indirectly with another Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham Bid in connection with the Contract for which the attached Bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with such contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly sought by agreement of collusion or communication or conference with any other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price of prices in the attached Bid or of any other Bidder, or to fix an overhead, profit or cost element of the Bid price or the Bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the CITY OF EDINBURG, or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and
(5)	The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including affiant.
Sign	
Title	
	Subscribed and sworn to me this day of, 20 By:
	Notary Public My commission expires

END OF SECTION



Document 00500

AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

This Agreement is by and between CITY OF EDINBURG ("Owner") and (Contractor Name) ("Contractor").

Terms used in this Agreement have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions.

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows:

WORK

1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents.

The Work is generally described as follows: Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction.

THE PROJECT

2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is generally described as follows: RFP 2020-04

ENGINEER

- 3.01 The Owner has retained **TEDSI Infrastructure Group**, **Inc**. ("Engineer") to act as Owner's representative, assume all duties and responsibilities of Engineer, and have the rights and authority assigned to Engineer in the Contract.
- 3.02 The part of the Project that pertains to the Work has been designed by **TEDSI Infrastructure Group, Inc.**

CONTRACT TIMES

- 4.01 Time is of the Essence
 - A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.
- 4.02 Contract Times: Dates
 - A. The Work will be substantially complete on or before (Date), and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions on or before (Date).



4.03 Milestones

A. Parts of the Work must be substantially completed on or before the following Milestone(s):

- 1. Milestone 1 Substantial Completion / (Date)
- 2. Milestone 2 Final Completion / (Date)

4.04 *Liquidated Damages*

- A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed and Milestones not achieved within the Contract Times, as duly modified. The parties also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving, in a legal proceeding, the actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty):
 - 1. Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner based on fees below for each day that expires after the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified above for Substantial Completion, until the Work is substantially complete.

For Cont	Cost Per Day		
\$5,000.00	То	\$25,000.00	\$100.00
\$25,000.01	То	\$100,000.00	\$200.00
\$100,000.01	То	\$500,000.00	\$250.00
\$500,000.01	То	\$1,000,000.00	\$300.00
\$1,000,000.01	То	\$2,000,000.00	\$400.00
\$2,000,000.01	То	\$3,000,000.00	\$500.00
\$3,000,000.01	То	\$4,000,000.00	\$600.00
\$4,000,000.01	То	\$5,000,000.00	\$700.00
\$5,000,000.01	And	Over	\$800.00

2. Completion of Remaining Work: After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Times (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) for completion and readiness for final payment, Contractor shall pay Owner \$250 for each day that expires after such time until the Work is completed and ready for final payment.





3. *Milestones:* Contractor shall pay Owner <u>\$250</u> for each day that expires after the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified above for achievement of Milestone 1, until Milestone 1 is achieved, or until the time specified for Substantial Completion is reached, at which time the rate indicated in Paragraph 4.05.A.1 will apply, rather than the Milestone rate.

- 4. Liquidated damages for failing to timely attain Milestones, Substantial Completion, and final completion are not additive, and will not be imposed concurrently.
- B. If Owner recovers liquidated damages for a delay in completion by Contractor, then such liquidated damages are Owner's sole and exclusive remedy for such delay, and Owner is precluded from recovering any other damages, whether actual, direct, excess, or consequential, for such delay, except for special damages (if any) specified in this Agreement.

4.06 Special Damages

- A. Contractor shall reimburse Owner (1) for any fines or penalties imposed on Owner as a direct result of the Contractor's failure to attain Substantial Completion according to the Contract Times, and (2) for the actual costs reasonably incurred by Owner for engineering, construction observation, inspection, and administrative services needed after the time specified in Paragraph 4.02 for Substantial Completion (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract), until the Work is substantially complete.
- B. After Contractor achieves Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Times, Contractor shall reimburse Owner for the actual costs reasonably incurred by Owner for engineering, construction observation, inspection, and administrative services needed after the time specified in Paragraph 4.02 for Work to be completed and ready for final payment (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract), until the Work is completed and ready for final payment.
- C. The special damages imposed in this paragraph are supplemental to any liquidated damages for delayed completion established in this Agreement.

CONTRACT PRICE

- 5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract:
 - A. For all Work other than Unit Price Work, a lump sum of \$XX for Alternate 1 (If applicable).
 - All specific cash allowances are included in the above price in accordance with Paragraph 13.02 of the General Conditions.
 - B. For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the extended prices (established for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work by multiplying the unit price times the actual quantity of that item).



Unit Price Work (Base Bid)							
Item No.	Description	Unit	Estimated Quantity	Unit Price	Extended Price		
Total	\$XX						
adjust							

The extended prices for Unit Price Work set forth as of the Effective Date of the Contract are based on estimated quantities. As provided in Paragraph 13.03 of the General Conditions, estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and determinations of actual quantities and classifications are to be made by Engineer.

- C. Total of Lump Sum Amount and Unit Price Work (subject to final Unit Price adjustment) **\$XX**.
- D. For all Work, at the prices stated in Contractor's Bid, attached hereto as an exhibit.

PAYMENT PROCEDURES

- 6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments
 - A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the General Conditions.
- 6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage
 - A. Owner shall make progress payments on the basis of Contractor's Applications for Payment on or about the 25th day of each month during performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, provided that such Applications for Payment have been submitted in a timely manner and otherwise meet the requirements of the Contract. All such payments will be measured by the Schedule of Values established as provided in the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price



Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of Values, as provided elsewhere in the Contract.

- Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously made and less such amounts as Owner may withhold, including but not limited to liquidated damages, in accordance with the Contract.
 - a. **95** percent of the value of the Work completed (with the balance being retainage).
 - If 50 percent or more of the Work has been completed, as determined by Engineer, and if the character and progress of the Work have been satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as long as the character and progress of the Work remain satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, there will be no additional retainage; and
 - b. **95** percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with the balance being retainage).
- B. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments to Contractor to **100** percent of the Work completed, less such amounts set off by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 15.01.E of the General Conditions, and less **200** percent of Engineer's estimate of the value of Work to be completed or corrected as shown on the punch list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment.

6.03 Final Payment

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions.

6.04 Consent of Surety

A. Owner will not make final payment, or return or release retainage at Substantial Completion or any other time, unless Contractor submits written consent of the surety to such payment, return, or release.

6.05 Interest

A. All amounts not paid when due will bear interest at the rate of **[number]** percent per annum.

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

7.01 *Contents*

- A. The Contract Documents consist of all of the following:
 - 1. This Agreement.
 - 2. Bonds:
 - a. Performance bond (together with power of attorney).



- b. Payment bond (together with power of attorney).
- 3. General Conditions.
- 4. Supplementary Conditions.
- 5. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the project manual (copy of list attached).
- 6. Drawings (not attached but incorporated by reference) consisting of <u>50</u> sheets with each sheet bearing the following general title: Traffic Signal Improvements Trenton Rd at Professional Dr City of Edinburg.
- 7. Addenda (numbers 1 to 2, inclusive).
- 8. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract and are not attached hereto:
 - a. Notice to Proceed.
 - b. Work Change Directives.
 - c. Change Orders.
 - d. Field Orders.
 - e. Warranty Bond, if any.
- B. The Contract Documents listed in Paragraph 7.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as expressly noted otherwise above).
- C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 7.
- D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in the Contract.

REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS, AND STIPULATIONS

- 8.01 *Contractor's Representations*
 - A. In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following representations:
 - 1. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, including Addenda.
 - 2. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough visual examination of the Site and adjacent areas, and become familiar with the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
 - 3. Contractor is familiar with all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
 - 4. Contractor has carefully studied the reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site and the drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, with respect to the Technical Data in such reports and drawings.



 Contractor has carefully studied the reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings.

- 6. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Technical Data identified in the Supplementary Conditions or by definition, with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and Technical Data on (a) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (b) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor; and (c) Contractor's safety precautions and programs.
- 7. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract.
- 8. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.
- 9. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and of discrepancies between Site conditions and the Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor.
- 10. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.
- 11. Contractor's entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents.

8.02 Contractor's Certifications

- A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for or in executing the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 8.02:
 - 1. "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the Contract execution;
 - 2. "fraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-



- competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;
- 3. "collusive practice" means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels; and
- 4. "coercive practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution of the Contract.

8.03 Standard General Conditions

A. Owner stipulates that if the General Conditions that are made a part of this Contract are EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions for the Construction Contract (2018), published by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee, and if Owner is the party that has furnished said General Conditions, then Owner has plainly shown all modifications to the standard wording of such published document to the Contractor, through a process such as highlighting or "track changes" (redline/strikeout), or in the Supplementary Conditions.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.

This Agreement will be effective on (Month) (Date), (Year) (which is the Effective Date of the Contract).

Owner:	Contractor:
City of Edinburg	
(typed or printed name of organization)	(typed or printed name of organization)
By:	Ву:
(individual's signature)	(individual's signature)
Date:	Date:
(date signed)	(date signed)
Name:	Name:
(typed or printed)	(typed or printed)
Title:	Title:
(typed or printed)	(typed or printed) (If <mark>(Contractor Name</mark>) is a corporation, a partnership, or a
	joint venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.)
Attest:	Attest:
(individual's signature)	(individual's signature)
Title:	Title:
(typed or printed)	(typed or printed)
Address for giving notices:	Address for giving notices:
City of Edinburg	
415 W. University Drive	
Edinburg, TX 78539	
Designated Representative:	Designated Representative:
Name:	Name:
(typed or printed)	(typed or printed)
Title:	Title:
(typed or printed)	(typed or printed)
Address:	Address:
Phone:	Phone:
Email:	Email:
(If City of Edinburg is a public body, attach evidence of	License No.:
authority to sign and resolution or other documents authorizing execution of this Agreement.)	(where applicable)
addiscreening execution of this rigidelinents,	State:



CITY OF EDINBURG NOTICE OF AWARD

SECTION 00510

NOTICE OF AWARD

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

This section describes the standardized Notice of Award form for use in the project.

- 1.02 REFERENCES Not Used
- 1.03 DEFINTIONS Section 0700
- PART 2 PRODUCT Not Used
- PART 3 EXECUTION (FORMS ON FOLLOWING PAGES)

STANDARIZED FORM FOLLOWS



CITY OF EDINBURG NOTICE OF AWARD

NOTICE OF AWARD

Date

Owner: City of Edinburg Owner's Project No.: RFP-2020-04

Engineer: TEDSI Infrastructure Group, Inc.

Project: <u>Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction</u>

Bidder Name: Name

Bidder's Address: Address

You are notified that Owner has accepted your Proposal dated (Date) for the above Contract, and that you are the Successful Proposal and are awarded a Contract for:

Base Proposal

The Contract Price of the awarded Contract is (Contract Amount). Contract Price is subject to adjustment based on the provisions of the Contract, including but not limited to those governing changes, Unit Price Work, and Work performed on a cost-plus-fee basis, as applicable.

Four (4) unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement accompany this Notice of Award, and one copy of the Contract Documents accompanies this Notice of Award, or has been transmitted or made available to Bidder electronically.

☑ Drawings will be delivered separately from the other Contract Documents by Engineer of Record.

You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 15 days of the date of receipt of this Notice of Award:

- 1. Deliver to Owner four (4) counterparts of the Agreement, signed by Bidder (as Contractor).
- 2. Deliver with the signed Agreement(s) the Contract security (such as required performance and payment bonds) and insurance documentation, as specified in the Instructions to Bidders and in the General Conditions, Articles 2 and 6.

Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in default, annul this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited.

Within 10 days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully signed counterpart of the Agreement, together with any additional copies of the Contract Documents as indicated in Paragraph 2.02 of the General Conditions.



CITY OF EDINBURG NOTICE OF AWARD

Owner: City of Edinburg

By (signature):

Name (printed): Mardoqueo Hinojosa, P.E., CFM, CPM

Title: City Engineer

Cc: TEDSI Infrastructure Group, Inc – jasanchez@tedsi.com

END OF SECTION



CITY OF EDINBURG NOTICE TO PROCEED

SECTION 00550

NOTICE TO PROCEED

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

This section describes the standardized Notice to Proceed form for use in the project.

- 1.02 REFERENCES Not Used
- 1.03 DEFINTIONS Section 0700
- PART 2 PRODUCT Not Used
- PART 3 EXECUTION

TO BE ISSUED BY ENGINEER

CITY OF EDINBURG

NOTICE TO PROCEED

Date:				
То:				
Project No.: RFP 2020 Project: Trenton R	0-04 Rd at Professional Dr Signa	al Construction		
	e Contract Time under By this date you are to sta			
In accordance with the Agr Completion is	reement the date of Substa , respectively.	antial Completion is		and Final
you and Owner must each each is required to purcha	Nork at the site, the General deliver to the other (with case and maintain in accordany work at the site you need to be seen to be seen any work at the site you need to be seen any work at the site you need to be seen any work at the site you need to be seen any work at the site you need to be seen and the seen and	opies to ENGINEER) ce lance with the Contract	ertificates of insurar	
	s prior to beginning constr ricades.			
Copy to				
ENGINEER: TEDSI Infras	tructure Group, Inc.	OWNER:	City of Edinburg	
Ву:		Ву:		
Jose Sanchez, P.E.			doqueo Hinojosa	
Engineer Title		<u>City E</u> Title	Engineer	
	ACCEPTANCE OF N	OTICE BY BIDDER		
	ICE TO PROCEED is here , 20_		(Contracto	, or)
-			•	
BY:				
TIT!				

END OF SECTION



PERFORMANCE BOND

Contractor	Surety		
Name: [Full formal name of Contractor]	Name: [Full formal name of Surety]		
Address (principal place of business):	Address (principal place of business):		
[Address of Contractor's principal place of business]	[Address of Surety's principal place of business]		
Owner	Contract		
Name: [Full formal name of Owner]	Description (name and location):		
Mailing address (principal place of business):	[Owner's project/contract name, and		
[Address of Owner's principal place of	location of the project]		
business]	Contract Price: [Amount from Contract] Effective Date of [Date from Contract: Contract]		
Bond			
Bond [Amount]			
Performance Bond, do each cause this Performa	bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth in this ance Bond to be duly executed by an authorized		
officer, agent, or representative. Contractor as Principal	Surety		
Conductor as 1 incipal	Surety		
(Full formal name of Contractor) By: (Signature)	(Full formal name of Surety) (corporate seal) By: (Signature)(Attach Power of Attorney)		
Name: (Printed or typed)	Name: (Printed or typed)		
Title:	Title:		
Attest: (Signature)	Attest: (Signature)		
Name: (Printed or typed)	Name: (Printed or typed)		
Title:	Title:		
Notes: (1) Provide supplemental execution by any additional provides to Supplemental execution by any additional plural			



1. The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns to the Owner for the performance of the Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.

- 2. If the Contractor performs the Construction Contract, the Surety and the Contractor shall have no obligation under this Bond, except when applicable to participate in a conference as provided in Paragraph 3.
- 3. If there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the Surety's obligation under this Bond will arise after:
 - 3.1. The Owner first provides notice to the Contractor and the Surety that the Owner is considering declaring a Contractor Default. Such notice may indicate whether the Owner is requesting a conference among the Owner, Contractor, and Surety to discuss the Contractor's performance. If the Owner does not request a conference, the Surety may, within five (5) business days after receipt of the Owner's notice, request such a conference. If the Surety timely requests a conference, the Owner shall attend. Unless the Owner agrees otherwise, any conference requested under this Paragraph 3.1 will be held within ten (10) business days of the Surety's receipt of the Owner's notice. If the Owner, the Contractor, and the Surety agree, the Contractor shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Construction Contract, but such an agreement does not waive the Owner's right, if any, subsequently to declare a Contractor Default;
 - 3.2. The Owner declares a Contractor Default, terminates the Construction Contract and notifies the Surety; and
 - 3.3. The Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price in accordance with the terms of the Construction Contract to the Surety or to a contractor selected to perform the Construction Contract.
- 4. Failure on the part of the Owner to comply with the notice requirement in Paragraph 3.1 does not constitute a failure to comply with a condition precedent to the Surety's obligations, or release the Surety from its obligations, except to the extent the Surety demonstrates actual prejudice.
- 5. When the Owner has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take one of the following actions:
 - 5.1. Arrange for the Contractor, with the consent of the Owner, to perform and complete the Construction Contract;
 - 5.2. Undertake to perform and complete the Construction Contract itself, through its agents or independent contractors;
 - 5.3. Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to the Owner for a contract for performance and completion of the Construction Contract, arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution by the Owner and a contractor selected with the Owners concurrence, to be secured with performance and payment bonds executed by a qualified surety equivalent to the bonds issued on the Construction Contract, and pay to



the Owner the amount of damages as described in Paragraph 7 in excess of the Balance of the Contract Price incurred by the Owner as a result of the Contractor Default; or

- 5.4. Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor, and with reasonable promptness under the circumstances:
 - 5.4.1 After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable to the Owner and, as soon as practicable after the amount is determined, make payment to the Owner; or
 - 5.4.2 Deny liability in whole or in part and notify the Owner, citing the reasons for denial.
- 6. If the Surety does not proceed as provided in Paragraph 5 with reasonable promptness, the Surety shall be deemed to be in default on this Bond seven days after receipt of an additional written notice from the Owner to the Surety demanding that the Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the Owner. If the Surety proceeds as provided in Paragraph 5.4, and the Owner refuses the payment, or the Surety has denied liability, in whole or in part, without further notice, the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the Owner.
- 7. If the Surety elects to act under Paragraph 5.1, 5.2, or 5.3, then the responsibilities of the Surety to the Owner will not be greater than those of the Contractor under the Construction Contract, and the responsibilities of the Owner to the Surety will not be greater than those of the Owner under the Construction Contract. Subject to the commitment by the Owner to pay the Balance of the Contract Price, the Surety is obligated, without duplication for:
 - 7.1. the responsibilities of the Contractor for correction of defective work and completion of the Construction Contract;
 - 7.2. additional legal, design professional, and delay costs resulting from the Contractor's Default, and resulting from the actions or failure to act of the Surety under Paragraph 5; and
 - 7.3. liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specified in the Construction Contract, actual damages caused by delayed performance or non-performance of the Contractor.
- 8. If the Surety elects to act under Paragraph 5.1, 5.3, or 5.4, the Surety's liability is limited to the amount of this Bond.
- 9. The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner or others for obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated to the Construction Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price will not be reduced or set off on account of any such unrelated obligations. No right of action will accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than the Owner or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.
- 10. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders, and other obligations.
- 11. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond must be instituted in any court of competent jurisdiction in the location in which the work or part of the work is located and must be instituted within two years after a declaration of Contractor Default or within two



years after the Contractor ceased working or within two years after the Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond, whichever occurs first. If the provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum periods of limitations available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit will be applicable.

- 12. Notice to the Surety, the Owner, or the Contractor must be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the page on which their signature appears.
- 13. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement will be deemed deleted therefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement will be deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the intent is that this Bond will be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

14. Definitions

- 14.1. Balance of the Contract Price—The total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction Contract after all proper adjustments have been made including allowance for the Contractor for any amounts received or to be received by the Owner in settlement of insurance or other claims for damages to which the Contractor is entitled, reduced by all valid and proper payments made to or on behalf of the Contractor under the Construction Contract.
- 14.2. *Construction Contract*—The agreement between the Owner and Contractor identified on the cover page, including all Contract Documents and changes made to the agreement and the Contract Documents.
- 14.3. *Contractor Default*—Failure of the Contractor, which has not been remedied or waived, to perform or otherwise to comply with a material term of the Construction Contract.
- 14.4. *Owner Default*—Failure of the Owner, which has not been remedied or waived, to pay the Contractor as required under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other material terms of the Construction Contract.
- 14.5. *Contract Documents*—All the documents that comprise the agreement between the Owner and Contractor.
- 15. If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor in this Bond will be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner will be deemed to be Contractor.
- 16. Modifications to this Bond are as follows: [None]



PAYMENT BOND

Contractor	Surety	
Name: [Full formal name of Contractor]	Name: [Full formal name of Surety]	
Address (principal place of business):	Address (principal place of business):	
[Address of Contractor's principal place	Address of Surety's principal place of	
of business]	business]	
•		
Owner	Contract	
Name: [Full formal name of Owner]	Description (name and location):	
Mailing address (principal place of business):	[Owner's project/contract name, and location	
[Address of Owner's principal place of	of the project]	
business]	Contract Price: [Amount, from Contract]	
	Effective Date of [Date, from Contract]	
Bond	Contract.	
[mount]		
Date of Bond: [Date]		
(Date of Bond cannot be earlier than Effective Date of Contract)		
Modifications to this Bond form:		
□ None □ See Paragraph 18		
	bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth in this	
•	and to be duly executed by an authorized officer,	
agent, or representative.	9	
Contractor as Principal	Surety	
(E.H.f., and J. ann. of Contraction)	(F. II f.,, d,, f. S, t.) (,,,,)	
(Full formal name of Contractor)	(Full formal name of Surety) (corporate seal)	
By: (Signature)	By: (Signature)(Attach Power of Attorney)	
Name:	Name:	
(Printed or typed)	(Printed or typed)	
Title:	Title:	
	•	
Attest: (Signature)	Attest: (Signature)	
,		
Name: (Printed or typed)	Name: (Printed or typed)	
Title:	Title:	
	parties, such as joint venturers. (2) Any singular reference to	



1. The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns to the Owner to pay for labor, materials, and equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference, subject to the following terms.

- 2. If the Contractor promptly makes payment of all sums due to Claimants, and defends, indemnifies, and holds harmless the Owner from claims, demands, liens, or suits by any person or entity seeking payment for labor, materials, or equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract, then the Surety and the Contractor shall have no obligation under this Bond.
- 3. If there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the Surety's obligation to the Owner under this Bond will arise after the Owner has promptly notified the Contractor and the Surety (at the address described in Paragraph 13) of claims, demands, liens, or suits against the Owner or the Owner's property by any person or entity seeking payment for labor, materials, or equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract, and tendered defense of such claims, demands, liens, or suits to the Contractor and the Surety.
- 4. When the Owner has satisfied the conditions in Paragraph 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Owner against a duly tendered claim, demand, lien, or suit.
- 5. The Surety's obligations to a Claimant under this Bond will arise after the following:
 - 5.1. Claimants who do not have a direct contract with the Contractor
 - 5.1.1. have furnished a written notice of non-payment to the Contractor, stating with substantial accuracy the amount claimed and the name of the party to whom the materials were, or equipment was, furnished or supplied or for whom the labor was done or performed, within ninety (90) days after having last performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment included in the Claim; and
 - 5.1.2. have sent a Claim to the Surety (at the address described in Paragraph 13).
 - 5.2. Claimants who are employed by or have a direct contract with the Contractor have sent a Claim to the Surety (at the address described in Paragraph 13).
- 6. If a notice of non-payment required by Paragraph 5.1.1 is given by the Owner to the Contractor, that is sufficient to satisfy a Claimant's obligation to furnish a written notice of non-payment under Paragraph 5.1.1.
- 7. When a Claimant has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 5.1 or 5.2, whichever is applicable, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take the following actions:
 - 7.1. Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the Owner, within sixty (60) days after receipt of the Claim, stating the amounts that are undisputed and the basis for challenging any amounts that are disputed; and
 - 7.2. Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed amounts.
 - 7.3. The Surety's failure to discharge its obligations under Paragraph 7.1 or 7.2 will not be deemed to constitute a waiver of defenses the Surety or Contractor may have or acquire



as to a Claim, except as to undisputed amounts for which the Surety and Claimant have reached agreement. If, however, the Surety fails to discharge its obligations under Paragraph 7.1 or 7.2, the Surety shall indemnify the Claimant for the reasonable attorney's fees the Claimant incurs thereafter to recover any sums found to be due and owing to the Claimant.

- 8. The Surety's total obligation will not exceed the amount of this Bond, plus the amount of reasonable attorney's fees provided under Paragraph 7.3, and the amount of this Bond will be credited for any payments made in good faith by the Surety.
- 9. Amounts owed by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction Contract will be used for the performance of the Construction Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any construction performance bond. By the Contractor furnishing and the Owner accepting this Bond, they agree that all funds earned by the Contractor in the performance of the Construction Contract are dedicated to satisfying obligations of the Contractor and Surety under this Bond, subject to the Owner's priority to use the funds for the completion of the work.
- 10. The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner, Claimants, or others for obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated to the Construction Contract. The Owner shall not be liable for the payment of any costs or expenses of any Claimant under this Bond, and shall have under this Bond no obligation to make payments to or give notice on behalf of Claimants, or otherwise have any obligations to Claimants under this Bond.
- 11. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders, and other obligations.
- 12. No suit or action will be commenced by a Claimant under this Bond other than in a court of competent jurisdiction in the state in which the project that is the subject of the Construction Contract is located or after the expiration of one year from the date (1) on which the Claimant sent a Claim to the Surety pursuant to Paragraph 5.1.2 or 5.2, or (2) on which the last labor or service was performed by anyone or the last materials or equipment were furnished by anyone under the Construction Contract, whichever of (1) or (2) first occurs. If the provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit will be applicable.
- 13. Notice and Claims to the Surety, the Owner, or the Contractor must be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the page on which their signature appears. Actual receipt of notice or Claims, however accomplished, will be sufficient compliance as of the date received.
- 14. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement will be deemed deleted here from and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement will be deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the intent is that this Bond will be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.
- 15. Upon requests by any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of this Bond, the Contractor and Owner shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall permit a copy to be made.



16. Definitions

- 16.1. *Claim*—A written statement by the Claimant including at a minimum:
 - 16.1.1. The name of the Claimant;
 - 16.1.2. The name of the person for whom the labor was done, or materials or equipment furnished:
 - 16.1.3. A copy of the agreement or purchase order pursuant to which labor, materials, or equipment was furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract;
 - 16.1.4. A brief description of the labor, materials, or equipment furnished;
 - 16.1.5. The date on which the Claimant last performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment for use in the performance of the Construction Contract;
 - 16.1.6. The total amount earned by the Claimant for labor, materials, or equipment furnished as of the date of the Claim;
 - 16.1.7. The total amount of previous payments received by the Claimant; and
 - 16.1.8. The total amount due and unpaid to the Claimant for labor, materials, or equipment furnished as of the date of the Claim.
- 16.2. *Claimant*—An individual or entity having a direct contract with the Contractor or with a subcontractor of the Contractor to furnish labor, materials, or equipment for use in the performance of the Construction Contract. The term Claimant also includes any individual or entity that has rightfully asserted a claim under an applicable mechanic's lien or similar statute against the real property upon which the Project is located. The intent of this Bond is to include without limitation in the terms of "labor, materials, or equipment" that part of the water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service, or rental equipment used in the Construction Contract, architectural and engineering services required for performance of the work of the Contractor and the Contractor's subcontractors, and all other items for which a mechanic's lien may be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, materials, or equipment were furnished.
- 16.3. *Construction Contract*—The agreement between the Owner and Contractor identified on the cover page, including all Contract Documents and all changes made to the agreement and the Contract Documents.
- 16.4. *Owner Default*—Failure of the Owner, which has not been remedied or waived, to pay the Contractor as required under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other material terms of the Construction Contract.
- 16.5. *Contract Documents*—All the documents that comprise the agreement between the Owner and Contractor.
- 17. If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor in this Bond will be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner will be deemed to be Contractor.

Modifications to this Bond are as follows: [None]



Document 00625

AFFIDAVIT OF INSURANCE

THE STATE OF TEXAS	c	§	
THE COUNTY OF	§	KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:	
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authors	ority, on this day	y personally appeared	
		, who	
[Affiant]			
being by me duly sworn on his oath stated that h	ie is	, of [Title]	
[Contractor's Con	mpany Name]		
the Contractor named and referred to within the authorized to give this affidavit and that the attac reflects the insurance coverage that is now available.	ched original ins	urance certificate truly and accurately	
	-	[Affiant's Signature]	
SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED before me on		[Date]	
	Notary Public	in and for the State of TEXAS	
	[Print or	type Notary Public name]	
[Notary Seal]	My Commissio	n Expires: [Expiration Date]	

END OF DOCUMENT





Corporation:

Document 00630

FORM OF BUSINESS

Please, fill in the appropriate area describing your firm's form of business and include the relevant attachments.

Corporate Name: State of Incorporation: Mailing Address:
 Certificate of Assumed Name, if operating under a name different than that on the corporate charter (the Certificate must have been issued within the past ten years to be valid) Certificate of Good Standing* Certificate of Existence (if non-Texas corporation, Certificate of Authority) *
Partnership/Joint Venture:
Partnership/Joint Venture Name:
 Copy of the Partnership or Joint Venture Agreement, or Affidavit with the name of the partnership or joint venture, the names of the individual partners or participants in the joint venture, and a statement that the partnership or joint venture is in existence Certificate of Assumed Name, (the Certificate must have been issued within the past ten years to be valid) If firm is a limited partnership, the Certificate of Limited Partnership If any partner or joint venturer is a corporation, the above information relating to corporation must be included as to each sum partner or joint venturer.
Sole Proprietorship
Name:
 Certificate of Assumed Name, if operating under a name different than that of the sole proprietor (the Certificate must have been issued within the past ten years to be valid)
* Must be furnished upon request of the Owner and must be less than 90 days old.
[Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative]
[Signature of Authorized Representative] [Typed Date]

END OF DOCUMENT

00630-1 of 2





Document 00631

RESOLUTION OF CORPORATION

[Name of Corporation / Contractor meeting on this, 20, that	
meeting on thisday of, 20, that	or]
	at,
	[Corporate Representative]
be, and hereby is, authorized to act on behalf of the Corporation, as intransactions conducted in the State of Texas, and that the above resonant of Directors at said meeting and that the resolution has not been full force and effect; and in authentication of the adoption of this resolution that the Corporation on this	olution was unanimously ratified by the en rescinded or amended and is now in
day of,, 20	·
Sec	cretary/Assistant Secretary

END OF DOCUMENT





CONTRACTOR'S RESOLUTION ON AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (ED-104)

Name or Names	
I hereby certify that it was RESOLVED by a quorum of the di	rectors of the
	_, meeting
name of corporation	
on the day of, 20, that	_,,
, and	, be, and hereby is,
authorized to act on behalf of	, as its
representative, in all business transactions conducted in the State of	Texas, and;
That all above resolution was unanimously ratified by the Boa	ard of Directors at said
meeting and that the resolution has not been rescinded or amended a	and is now in full forces
and effect; and;	
In authentication of the adoption of this resolution, I subscribe	e my name and
affix the seal of the corporation this day of, 2	20
	Secretary



(seal)



Document 00635

CONTRACTOR'S ACT OF ASSURANCE

THE STATE OF TEXAS	VALOUV ALL MEN DV	TUESE DDESENTS
THE COUNTY OF	KNOW ALL MEN BY	THESE PRESENTS:
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Nota	ry Public in and for the State of Texas,	
on this day personally appeared	, Affia	ınt,
who being by me duly sworn on his oath stated to	-	
	[Title]	
the[Contractor]	_, Contractor, that he is authorized to re	epresent Contractor
pursuant to provisions of a resolution adopted or certified copy of such resolution is attached to a	n thisday of nd is hereby made a part of this docum	,20 A duly ent.
Affiant, in such capacity declares and assures the in accordance with sound construction practice a		construct the Project
	[Affiant]	
SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED before me on this	day of	, 20
	Notary Public in and for the State of	TEXAS
	[Print or Type Notary Public Na	ame]
1011	My Commission Expires:[Expiratio	- Data
[Seal]	Expiratio	n Datel

END OF DOCUMENT





Document 00640

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEPARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

- (a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal, State, or local department or agency;
- (b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction: violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
- (c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b) of this certification; and
- (d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal or termination of the award. In addition, under 18 USC Section 1001, a false statement may result in a fine of up to \$10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both.

[Typed Name of Company:]		
[туреа маше от сотпрату.]		
[Typed Name & Title of Authorized Representative]		
[Typed Name & Title of Authorized Representative]	I	
[Signature of Authorized Representative]	[Date]	
If unable certify the above statements, evaluation	is attached	
[Signature of Authorized Representative] If unable certify the above statements, explanation	• •	

END OF DOCUMENT





CONFLICT OF INTEREST

DISCLOSURE

Prospective contractors should carefully consider whether any of their activities may give rise to an improper conflict of interest situation. Conflict of interest situations that are not properly addressed can result in a loss of funding to a specific program and/or to the City of Edinburg, and in some cases can result in civil or criminal liability.

Organizations that may enter into a contract with the City of Edinburg should examine the following:

- * Are any employees or board members of the organization,
 - a City of Edinburg employee or consultant who exercises program or project specific functions as part of their City position?
 - a member of a Board, Council or Committee that may participate in the City's selection or award process?
 - a City Official?
- * Are any <u>immediate family members</u> or <u>business associates</u> of my employees or board member's,
 - a City of Edinburg employee or consultant who participates in the City's selection or award process as part of their City position?
 - -a member of a Board, Council or Committee that may participate in the City's selection or award process?
 - -a City Official?
- * Will any of my <u>employees</u> or <u>board members</u> receive a <u>financial interest</u> or <u>benefit</u> from any project funded and administered through the City (other than employee salaries or personnel benefits)?
- * Will any <u>immediate family members</u> or <u>business</u> <u>associates</u> of my employees or board members receive a <u>financial interest</u> or <u>benefit</u> from any project funded and administered through the City (other than employee salaries or personnel benefits)?
- * To my knowledge, will my program or project have a <u>financial effect</u> on a <u>City official</u> or <u>employee</u> who exercises City-related functions, or an <u>immediate family member</u> or <u>business associate</u> of such person? For example, will any of these persons be receiving rental payments, other business income, or program services from my company or services offered?

If you can answer "yes" to any of these questions, it is possible that there <u>may</u> be a conflict of interest. You should review the rules below to determine whether an actual conflict situation is raised, and, if so, what action needs to be taken to avoid a violation of the law. You should contact City staff immediately if you suspect that there might be an issue.

Any contractor entering into an agreement with the City will be required to warrant and represent, to the best of his/her knowledge at the time the contract is executed, he/she is not aware of any improper conflict of interest as described. Also, the contract will obligate contractors to exercise due diligence to ensure that no improper conflict situations occur during the contract.

The following Federal, State and local regulations and policies, govern projects funded through the City of Edinburg:

- * 2 CFR Part 200 [Subpart B 200.112 and Subpart D 200.318]
- * Texas Local Government Code Chapter 171.004
- * City of Edinburg Policies & Procurement Manual

_				
$\Gamma \wedge$	rtif	ica	tio	n.
1.0		11.7		,,,,

I, the undersigned, certify and report that to the best of my knowledge,			
	I have no conflict of interest to disclose		
	☐ I have the following conflict of interest to disclose:		
Date:		Company/Vendor Name:	
Printed Name	e and Title:	Authorized Signatory:	
			

This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of the contemplated Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations.

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Prepared By









Endorsed By





Copyright[©] 2018

National Society of Professional Engineers 1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794 (703) 684-2882

www.nspe.org

American Council of Engineering Companies
1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005
(202) 347-7474

www.acec.org

American Society of Civil Engineers 1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400 (800) 548-2723

www.asce.org

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed above. The National Society of Professional Engineers is the Copyright Administrator for the EJCDC documents; please direct all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE.

NOTE: EJCDC publications may be purchased at www.ejcdc.org, or from any of the sponsoring organizations above.

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	P	age
Article 1-	–Definitions and Terminology	1
1.01	Defined Terms	1
1.02	Terminology	6
Article 2-	-Preliminary Matters	7
2.01	Delivery of Performance and Payment Bonds; Evidence of Insurance	7
2.02	Copies of Documents	7
2.03	Before Starting Construction	8
2.04	Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives	8
2.05	Acceptance of Schedules	8
2.06	Electronic Transmittals	9
Article 3-	-Contract Documents: Intent, Requirements, Reuse	9
3.01	Intent	9
3.02	Reference Standards	. 10
3.03	Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies	. 10
3.04	Requirements of the Contract Documents	. 11
3.05	Reuse of Documents	.11
Article 4-	-Commencement and Progress of the Work	. 12
4.01	Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed	. 12
4.02	Starting the Work	.12
4.03	Reference Points	.12
4.04	Progress Schedule	.12
4.05	Delays in Contractor's Progress	. 12
Article 5-	-Site; Subsurface and Physical Conditions; Hazardous Environmental Conditions	. 14
5.01	Availability of Lands	. 14
5.02	Use of Site and Other Areas	. 14
5.03	Subsurface and Physical Conditions	. 15
5.04	Differing Subsurface or Physical Conditions	. 16

5.05	Underground Facilities	18
5.06	Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site	19
Article 6	—Bonds and Insurance	22
6.01	Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds	22
6.02	Insurance—General Provisions	22
6.03	Contractor's Insurance	24
6.04	Builder's Risk and Other Property Insurance	25
6.05	Property Losses; Subrogation	26
6.06	Receipt and Application of Property Insurance Proceeds	27
Article 7	—Contractor's Responsibilities	27
7.01	Contractor's Means and Methods of Construction	27
7.02	Supervision and Superintendence	28
7.03	Labor; Working Hours	28
7.04	Services, Materials, and Equipment	28
7.05	"Or Equals"	29
7.06	Substitutes	30
7.07	Concerning Subcontractors and Suppliers	31
7.08	Patent Fees and Royalties	32
7.09	Permits	33
7.10	Taxes	33
7.11	Laws and Regulations	33
7.12	Record Documents	34
7.13	Safety and Protection	34
7.14	Hazard Communication Programs	35
7.15	Emergencies	35
7.16	Submittals	36
7.17	Contractor's General Warranty and Guarantee	38
7.18	Indemnification	39
7.19	Delegation of Professional Design Services	40
Article 8	—Other Work at the Site	41
8.01	Other Work	41
8.02	Coordination	41
8.03	Legal Relationships	42

^		Ownered a Research titleton	42		
Article 9—Owner's Responsibilities					
	9.01	Communications to Contractor			
	9.02	Replacement of Engineer			
	9.03	Furnish Data			
	9.04	Pay When Due			
	9.05	Lands and Easements; Reports, Tests, and Drawings			
	9.06	Insurance			
	9.07	Change Orders			
	9.08	Inspections, Tests, and Approvals	44		
	9.09	Limitations on Owner's Responsibilities	44		
	9.10	Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition	44		
	9.11	Evidence of Financial Arrangements	44		
	9.12	Safety Programs	44		
A	rticle 10	—Engineer's Status During Construction	44		
	10.01	Owner's Representative	44		
	10.02	Visits to Site	44		
	10.03	Resident Project Representative	45		
	10.04	Engineer's Authority	45		
	10.05	Determinations for Unit Price Work	45		
	10.06	Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work	45		
	10.07	Limitations on Engineer's Authority and Responsibilities	45		
	10.08	Compliance with Safety Program	46		
Α	rticle 11	—Changes to the Contract	46		
	11.01	Amending and Supplementing the Contract	46		
	11.02	Change Orders	46		
	11.03	Work Change Directives	47		
	11.04	Field Orders	47		
	11.05	Owner-Authorized Changes in the Work	47		
	11.06	Unauthorized Changes in the Work	48		
	11.07	Change of Contract Price			
	11.08	Change of Contract Times			
	11.09	Change Proposals			
	11.10	Notification to Surety			

Article 12	—Claims	51
12.01	Claims	51
Article 13	—Cost of the Work; Allowances; Unit Price Work	52
13.01	Cost of the Work	52
13.02	Allowances	56
13.03	Unit Price Work	56
Article 14	—Tests and Inspections; Correction, Removal, or Acceptance of Defective Work	57
14.01	Access to Work	57
14.02	Tests, Inspections, and Approvals	57
14.03	Defective Work	58
14.04	Acceptance of Defective Work	58
14.05	Uncovering Work	59
14.06	Owner May Stop the Work	59
14.07	Owner May Correct Defective Work	59
Article 15	—Payments to Contractor; Set-Offs; Completion; Correction Period	60
15.01	Progress Payments	60
15.02	Contractor's Warranty of Title	63
15.03	Substantial Completion	63
15.04	Partial Use or Occupancy	64
15.05	Final Inspection	65
15.06	Final Payment	65
15.07	Waiver of Claims	66
15.08	Correction Period	67
Article 16	—Suspension of Work and Termination	68
16.01	Owner May Suspend Work	68
16.02	Owner May Terminate for Cause	68
16.03	Owner May Terminate for Convenience	69
16.04	Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate	69
Article 17	—Final Resolution of Disputes	70
17.01	Methods and Procedures	70
Article 18	—Miscellaneous	70
18.01	Giving Notice	70
18.02	Computation of Times	70

18.03	Cumulative Remedies	70
18.04	Limitation of Damages	71
18.05	No Waiver	71
18.06	Survival of Obligations	71
18.07	Controlling Law	71
18.08	Assignment of Contract	71
18.09	Successors and Assigns	71
18.10	Headings	71

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

ARTICLE 1—DEFINITIONS AND TERMINOLOGY

1.01 Defined Terms

- A. Wherever used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents, a term printed with initial capital letters, including the term's singular and plural forms, will have the meaning indicated in the definitions below. In addition to terms specifically defined, terms with initial capital letters in the Contract Documents include references to identified articles and paragraphs, and the titles of other documents or forms.
 - Addenda—Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Bids which clarify, correct, or change the Bidding Requirements or the proposed Contract Documents.
 - 2. Agreement—The written instrument, executed by Owner and Contractor, that sets forth the Contract Price and Contract Times, identifies the parties and the Engineer, and designates the specific items that are Contract Documents.
 - 3. Application for Payment—The document prepared by Contractor, in a form acceptable to Engineer, to request progress or final payments, and which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.
 - 4. *Bid*—The offer of a Bidder submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for the Work to be performed.
 - 5. Bidder—An individual or entity that submits a Bid to Owner.
 - 6. *Bidding Documents*—The Bidding Requirements, the proposed Contract Documents, and all Addenda.
 - 7. *Bidding Requirements*—The Advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Bond or other Bid security, if any, the Bid Form, and the Bid with any attachments.
 - 8. Change Order—A document which is signed by Contractor and Owner and authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, or other revision to the Contract, issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract.
 - 9. Change Proposal—A written request by Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with the procedural requirements set forth herein, seeking an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times; contesting an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work under the Contract Documents; challenging a set-off against payments due; or seeking other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract.

10. Claim

a. A demand or assertion by Owner directly to Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with the procedural requirements set forth herein, seeking an adjustment of Contract Price or Contract Times; contesting an initial decision by

Engineer concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work under the Contract Documents; contesting Engineer's decision regarding a Change Proposal; seeking resolution of a contractual issue that Engineer has declined to address; or seeking other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract.

- b. A demand or assertion by Contractor directly to Owner, duly submitted in compliance with the procedural requirements set forth herein, contesting Engineer's decision regarding a Change Proposal, or seeking resolution of a contractual issue that Engineer has declined to address.
- c. A demand or assertion by Owner or Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with the procedural requirements set forth herein, made pursuant to Paragraph 12.01.A.4, concerning disputes arising after Engineer has issued a recommendation of final payment.
- d. A demand for money or services by a third party is not a Claim.
- 11. Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive materials, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), lead-based paint (as defined by the HUD/EPA standard), hazardous waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material of any nature whatsoever that is or becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to Laws and Regulations regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, substance, or material.
- 12. *Contract*—The entire and integrated written contract between Owner and Contractor concerning the Work.
- 13. *Contract Documents*—Those items so designated in the Agreement, and which together comprise the Contract.
- 14. *Contract Price*—The money that Owner has agreed to pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 15. *Contract Times*—The number of days or the dates by which Contractor shall: (a) achieve Milestones, if any; (b) achieve Substantial Completion; and (c) complete the Work.
- 16. *Contractor*—The individual or entity with which Owner has contracted for performance of the Work.
- 17. Cost of the Work—See Paragraph 13.01 for definition.
- 18. *Drawings*—The part of the Contract that graphically shows the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor.
- 19. *Effective Date of the Contract*—The date, indicated in the Agreement, on which the Contract becomes effective.
- 20. Electronic Document—Any Project-related correspondence, attachments to correspondence, data, documents, drawings, information, or graphics, including but not limited to Shop Drawings and other Submittals, that are in an electronic or digital format.
- 21. Electronic Means—Electronic mail (email), upload/download from a secure Project website, or other communications methods that allow: (a) the transmission or

communication of Electronic Documents; (b) the documentation of transmissions, including sending and receipt; (c) printing of the transmitted Electronic Document by the recipient; (d) the storage and archiving of the Electronic Document by sender and recipient; and (e) the use by recipient of the Electronic Document for purposes permitted by this Contract. Electronic Means does not include the use of text messaging, or of Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, or similar social media services for transmission of Electronic Documents.

- 22. Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in the Agreement.
- 23. Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the Work but does not change the Contract Price or the Contract Times.
- 24. Hazardous Environmental Condition—The presence at the Site of Constituents of Concern in such quantities or circumstances that may present a danger to persons or property exposed thereto.
 - a. The presence at the Site of materials that are necessary for the execution of the Work, or that are to be incorporated into the Work, and that are controlled and contained pursuant to industry practices, Laws and Regulations, and the requirements of the Contract, is not a Hazardous Environmental Condition.
 - b. The presence of Constituents of Concern that are to be removed or remediated as part of the Work is not a Hazardous Environmental Condition.
 - c. The presence of Constituents of Concern as part of the routine, anticipated, and obvious working conditions at the Site, is not a Hazardous Environmental Condition.
- 25. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, statutes, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, and binding decrees, resolutions, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and courts having jurisdiction.
- 26. *Liens*—Charges, security interests, or encumbrances upon Contract-related funds, real property, or personal property.
- 27. *Milestone*—A principal event in the performance of the Work that the Contract requires Contractor to achieve by an intermediate completion date, or by a time prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work.
- 28. *Notice of Award*—The written notice by Owner to a Bidder of Owner's acceptance of the Bid.
- 29. *Notice to Proceed*—A written notice by Owner to Contractor fixing the date on which the Contract Times will commence to run and on which Contractor shall start to perform the Work.
- 30. Owner—The individual or entity with which Contractor has contracted regarding the Work, and which has agreed to pay Contractor for the performance of the Work, pursuant to the terms of the Contract.
- 31. *Progress Schedule*—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, describing the sequence and duration of the activities comprising Contractor's plan to accomplish the Work within the Contract Times.

- 32. *Project*—The total undertaking to be accomplished for Owner by engineers, contractors, and others, including planning, study, design, construction, testing, commissioning, and start-up, and of which the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents is a part.
- 33. Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative of Engineer assigned to assist Engineer at the Site. As used herein, the term Resident Project Representative (RPR) includes any assistants or field staff of Resident Project Representative.
- 34. Samples—Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are representative of some portion of the Work and that establish the standards by which such portion of the Work will be judged.
- 35. Schedule of Submittals—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, of required submittals and the time requirements for Engineer's review of the submittals.
- 36. Schedule of Values—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, allocating portions of the Contract Price to various portions of the Work and used as the basis for reviewing Contractor's Applications for Payment.
- 37. Shop Drawings—All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or information that are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and submitted by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work. Shop Drawings, whether approved or not, are not Drawings and are not Contract Documents.
- 38. Site—Lands or areas indicated in the Contract Documents as being furnished by Owner upon which the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way and easements, and such other lands or areas furnished by Owner which are designated for the use of Contractor.
- 39. Specifications—The part of the Contract that consists of written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work, and certain administrative requirements and procedural matters applicable to the Work.
- 40. *Subcontractor*—An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work.
- 41. Submittal—A written or graphic document, prepared by or for Contractor, which the Contract Documents require Contractor to submit to Engineer, or that is indicated as a Submittal in the Schedule of Submittals accepted by Engineer. Submittals may include Shop Drawings and Samples; schedules; product data; Owner-delegated designs; sustainable design information; information on special procedures; testing plans; results of tests and evaluations, source quality-control testing and inspections, and field or Site quality-control testing and inspections; warranties and certifications; Suppliers' instructions and reports; records of delivery of spare parts and tools; operations and maintenance data; Project photographic documentation; record documents; and other such documents required by the Contract Documents. Submittals, whether or not approved or accepted by Engineer, are not Contract Documents. Change Proposals, Change Orders, Claims, notices, Applications for Payment, and requests for interpretation or clarification are not Submittals.
- 42. Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part

thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The terms "substantially complete" and "substantially completed" as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion of such Work.

- 43. Successful Bidder—The Bidder to which the Owner makes an award of contract.
- 44. *Supplementary Conditions*—The part of the Contract that amends or supplements these General Conditions.
- 45. Supplier—A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, or vendor having a direct contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or a Subcontractor.

46. Technical Data

- a. Those items expressly identified as Technical Data in the Supplementary Conditions, with respect to either (1) existing subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site, or existing physical conditions at or adjacent to the Site including existing surface or subsurface structures (except Underground Facilities) or (2) Hazardous Environmental Conditions at the Site.
- b. If no such express identifications of Technical Data have been made with respect to conditions at the Site, then Technical Data is defined, with respect to conditions at the Site under Paragraphs 5.03, 5.04, and 5.06, as the data contained in boring logs, recorded measurements of subsurface water levels, assessments of the condition of subsurface facilities, laboratory test results, and other factual, objective information regarding conditions at the Site that are set forth in any geotechnical, environmental, or other Site or facilities conditions report prepared for the Project and made available to Contractor.
- c. Information and data regarding the presence or location of Underground Facilities are not intended to be categorized, identified, or defined as Technical Data, and instead Underground Facilities are shown or indicated on the Drawings.
- 47. Underground Facilities—All active or not-in-service underground lines, pipelines, conduits, ducts, encasements, cables, wires, manholes, vaults, tanks, tunnels, or other such facilities or systems at the Site, including but not limited to those facilities or systems that produce, transmit, distribute, or convey telephone or other communications, cable television, fiber optic transmissions, power, electricity, light, heat, gases, oil, crude oil products, liquid petroleum products, water, steam, waste, wastewater, storm water, other liquids or chemicals, or traffic or other control systems. An abandoned facility or system is not an Underground Facility.
- 48. *Unit Price Work*—Work to be paid for on the basis of unit prices.
- 49. Work—The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be provided under the Contract Documents. Work includes and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation necessary to produce such construction; furnishing, installing, and incorporating all materials and equipment into such construction; and may include related services such as testing, start-up, and commissioning, all as required by the Contract Documents.

50. Work Change Directive—A written directive to Contractor issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract, signed by Owner and recommended by Engineer, ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work.

1.02 *Terminology*

- A. The words and terms discussed in Paragraphs 1.02.B, C, D, and E are not defined terms that require initial capital letters, but, when used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents, have the indicated meaning.
- B. Intent of Certain Terms or Adjectives: The Contract Documents include the terms "as allowed," "as approved," "as ordered," "as directed" or terms of like effect or import to authorize an exercise of professional judgment by Engineer. In addition, the adjectives "reasonable," "suitable," "acceptable," "proper," "satisfactory," or adjectives of like effect or import are used to describe an action or determination of Engineer as to the Work. It is intended that such exercise of professional judgment, action, or determination will be solely to evaluate, in general, the Work for compliance with the information in the Contract Documents and with the design concept of the Project as a functioning whole as shown or indicated in the Contract Documents (unless there is a specific statement indicating otherwise). The use of any such term or adjective is not intended to and shall not be effective to assign to Engineer any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work, or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of Article 10 or any other provision of the Contract Documents.
- C. Day: The word "day" means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next midnight.
- D. *Defective*: The word "defective," when modifying the word "Work," refers to Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty, or deficient in that it:
 - 1. does not conform to the Contract Documents;
 - 2. does not meet the requirements of any applicable inspection, reference standard, test, or approval referred to in the Contract Documents; or
 - 3. has been damaged prior to Engineer's recommendation of final payment (unless responsibility for the protection thereof has been assumed by Owner at Substantial Completion in accordance with Paragraph 15.03 or Paragraph 15.04).

E. Furnish, Install, Perform, Provide

- The word "furnish," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, means to supply and deliver said services, materials, or equipment to the Site (or some other specified location) ready for use or installation and in usable or operable condition.
- 2. The word "install," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, means to put into use or place in final position said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- 3. The words "perform" or "provide," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, means to furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.

- 4. If the Contract Documents establish an obligation of Contractor with respect to specific services, materials, or equipment, but do not expressly use any of the four words "furnish," "install," "perform," or "provide," then Contractor shall furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- F. Contract Price or Contract Times: References to a change in "Contract Price or Contract Times" or "Contract Times or Contract Price" or similar, indicate that such change applies to (1) Contract Price, (2) Contract Times, or (3) both Contract Price and Contract Times, as warranted, even if the term "or both" is not expressed.
- G. Unless stated otherwise in the Contract Documents, words or phrases that have a well-known technical or construction industry or trade meaning are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meaning.

ARTICLE 2—PRELIMINARY MATTERS

- 2.01 Delivery of Performance and Payment Bonds; Evidence of Insurance
 - A. *Performance and Payment Bonds*: When Contractor delivers the signed counterparts of the Agreement to Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to Owner the performance bond and payment bond (if the Contract requires Contractor to furnish such bonds).
 - B. Evidence of Contractor's Insurance: When Contractor delivers the signed counterparts of the Agreement to Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to Owner, with copies to each additional insured (as identified in the Contract), the certificates, endorsements, and other evidence of insurance required to be provided by Contractor in accordance with Article 6, except to the extent the Supplementary Conditions expressly establish other dates for delivery of specific insurance policies.
 - C. Evidence of Owner's Insurance: After receipt of the signed counterparts of the Agreement and all required bonds and insurance documentation, Owner shall promptly deliver to Contractor, with copies to each additional insured (as identified in the Contract), the certificates and other evidence of insurance required to be provided by Owner under Article 6.

2.02 Copies of Documents

- A. Owner shall furnish to Contractor four printed copies of the Contract (including one fully signed counterpart of the Agreement), and one copy in electronic portable document format (PDF). Additional printed copies will be furnished upon request at the cost of reproduction.
- B. Owner shall maintain and safeguard at least one original printed record version of the Contract, including Drawings and Specifications signed and sealed by Engineer and other design professionals. Owner shall make such original printed record version of the Contract available to Contractor for review. Owner may delegate the responsibilities under this provision to Engineer.

2.03 Before Starting Construction

- A. *Preliminary Schedules*: Within 10 days after the Effective Date of the Contract (or as otherwise required by the Contract Documents), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for timely review:
 - a preliminary Progress Schedule indicating the times (numbers of days or dates) for starting and completing the various stages of the Work, including any Milestones specified in the Contract;
 - 2. a preliminary Schedule of Submittals; and
 - 3. a preliminary Schedule of Values for all of the Work which includes quantities and prices of items which when added together equal the Contract Price and subdivides the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during performance of the Work. Such prices will include an appropriate amount of overhead and profit applicable to each item of Work.

2.04 Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives

- A. Before any Work at the Site is started, a conference attended by Owner, Contractor, Engineer, and others as appropriate will be held to establish a working understanding among the parties as to the Work, and to discuss the schedules referred to in Paragraph 2.03.A, procedures for handling Shop Drawings, Samples, and other Submittals, processing Applications for Payment, electronic or digital transmittals, and maintaining required records.
- B. At this conference Owner and Contractor each shall designate, in writing, a specific individual to act as its authorized representative with respect to the services and responsibilities under the Contract. Such individuals shall have the authority to transmit and receive information, render decisions relative to the Contract, and otherwise act on behalf of each respective party.

2.05 Acceptance of Schedules

- A. At least 10 days before submission of the first Application for Payment a conference, attended by Contractor, Engineer, and others as appropriate, will be held to review the schedules submitted in accordance with Paragraph 2.03.A. No progress payment will be made to Contractor until acceptable schedules are submitted to Engineer.
 - The Progress Schedule will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides an orderly progression of the Work to completion within the Contract Times. Such acceptance will not impose on Engineer responsibility for the Progress Schedule, for sequencing, scheduling, or progress of the Work, nor interfere with or relieve Contractor from Contractor's full responsibility therefor.
 - 2. Contractor's Schedule of Submittals will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides a workable arrangement for reviewing and processing the required submittals.
 - 3. Contractor's Schedule of Values will be acceptable to Engineer as to form and substance if it provides a reasonable allocation of the Contract Price to the component parts of the Work.
 - 4. If a schedule is not acceptable, Contractor will have an additional 10 days to revise and resubmit the schedule.

2.06 Electronic Transmittals

- A. Except as otherwise stated elsewhere in the Contract, the Owner, Engineer, and Contractor may send, and shall accept, Electronic Documents transmitted by Electronic Means.
- B. If the Contract does not establish protocols for Electronic Means, then Owner, Engineer, and Contractor shall jointly develop such protocols.
- C. Subject to any governing protocols for Electronic Means, when transmitting Electronic Documents by Electronic Means, the transmitting party makes no representations as to long-term compatibility, usability, or readability of the Electronic Documents resulting from the recipient's use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware differing from those used in the drafting or transmittal of the Electronic Documents.

ARTICLE 3—CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, REQUIREMENTS, REUSE

3.01 Intent

- A. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is required by one Contract Document is as binding as if required by all.
- B. It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete Project (or part thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- C. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, if there is a discrepancy between the electronic versions of the Contract Documents (including any printed copies derived from such electronic versions) and the printed record version, the printed record version will govern.
- D. The Contract supersedes prior negotiations, representations, and agreements, whether written or oral.
- E. Engineer will issue clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents as provided herein
- F. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any Law or Regulation will be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions will continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, which agree that the Contract Documents will be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision.
- G. Nothing in the Contract Documents creates:
 - any contractual relationship between Owner or Engineer and any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity performing or furnishing any of the Work, for the benefit of such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity; or
 - 2. any obligation on the part of Owner or Engineer to pay or to see to the payment of any money due any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, except as may otherwise be required by Laws and Regulations.

3.02 Reference Standards

A. Standards Specifications, Codes, Laws and Regulations

- Reference in the Contract Documents to standard specifications, manuals, reference standards, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association, or to Laws or Regulations, whether such reference be specific or by implication, means the standard specification, manual, reference standard, code, or Laws or Regulations in effect at the time of opening of Bids (or on the Effective Date of the Contract if there were no Bids), except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents.
- 2. No provision of any such standard specification, manual, reference standard, or code, and no instruction of a Supplier, will be effective to change the duties or responsibilities of Owner, Contractor, or Engineer from those set forth in the part of the Contract Documents prepared by or for Engineer. No such provision or instruction shall be effective to assign to Owner or Engineer any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work, or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility inconsistent with the provisions of the part of the Contract Documents prepared by or for Engineer.

3.03 Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies

A. Reporting Discrepancies

- 1. Contractor's Verification of Figures and Field Measurements: Before undertaking each part of the Work, Contractor shall carefully study the Contract Documents, and check and verify pertinent figures and dimensions therein, particularly with respect to applicable field measurements. Contractor shall promptly report in writing to Engineer any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy that Contractor discovers, or has actual knowledge of, and shall not proceed with any Work affected thereby until the conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy is resolved by a clarification or interpretation by Engineer, or by an amendment or supplement to the Contract issued pursuant to Paragraph 11.01.
- 2. Contractor's Review of Contract Documents: If, before or during the performance of the Work, Contractor discovers any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy within the Contract Documents, or between the Contract Documents and (a) any applicable Law or Regulation, (b) actual field conditions, (c) any standard specification, manual, reference standard, or code, or (d) any instruction of any Supplier, then Contractor shall promptly report it to Engineer in writing. Contractor shall not proceed with the Work affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15) until the conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy is resolved, by a clarification or interpretation by Engineer, or by an amendment or supplement to the Contract issued pursuant to Paragraph 11.01.
- 3. Contractor shall not be liable to Owner or Engineer for failure to report any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless Contractor had actual knowledge thereof.

B. Resolving Discrepancies

1. Except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, the provisions of the part of the Contract Documents prepared by or for Engineer take

precedence in resolving any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy between such provisions of the Contract Documents and:

- a. the provisions of any standard specification, manual, reference standard, or code, or the instruction of any Supplier (whether or not specifically incorporated by reference as a Contract Document); or
- b. the provisions of any Laws or Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work (unless such an interpretation of the provisions of the Contract Documents would result in violation of such Law or Regulation).

3.04 Requirements of the Contract Documents

- A. During the performance of the Work and until final payment, Contractor and Owner shall submit to the Engineer in writing all matters in question concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents (sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFIs), or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Contract Documents, as soon as possible after such matters arise. Engineer will be the initial interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents, and judge of the acceptability of the Work.
- B. Engineer will, with reasonable promptness, render a written clarification, interpretation, or decision on the issue submitted, or initiate an amendment or supplement to the Contract Documents. Engineer's written clarification, interpretation, or decision will be final and binding on Contractor, unless it appeals by submitting a Change Proposal, and on Owner, unless it appeals by filing a Claim.
- C. If a submitted matter in question concerns terms and conditions of the Contract Documents that do not involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the Work under the Contract Documents, (2) the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3) other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will promptly notify Owner and Contractor in writing that Engineer is unable to provide a decision or interpretation. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on resolution of such a matter in question, either party may pursue resolution as provided in Article 12.

3.05 Reuse of Documents

- A. Contractor and its Subcontractors and Suppliers shall not:
 - have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Drawings, Specifications, or other documents (or copies of any thereof) prepared by or bearing the seal of Engineer or its consultants, including electronic media versions, or reuse any such Drawings, Specifications, other documents, or copies thereof on extensions of the Project or any other project without written consent of Owner and Engineer and specific written verification or adaptation by Engineer; or
 - 2. have or acquire any title or ownership rights in any other Contract Documents, reuse any such Contract Documents for any purpose without Owner's express written consent, or violate any copyrights pertaining to such Contract Documents.
- B. The prohibitions of this Paragraph 3.05 will survive final payment, or termination of the Contract. Nothing herein precludes Contractor from retaining copies of the Contract Documents for record purposes.

ARTICLE 4—COMMENCEMENT AND PROGRESS OF THE WORK

4.01 Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed

A. The Contract Times will commence to run on the 30th day after the Effective Date of the Contract or, if a Notice to Proceed is given, on the day indicated in the Notice to Proceed. A Notice to Proceed may be given at any time within 30 days after the Effective Date of the Contract. In no event will the Contract Times commence to run later than the 60th day after the day of Bid opening or the 30th day after the Effective Date of the Contract, whichever date is earlier.

4.02 Starting the Work

A. Contractor shall start to perform the Work on the date when the Contract Times commence to run. No Work may be done at the Site prior to such date.

4.03 Reference Points

A. Owner shall provide engineering surveys to establish reference points for construction which in Engineer's judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed with the Work. Contractor shall be responsible for laying out the Work, shall protect and preserve the established reference points and property monuments, and shall make no changes or relocations without the prior written approval of Owner. Contractor shall report to Engineer whenever any reference point or property monument is lost or destroyed or requires relocation because of necessary changes in grades or locations, and shall be responsible for the accurate replacement or relocation of such reference points or property monuments by professionally qualified personnel.

4.04 Progress Schedule

- A. Contractor shall adhere to the Progress Schedule established in accordance with Paragraph 2.05 as it may be adjusted from time to time as provided below.
 - 1. Contractor shall submit to Engineer for acceptance (to the extent indicated in Paragraph 2.05) proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will not result in changing the Contract Times.
 - 2. Proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will change the Contract Times must be submitted in accordance with the requirements of Article 11.
- B. Contractor shall carry on the Work and adhere to the Progress Schedule during all disputes or disagreements with Owner. No Work will be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements, or during any appeal process, except as permitted by Paragraph 16.04, or as Owner and Contractor may otherwise agree in writing.

4.05 Delays in Contractor's Progress

- A. If Owner, Engineer, or anyone for whom Owner is responsible, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the performance or progress of the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times.
- B. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times for delay, disruption, or interference caused by or within the control of Contractor. Delay, disruption, and interference attributable to and within the control of a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be deemed to be within the control of Contractor.

- C. If Contractor's performance or progress is delayed, disrupted, or interfered with by unanticipated causes not the fault of and beyond the control of Owner, Contractor, and those for which they are responsible, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Times. Such an adjustment will be Contractor's sole and exclusive remedy for the delays, disruption, and interference described in this paragraph. Causes of delay, disruption, or interference that may give rise to an adjustment in Contract Times under this paragraph include but are not limited to the following:
 - 1. Severe and unavoidable natural catastrophes such as fires, floods, epidemics, and earthquakes;
 - 2. Abnormal weather conditions;
 - 3. Acts or failures to act of third-party utility owners or other third-party entities (other than those third-party utility owners or other third-party entities performing other work at or adjacent to the Site as arranged by or under contract with Owner, as contemplated in Article 8); and
 - 4. Acts of war or terrorism.
- D. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of Contract Times or Contract Price is limited as follows:
 - 1. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on the delay, disruption, or interference adversely affecting an activity on the critical path to completion of the Work, as of the time of the delay, disruption, or interference.
 - Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price for any delay, disruption, or interference if such delay is concurrent with a delay, disruption, or interference caused by or within the control of Contractor. Such a concurrent delay by Contractor shall not preclude an adjustment of Contract Times to which Contractor is otherwise entitled.
 - 3. Adjustments of Contract Times or Contract Price are subject to the provisions of Article 11.
- E. Each Contractor request or Change Proposal seeking an increase in Contract Times or Contract Price must be supplemented by supporting data that sets forth in detail the following:
 - 1. The circumstances that form the basis for the requested adjustment;
 - 2. The date upon which each cause of delay, disruption, or interference began to affect the progress of the Work;
 - 3. The date upon which each cause of delay, disruption, or interference ceased to affect the progress of the Work;
 - 4. The number of days' increase in Contract Times claimed as a consequence of each such cause of delay, disruption, or interference; and
 - 5. The impact on Contract Price, in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 11.07.

Contractor shall also furnish such additional supporting documentation as Owner or Engineer may require including, where appropriate, a revised progress schedule indicating all the activities affected by the delay, disruption, or interference, and an explanation of the

- effect of the delay, disruption, or interference on the critical path to completion of the Work.
- F. Delays, disruption, and interference to the performance or progress of the Work resulting from the existence of a differing subsurface or physical condition, an Underground Facility that was not shown or indicated by the Contract Documents, or not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy, and those resulting from Hazardous Environmental Conditions, are governed by Article 5, together with the provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E.
- G. Paragraph 8.03 addresses delays, disruption, and interference to the performance or progress of the Work resulting from the performance of certain other work at or adjacent to the Site.

ARTICLE 5—SITE; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS; HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

5.01 Availability of Lands

- A. Owner shall furnish the Site. Owner shall notify Contractor in writing of any encumbrances or restrictions not of general application but specifically related to use of the Site with which Contractor must comply in performing the Work.
- B. Upon reasonable written request, Owner shall furnish Contractor with a current statement of record legal title and legal description of the lands upon which permanent improvements are to be made and Owner's interest therein as necessary for giving notice of or filing a mechanic's or construction lien against such lands in accordance with applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. Contractor shall provide for all additional lands and access thereto that may be required for temporary construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment.

5.02 Use of Site and Other Areas

A. Limitation on Use of Site and Other Areas

- 1. Contractor shall confine construction equipment, temporary construction facilities, the storage of materials and equipment, and the operations of workers to the Site, adjacent areas that Contractor has arranged to use through construction easements or otherwise, and other adjacent areas permitted by Laws and Regulations, and shall not unreasonably encumber the Site and such other adjacent areas with construction equipment or other materials or equipment. Contractor shall assume full responsibility for (a) damage to the Site; (b) damage to any such other adjacent areas used for Contractor's operations; (c) damage to any other adjacent land or areas, or to improvements, structures, utilities, or similar facilities located at such adjacent lands or areas; and (d) for injuries and losses sustained by the owners or occupants of any such land or areas; provided that such damage or injuries result from the performance of the Work or from other actions or conduct of the Contractor or those for which Contractor is responsible.
- 2. If a damage or injury claim is made by the owner or occupant of any such land or area because of the performance of the Work, or because of other actions or conduct of the Contractor or those for which Contractor is responsible, Contractor shall (a) take immediate corrective or remedial action as required by Paragraph 7.13, or otherwise;

- (b) promptly attempt to settle the claim as to all parties through negotiations with such owner or occupant, or otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding, or in a court of competent jurisdiction; and (c) to the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them, from and against any such claim, and against all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any claim or action, legal or equitable, brought by any such owner or occupant against Owner, Engineer, or any other party indemnified hereunder to the extent caused directly or indirectly, in whole or in part by, or based upon, Contractor's performance of the Work, or because of other actions or conduct of the Contractor or those for which Contractor is responsible.
- B. Removal of Debris During Performance of the Work: During the progress of the Work the Contractor shall keep the Site and other adjacent areas free from accumulations of waste materials, rubbish, and other debris. Removal and disposal of such waste materials, rubbish, and other debris will conform to applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. Cleaning: Prior to Substantial Completion of the Work Contractor shall clean the Site and the Work and make it ready for utilization by Owner. At the completion of the Work Contractor shall remove from the Site and adjacent areas all tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery, and surplus materials and shall restore to original condition all property not designated for alteration by the Contract Documents.
- D. Loading of Structures: Contractor shall not load nor permit any part of any structure to be loaded in any manner that will endanger the structure, nor shall Contractor subject any part of the Work or adjacent structures or land to stresses or pressures that will endanger them.

5.03 Subsurface and Physical Conditions

- A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify:
 - 1. Those reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site that contain Technical Data;
 - 2. Those drawings of existing physical conditions at or adjacent to the Site, including those drawings depicting existing surface or subsurface structures at or adjacent to the Site (except Underground Facilities), that contain Technical Data; and
 - 3. Technical Data contained in such reports and drawings.
- B. *Underground Facilities*: Underground Facilities are shown or indicated on the Drawings, pursuant to Paragraph 5.05, and not in the drawings referred to in Paragraph 5.03.A. Information and data regarding the presence or location of Underground Facilities are not intended to be categorized, identified, or defined as Technical Data.
- C. Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the Technical Data expressly identified in the Supplementary Conditions with respect to such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. If no such express identification has been made, then Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the Technical Data as defined in Paragraph 1.01.A.46.b.

- D. Limitations of Other Data and Documents: Except for such reliance on Technical Data, Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, with respect to:
 - the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor's purposes, including, but not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto;
 - 2. other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings;
 - 3. the contents of other Site-related documents made available to Contractor, such as record drawings from other projects at or adjacent to the Site, or Owner's archival documents concerning the Site; or
 - 4. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any Technical Data or any such other data, interpretations, opinions, or information.

5.04 Differing Subsurface or Physical Conditions

- A. *Notice by Contractor*: If Contractor believes that any subsurface or physical condition that is uncovered or revealed at the Site:
 - 1. is of such a nature as to establish that any Technical Data on which Contractor is entitled to rely as provided in Paragraph 5.03 is materially inaccurate;
 - 2. is of such a nature as to require a change in the Drawings or Specifications;
 - 3. differs materially from that shown or indicated in the Contract Documents; or
 - 4. is of an unusual nature, and differs materially from conditions ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract Documents;

then Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing the subsurface or physical conditions or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15), notify Owner and Engineer in writing about such condition. Contractor shall not further disturb such condition or perform any Work in connection therewith (except with respect to an emergency) until receipt of a written statement permitting Contractor to do so.

- B. Engineer's Review: After receipt of written notice as required by the preceding paragraph, Engineer will promptly review the subsurface or physical condition in question; determine whether it is necessary for Owner to obtain additional exploration or tests with respect to the condition; conclude whether the condition falls within any one or more of the differing site condition categories in Paragraph 5.04.A; obtain any pertinent cost or schedule information from Contractor; prepare recommendations to Owner regarding the Contractor's resumption of Work in connection with the subsurface or physical condition in question and the need for any change in the Drawings or Specifications; and advise Owner in writing of Engineer's findings, conclusions, and recommendations.
- C. Owner's Statement to Contractor Regarding Site Condition: After receipt of Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, Owner shall issue a written statement

to Contractor (with a copy to Engineer) regarding the subsurface or physical condition in question, addressing the resumption of Work in connection with such condition, indicating whether any change in the Drawings or Specifications will be made, and adopting or rejecting Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, in whole or in part.

- D. Early Resumption of Work: If at any time Engineer determines that Work in connection with the subsurface or physical condition in question may resume prior to completion of Engineer's review or Owner's issuance of its statement to Contractor, because the condition in question has been adequately documented, and analyzed on a preliminary basis, then the Engineer may at its discretion instruct Contractor to resume such Work.
- E. Possible Price and Times Adjustments
 - Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Price or Contract
 Times, to the extent that the existence of a differing subsurface or physical condition, or
 any related delay, disruption, or interference, causes an increase or decrease in
 Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work; subject, however,
 to the following:
 - a. Such condition must fall within any one or more of the categories described in Paragraph 5.04.A;
 - b. With respect to Work that is paid for on a unit price basis, any adjustment in Contract Price will be subject to the provisions of Paragraph 13.03; and,
 - c. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E.
 - 2. Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times with respect to a subsurface or physical condition if:
 - a. Contractor knew of the existence of such condition at the time Contractor made a commitment to Owner with respect to Contract Price and Contract Times by the submission of a Bid or becoming bound under a negotiated contract, or otherwise;
 - b. The existence of such condition reasonably could have been discovered or revealed as a result of any examination, investigation, exploration, test, or study of the Site and contiguous areas expressly required by the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents to be conducted by or for Contractor prior to Contractor's making such commitment; or
 - c. Contractor failed to give the written notice required by Paragraph 5.04.A.
 - 3. If Owner and Contractor agree regarding Contractor's entitlement to and the amount or extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, then any such adjustment will be set forth in a Change Order.
 - 4. Contractor may submit a Change Proposal regarding its entitlement to or the amount or extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, no later than 30 days after Owner's issuance of the Owner's written statement to Contractor regarding the subsurface or physical condition in question.
- F. Underground Facilities; Hazardous Environmental Conditions: Paragraph 5.05 governs rights and responsibilities regarding the presence or location of Underground Facilities.

Paragraph 5.06 governs rights and responsibilities regarding Hazardous Environmental Conditions. The provisions of Paragraphs 5.03 and 5.04 are not applicable to the presence or location of Underground Facilities, or to Hazardous Environmental Conditions.

5.05 Underground Facilities

- A. *Contractor's Responsibilities*: Unless it is otherwise expressly provided in the Supplementary Conditions, the cost of all of the following are included in the Contract Price, and Contractor shall have full responsibility for:
 - 1. reviewing and checking all information and data regarding existing Underground Facilities at the Site;
 - complying with applicable state and local utility damage prevention Laws and Regulations;
 - 3. verifying the actual location of those Underground Facilities shown or indicated in the Contract Documents as being within the area affected by the Work, by exposing such Underground Facilities during the course of construction;
 - 4. coordination of the Work with the owners (including Owner) of such Underground Facilities, during construction; and
 - 5. the safety and protection of all existing Underground Facilities at the Site, and repairing any damage thereto resulting from the Work.
- B. *Notice by Contractor*: If Contractor believes that an Underground Facility that is uncovered or revealed at the Site was not shown or indicated on the Drawings, or was not shown or indicated on the Drawings with reasonable accuracy, then Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing conditions affected thereby or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15), notify Owner and Engineer in writing regarding such Underground Facility.
- C. *Engineer's Review*: Engineer will:
 - promptly review the Underground Facility and conclude whether such Underground Facility was not shown or indicated on the Drawings, or was not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy;
 - identify and communicate with the owner of the Underground Facility; prepare recommendations to Owner (and if necessary issue any preliminary instructions to Contractor) regarding the Contractor's resumption of Work in connection with the Underground Facility in question;
 - obtain any pertinent cost or schedule information from Contractor; determine the
 extent, if any, to which a change is required in the Drawings or Specifications to reflect
 and document the consequences of the existence or location of the Underground
 Facility; and
 - 4. advise Owner in writing of Engineer's findings, conclusions, and recommendations.
 - During such time, Contractor shall be responsible for the safety and protection of such Underground Facility.
- D. Owner's Statement to Contractor Regarding Underground Facility: After receipt of Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, Owner shall issue a written

statement to Contractor (with a copy to Engineer) regarding the Underground Facility in question addressing the resumption of Work in connection with such Underground Facility, indicating whether any change in the Drawings or Specifications will be made, and adopting or rejecting Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations in whole or in part.

E. Early Resumption of Work: If at any time Engineer determines that Work in connection with the Underground Facility may resume prior to completion of Engineer's review or Owner's issuance of its statement to Contractor, because the Underground Facility in question and conditions affected by its presence have been adequately documented, and analyzed on a preliminary basis, then the Engineer may at its discretion instruct Contractor to resume such Work.

F. Possible Price and Times Adjustments

- 1. Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, to the extent that any existing Underground Facility at the Site that was not shown or indicated on the Drawings, or was not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy, or any related delay, disruption, or interference, causes an increase or decrease in Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work; subject, however, to the following:
 - a. With respect to Work that is paid for on a unit price basis, any adjustment in Contract Price will be subject to the provisions of Paragraph 13.03;
 - b. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E; and
 - c. Contractor gave the notice required in Paragraph 5.05.B.
- 2. If Owner and Contractor agree regarding Contractor's entitlement to and the amount or extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, then any such adjustment will be set forth in a Change Order.
- 3. Contractor may submit a Change Proposal regarding its entitlement to or the amount or extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, no later than 30 days after Owner's issuance of the Owner's written statement to Contractor regarding the Underground Facility in question.
- 4. The information and data shown or indicated on the Drawings with respect to existing Underground Facilities at the Site is based on information and data (a) furnished by the owners of such Underground Facilities, or by others, (b) obtained from available records, or (c) gathered in an investigation conducted in accordance with the current edition of ASCE 38, Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing Subsurface Utility Data, by the American Society of Civil Engineers. If such information or data is incorrect or incomplete, Contractor's remedies are limited to those set forth in this Paragraph 5.05.F.

5.06 Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site

- A. *Reports and Drawings*: The Supplementary Conditions identify:
 - 1. those reports known to Owner relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions that have been identified at or adjacent to the Site;

- 2. drawings known to Owner relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions that have been identified at or adjacent to the Site; and
- 3. Technical Data contained in such reports and drawings.
- B. Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the Technical Data expressly identified in the Supplementary Conditions with respect to such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. If no such express identification has been made, then Contractor may rely on the accuracy of the Technical Data as defined in Paragraph 1.01.A.46.b. Except for such reliance on Technical Data, Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, with respect to:
 - the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor's purposes, including, but not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto;
 - 2. other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings; or
 - 3. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any Technical Data or any such other data, interpretations, opinions or information.
- C. Contractor shall not be responsible for removing or remediating any Hazardous Environmental Condition encountered, uncovered, or revealed at the Site unless such removal or remediation is expressly identified in the Contract Documents to be within the scope of the Work.
- D. Contractor shall be responsible for controlling, containing, and duly removing all Constituents of Concern brought to the Site by Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or anyone else for whom Contractor is responsible, and for any associated costs; and for the costs of removing and remediating any Hazardous Environmental Condition created by the presence of any such Constituents of Concern.
- E. If Contractor encounters, uncovers, or reveals a Hazardous Environmental Condition whose removal or remediation is not expressly identified in the Contract Documents as being within the scope of the Work, or if Contractor or anyone for whom Contractor is responsible creates a Hazardous Environmental Condition, then Contractor shall immediately: (1) secure or otherwise isolate such condition; (2) stop all Work in connection with such condition and in any area affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15); and (3) notify Owner and Engineer (and promptly thereafter confirm such notice in writing). Owner shall promptly consult with Engineer concerning the necessity for Owner to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such condition or take corrective action, if any. Promptly after consulting with Engineer, Owner shall take such actions as are necessary to permit Owner to timely obtain required permits and provide Contractor the written notice required by Paragraph 5.06.F. If Contractor or anyone for whom Contractor is responsible created the Hazardous Environmental Condition in question, then Owner may remove and remediate the Hazardous Environmental Condition, and impose a set-off against payments to account for the associated costs.

- F. Contractor shall not resume Work in connection with such Hazardous Environmental Condition or in any affected area until after Owner has obtained any required permits related thereto, and delivered written notice to Contractor either (1) specifying that such condition and any affected area is or has been rendered safe for the resumption of Work, or (2) specifying any special conditions under which such Work may be resumed safely.
- G. If Owner and Contractor cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, as a result of such Work stoppage, such special conditions under which Work is agreed to be resumed by Contractor, or any costs or expenses incurred in response to the Hazardous Environmental Condition, then within 30 days of Owner's written notice regarding the resumption of Work, Contractor may submit a Change Proposal, or Owner may impose a set-off. Entitlement to any such adjustment is subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D, 4.05.E, 11.07, and 11.08.
- H. If, after receipt of such written notice, Contractor does not agree to resume such Work based on a reasonable belief it is unsafe, or does not agree to resume such Work under such special conditions, then Owner may order the portion of the Work that is in the area affected by such condition to be deleted from the Work, following the contractual change procedures in Article 11. Owner may have such deleted portion of the Work performed by Owner's own forces or others in accordance with Article 8.
- I. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court, arbitration, or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to a Hazardous Environmental Condition, provided that such Hazardous Environmental Condition (1) was not shown or indicated in the Drawings, Specifications, or other Contract Documents, identified as Technical Data entitled to limited reliance pursuant to Paragraph 5.06.B, or identified in the Contract Documents to be included within the scope of the Work, and (2) was not created by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 5.06.I obligates Owner to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence.
- J. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the failure to control, contain, or remove a Constituent of Concern brought to the Site by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible, or to a Hazardous Environmental Condition created by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 5.06.J obligates Contractor to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence.
- K. The provisions of Paragraphs 5.03, 5.04, and 5.05 do not apply to the presence of Constituents of Concern or to a Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site.

ARTICLE 6—BONDS AND INSURANCE

6.01 Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds

- A. Contractor shall furnish a performance bond and a payment bond, each in an amount at least equal to the Contract Price, as security for the faithful performance and payment of Contractor's obligations under the Contract. These bonds must remain in effect until one year after the date when final payment becomes due or until completion of the correction period specified in Paragraph 15.08, whichever is later, except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations, the terms of a prescribed bond form, the Supplementary Conditions, or other provisions of the Contract.
- B. Contractor shall also furnish such other bonds (if any) as are required by the Supplementary Conditions or other provisions of the Contract.
- C. All bonds must be in the form included in the Bidding Documents or otherwise specified by Owner prior to execution of the Contract, except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations, and must be issued and signed by a surety named in "Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies" as published in Department Circular 570 (as amended and supplemented) by the Bureau of the Fiscal Service, U.S. Department of the Treasury. A bond signed by an agent or attorney-in-fact must be accompanied by a certified copy of that individual's authority to bind the surety. The evidence of authority must show that it is effective on the date the agent or attorney-in-fact signed the accompanying bond.
- D. Contractor shall obtain the required bonds from surety companies that are duly licensed or authorized, in the state or jurisdiction in which the Project is located, to issue bonds in the required amounts.
- E. If the surety on a bond furnished by Contractor is declared bankrupt or becomes insolvent, or the surety ceases to meet the requirements above, then Contractor shall promptly notify Owner and Engineer in writing and shall, within 20 days after the event giving rise to such notification, provide another bond and surety, both of which must comply with the bond and surety requirements above.
- F. If Contractor has failed to obtain a required bond, Owner may exclude the Contractor from the Site and exercise Owner's termination rights under Article 16.
- G. Upon request to Owner from any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person or entity claiming to have furnished labor, services, materials, or equipment used in the performance of the Work, Owner shall provide a copy of the payment bond to such person or entity.
- H. Upon request to Contractor from any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person or entity claiming to have furnished labor, services, materials, or equipment used in the performance of the Work, Contractor shall provide a copy of the payment bond to such person or entity.

6.02 Insurance—General Provisions

- A. Owner and Contractor shall obtain and maintain insurance as required in this article and in the Supplementary Conditions.
- B. All insurance required by the Contract to be purchased and maintained by Owner or Contractor shall be obtained from insurance companies that are duly licensed or authorized in the state or jurisdiction in which the Project is located to issue insurance policies for the

- required limits and coverages. Unless a different standard is indicated in the Supplementary Conditions, all companies that provide insurance policies required under this Contract shall have an A.M. Best rating of A-VII or better.
- C. Alternative forms of insurance coverage, including but not limited to self-insurance and "Occupational Accident and Excess Employer's Indemnity Policies," are not sufficient to meet the insurance requirements of this Contract, unless expressly allowed in the Supplementary Conditions.
- D. Contractor shall deliver to Owner, with copies to each additional insured identified in the Contract, certificates of insurance and endorsements establishing that Contractor has obtained and is maintaining the policies and coverages required by the Contract. Upon request by Owner or any other insured, Contractor shall also furnish other evidence of such required insurance, including but not limited to copies of policies, documentation of applicable self-insured retentions (if allowed) and deductibles, full disclosure of all relevant exclusions, and evidence of insurance required to be purchased and maintained by Subcontractors or Suppliers. In any documentation furnished under this provision, Contractor, Subcontractors, and Suppliers may block out (redact) (1) any confidential premium or pricing information and (2) any wording specific to a project or jurisdiction other than those applicable to this Contract.
- E. Owner shall deliver to Contractor, with copies to each additional insured identified in the Contract, certificates of insurance and endorsements establishing that Owner has obtained and is maintaining the policies and coverages required of Owner by the Contract (if any). Upon request by Contractor or any other insured, Owner shall also provide other evidence of such required insurance (if any), including but not limited to copies of policies, documentation of applicable self-insured retentions (if allowed) and deductibles, and full disclosure of all relevant exclusions. In any documentation furnished under this provision, Owner may block out (redact) (1) any confidential premium or pricing information and (2) any wording specific to a project or jurisdiction other than those relevant to this Contract.
- F. Failure of Owner or Contractor to demand such certificates or other evidence of the other party's full compliance with these insurance requirements, or failure of Owner or Contractor to identify a deficiency in compliance from the evidence provided, will not be construed as a waiver of the other party's obligation to obtain and maintain such insurance.
- G. In addition to the liability insurance required to be provided by Contractor, the Owner, at Owner's option, may purchase and maintain Owner's own liability insurance. Owner's liability policies, if any, operate separately and independently from policies required to be provided by Contractor, and Contractor cannot rely upon Owner's liability policies for any of Contractor's obligations to the Owner, Engineer, or third parties.
- H. Contractor shall require:
 - Subcontractors to purchase and maintain worker's compensation, commercial general liability, and other insurance that is appropriate for their participation in the Project, and to name as additional insureds Owner and Engineer (and any other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions as additional insureds on Contractor's liability policies) on each Subcontractor's commercial general liability insurance policy; and

- 2. Suppliers to purchase and maintain insurance that is appropriate for their participation in the Project.
- If either party does not purchase or maintain the insurance required of such party by the Contract, such party shall notify the other party in writing of such failure to purchase prior to the start of the Work, or of such failure to maintain prior to any change in the required coverage.
- J. If Contractor has failed to obtain and maintain required insurance, Contractor's entitlement to enter or remain at the Site will end immediately, and Owner may impose an appropriate set-off against payment for any associated costs (including but not limited to the cost of purchasing necessary insurance coverage), and exercise Owner's termination rights under Article 16.
- K. Without prejudice to any other right or remedy, if a party has failed to obtain required insurance, the other party may elect (but is in no way obligated) to obtain equivalent insurance to protect such other party's interests at the expense of the party who was required to provide such coverage, and the Contract Price will be adjusted accordingly.
- L. Owner does not represent that insurance coverage and limits established in this Contract necessarily will be adequate to protect Contractor or Contractor's interests. Contractor is responsible for determining whether such coverage and limits are adequate to protect its interests, and for obtaining and maintaining any additional insurance that Contractor deems necessary.
- M. The insurance and insurance limits required herein will not be deemed as a limitation on Contractor's liability, or that of its Subcontractors or Suppliers, under the indemnities granted to Owner and other individuals and entities in the Contract or otherwise.
- N. All the policies of insurance required to be purchased and maintained under this Contract will contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled, or renewal refused, until at least 10 days prior written notice has been given to the purchasing policyholder. Within three days of receipt of any such written notice, the purchasing policyholder shall provide a copy of the notice to each other insured and Engineer.

6.03 Contractor's Insurance

- A. Required Insurance: Contractor shall purchase and maintain Worker's Compensation, Commercial General Liability, and other insurance pursuant to the specific requirements of the Supplementary Conditions.
- B. *General Provisions*: The policies of insurance required by this Paragraph 6.03 as supplemented must:
 - 1. include at least the specific coverages required;
 - 2. be written for not less than the limits provided, or those required by Laws or Regulations, whichever is greater;
 - 3. remain in effect at least until the Work is complete (as set forth in Paragraph 15.06.D), and longer if expressly required elsewhere in this Contract, and at all times thereafter when Contractor may be correcting, removing, or replacing defective Work as a warranty or correction obligation, or otherwise, or returning to the Site to conduct other tasks arising from the Contract;

- 4. apply with respect to the performance of the Work, whether such performance is by Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier, or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable; and
- 5. include all necessary endorsements to support the stated requirements.
- C. Additional Insureds: The Contractor's commercial general liability, automobile liability, employer's liability, umbrella or excess, pollution liability, and unmanned aerial vehicle liability policies, if required by this Contract, must:
 - 1. include and list as additional insureds Owner and Engineer, and any individuals or entities identified as additional insureds in the Supplementary Conditions;
 - 2. include coverage for the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, and consultants of all such additional insureds:
 - 3. afford primary coverage to these additional insureds for all claims covered thereby (including as applicable those arising from both ongoing and completed operations);
 - 4. not seek contribution from insurance maintained by the additional insured; and
 - 5. as to commercial general liability insurance, apply to additional insureds with respect to liability caused in whole or in part by Contractor's acts or omissions, or the acts and omissions of those working on Contractor's behalf, in the performance of Contractor's operations.

6.04 Builder's Risk and Other Property Insurance

- A. Builder's Risk: Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Contractor shall purchase and maintain builder's risk insurance upon the Work on a completed value basis, in the amount of the Work's full insurable replacement cost (subject to such deductible amounts as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws and Regulations). The specific requirements applicable to the builder's risk insurance are set forth in the Supplementary Conditions.
- B. Property Insurance for Facilities of Owner Where Work Will Occur: Owner is responsible for obtaining and maintaining property insurance covering each existing structure, building, or facility in which any part of the Work will occur, or to which any part of the Work will attach or be adjoined. Such property insurance will be written on a special perils (all-risk) form, on a replacement cost basis, providing coverage consistent with that required for the builder's risk insurance, and will be maintained until the Work is complete, as set forth in Paragraph 15.06.D.
- C. Property Insurance for Substantially Complete Facilities: Promptly after Substantial Completion, and before actual occupancy or use of the substantially completed Work, Owner will obtain property insurance for such substantially completed Work, and maintain such property insurance at least until the Work is complete, as set forth in Paragraph 15.06.D. Such property insurance will be written on a special perils (all-risk) form, on a replacement cost basis, and provide coverage consistent with that required for the builder's risk insurance. The builder's risk insurance may terminate upon written confirmation of Owner's procurement of such property insurance.

- D. Partial Occupancy or Use by Owner: If Owner will occupy or use a portion or portions of the Work prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work, as provided in Paragraph 15.04, then Owner (directly, if it is the purchaser of the builder's risk policy, or through Contractor) will provide advance notice of such occupancy or use to the builder's risk insurer, and obtain an endorsement consenting to the continuation of coverage prior to commencing such partial occupancy or use.
- E. Insurance of Other Property; Additional Insurance: If the express insurance provisions of the Contract do not require or address the insurance of a property item or interest, then the entity or individual owning such property item will be responsible for insuring it. If Contractor elects to obtain other special insurance to be included in or supplement the builder's risk or property insurance policies provided under this Paragraph 6.04, it may do so at Contractor's expense.

6.05 Property Losses; Subrogation

- A. The builder's risk insurance policy purchased and maintained in accordance with Paragraph 6.04 (or an installation floater policy if authorized by the Supplementary Conditions), will contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurer will have no rights of recovery against any insureds thereunder, or against Engineer or its consultants, or their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors.
 - 1. Owner and Contractor waive all rights against each other and the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, or resulting from any of the perils, risks, or causes of loss covered by such policies and any other property insurance applicable to the Work; and, in addition, waive all such rights against Engineer, its consultants, all individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions as builder's risk or installation floater insureds, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, under such policies for losses and damages so caused.
 - None of the above waivers extends to the rights that any party making such waiver may have to the proceeds of insurance held by Owner or Contractor as trustee or fiduciary, or otherwise payable under any policy so issued.
- B. Any property insurance policy maintained by Owner covering any loss, damage, or consequential loss to Owner's existing structures, buildings, or facilities in which any part of the Work will occur, or to which any part of the Work will attach or adjoin; to adjacent structures, buildings, or facilities of Owner; or to part or all of the completed or substantially completed Work, during partial occupancy or use pursuant to Paragraph 15.04, after Substantial Completion pursuant to Paragraph 15.03, or after final payment pursuant to Paragraph 15.06, will contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurer will have no rights of recovery against any insureds thereunder, or against Contractor, Subcontractors, or Engineer, or the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors of each and any of them, and that the insured is allowed to waive the insurer's rights of subrogation in a written contract executed prior to the loss, damage, or consequential loss.

- Owner waives all rights against Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the
 officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and
 subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising
 out of, or resulting from fire or any of the perils, risks, or causes of loss covered by such
 policies.
- C. The waivers in this Paragraph 6.05 include the waiver of rights due to business interruption, loss of use, or other consequential loss extending beyond direct physical loss or damage to Owner's property or the Work caused by, arising out of, or resulting from fire or other insured peril, risk, or cause of loss.
- D. Contractor shall be responsible for assuring that each Subcontract contains provisions whereby the Subcontractor waives all rights against Owner, Contractor, all individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions as insureds, the Engineer and its consultants, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, relating to, or resulting from fire or other peril, risk, or cause of loss covered by builder's risk insurance, installation floater, and any other property insurance applicable to the Work.

6.06 Receipt and Application of Property Insurance Proceeds

- A. Any insured loss under the builder's risk and other policies of property insurance required by Paragraph 6.04 will be adjusted and settled with the named insured that purchased the policy. Such named insured shall act as fiduciary for the other insureds, and give notice to such other insureds that adjustment and settlement of a claim is in progress. Any other insured may state its position regarding a claim for insured loss in writing within 15 days after notice of such claim.
- B. Proceeds for such insured losses may be made payable by the insurer either jointly to multiple insureds, or to the named insured that purchased the policy in its own right and as fiduciary for other insureds, subject to the requirements of any applicable mortgage clause. A named insured receiving insurance proceeds under the builder's risk and other policies of insurance required by Paragraph 6.04 shall maintain such proceeds in a segregated account, and distribute such proceeds in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach, or as otherwise required under the dispute resolution provisions of this Contract or applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. If no other special agreement is reached, Contractor shall repair or replace the damaged Work, using allocated insurance proceeds.

ARTICLE 7—CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

7.01 Contractor's Means and Methods of Construction

- A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction.
- B. If the Contract Documents note, or Contractor determines, that professional engineering or other design services are needed to carry out Contractor's responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures, or for Site safety, then Contractor shall cause such services to be provided by a properly licensed design professional, at

Contractor's expense. Such services are not Owner-delegated professional design services under this Contract, and neither Owner nor Engineer has any responsibility with respect to (1) Contractor's determination of the need for such services, (2) the qualifications or licensing of the design professionals retained or employed by Contractor, (3) the performance of such services, or (4) any errors, omissions, or defects in such services.

7.02 Supervision and Superintendence

- A. Contractor shall supervise, inspect, and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- B. At all times during the progress of the Work, Contractor shall assign a competent resident superintendent who will not be replaced without written notice to Owner and Engineer except under extraordinary circumstances.

7.03 Labor; Working Hours

- A. Contractor shall provide competent, suitably qualified personnel to survey and lay out the Work and perform construction as required by the Contract Documents. Contractor shall maintain good discipline and order at the Site.
- B. Contractor shall be fully responsible to Owner and Engineer for all acts and omissions of Contractor's employees; of Suppliers and Subcontractors, and their employees; and of any other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work, just as Contractor is responsible for Contractor's own acts and omissions.
- C. Except as otherwise required for the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, all Work at the Site will be performed during regular working hours, Monday through Friday. Contractor will not perform Work on a Saturday, Sunday, or any legal holiday. Contractor may perform Work outside regular working hours or on Saturdays, Sundays, or legal holidays only with Owner's written consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

7.04 Services, Materials, and Equipment

- A. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall provide and assume full responsibility for all services, materials, equipment, labor, transportation, construction equipment and machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water, sanitary facilities, temporary facilities, and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the performance, testing, start up, and completion of the Work, whether or not such items are specifically called for in the Contract Documents.
- B. All materials and equipment incorporated into the Work must be new and of good quality, except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. All special warranties and guarantees required by the Specifications will expressly run to the benefit of Owner. If required by Engineer, Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence (including reports of required tests) as to the source, kind, and quality of materials and equipment.
- C. All materials and equipment must be stored, applied, installed, connected, erected, protected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with instructions of the applicable Supplier, except as otherwise may be provided in the Contract Documents.

7.05 *"Or Equals"*

- A. Contractor's Request; Governing Criteria: Whenever an item of equipment or material is specified or described in the Contract Documents by using the names of one or more proprietary items or specific Suppliers, the Contract Price has been based upon Contractor furnishing such item as specified. The specification or description of such an item is intended to establish the type, function, appearance, and quality required. Unless the specification or description contains or is followed by words reading that no like, equivalent, or "or equal" item is permitted, Contractor may request that Engineer authorize the use of other items of equipment or material, or items from other proposed Suppliers, under the circumstances described below.
 - 1. If Engineer in its sole discretion determines that an item of equipment or material proposed by Contractor is functionally equal to that named and sufficiently similar so that no change in related Work will be required, Engineer will deem it an "or equal" item. For the purposes of this paragraph, a proposed item of equipment or material will be considered functionally equal to an item so named if:
 - a. in the exercise of reasonable judgment Engineer determines that the proposed item:
 - 1) is at least equal in materials of construction, quality, durability, appearance, strength, and design characteristics;
 - 2) will reliably perform at least equally well the function and achieve the results imposed by the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole;
 - 3) has a proven record of performance and availability of responsive service; and
 - 4) is not objectionable to Owner.
 - b. Contractor certifies that, if the proposed item is approved and incorporated into the Work:
 - 1) there will be no increase in cost to the Owner or increase in Contract Times; and
 - 2) the item will conform substantially to the detailed requirements of the item named in the Contract Documents.
- B. *Contractor's Expense*: Contractor shall provide all data in support of any proposed "or equal" item at Contractor's expense.
- C. Engineer's Evaluation and Determination: Engineer will be allowed a reasonable time to evaluate each "or-equal" request. Engineer may require Contractor to furnish additional data about the proposed "or-equal" item. Engineer will be the sole judge of acceptability. No "or-equal" item will be ordered, furnished, installed, or utilized until Engineer's review is complete and Engineer determines that the proposed item is an "or-equal," which will be evidenced by an approved Shop Drawing or other written communication. Engineer will advise Contractor in writing of any negative determination.
- D. Effect of Engineer's Determination: Neither approval nor denial of an "or-equal" request will result in any change in Contract Price. The Engineer's denial of an "or-equal" request will be final and binding, and may not be reversed through an appeal under any provision of the Contract.

E. *Treatment as a Substitution Request*: If Engineer determines that an item of equipment or material proposed by Contractor does not qualify as an "or-equal" item, Contractor may request that Engineer consider the item a proposed substitute pursuant to Paragraph 7.06.

7.06 Substitutes

- A. Contractor's Request; Governing Criteria: Unless the specification or description of an item of equipment or material required to be furnished under the Contract Documents contains or is followed by words reading that no substitution is permitted, Contractor may request that Engineer authorize the use of other items of equipment or material under the circumstances described below. To the extent possible such requests must be made before commencement of related construction at the Site.
 - Contractor shall submit sufficient information as provided below to allow Engineer to determine if the item of material or equipment proposed is functionally equivalent to that named and an acceptable substitute therefor. Engineer will not accept requests for review of proposed substitute items of equipment or material from anyone other than Contractor.
 - 2. The requirements for review by Engineer will be as set forth in Paragraph 7.06.B, as supplemented by the Specifications, and as Engineer may decide is appropriate under the circumstances.
 - 3. Contractor shall make written application to Engineer for review of a proposed substitute item of equipment or material that Contractor seeks to furnish or use. The application:
 - a. will certify that the proposed substitute item will:
 - 1) perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design;
 - 2) be similar in substance to the item specified; and
 - 3) be suited to the same use as the item specified.

b. will state:

- 1) the extent, if any, to which the use of the proposed substitute item will necessitate a change in Contract Times;
- 2) whether use of the proposed substitute item in the Work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner for other work on the Project) to adapt the design to the proposed substitute item; and
- 3) whether incorporation or use of the proposed substitute item in connection with the Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty.

c. will identify:

- 1) all variations of the proposed substitute item from the item specified; and
- 2) available engineering, sales, maintenance, repair, and replacement services.
- d. will contain an itemized estimate of all costs or credits that will result directly or indirectly from use of such substitute item, including but not limited to changes in

Contract Price, shared savings, costs of redesign, and claims of other contractors affected by any resulting change.

- B. Engineer's Evaluation and Determination: Engineer will be allowed a reasonable time to evaluate each substitute request, and to obtain comments and direction from Owner. Engineer may require Contractor to furnish additional data about the proposed substitute item. Engineer will be the sole judge of acceptability. No substitute will be ordered, furnished, installed, or utilized until Engineer's review is complete and Engineer determines that the proposed item is an acceptable substitute. Engineer's determination will be evidenced by a Field Order or a proposed Change Order accounting for the substitution itself and all related impacts, including changes in Contract Price or Contract Times. Engineer will advise Contractor in writing of any negative determination.
- C. *Special Guarantee*: Owner may require Contractor to furnish at Contractor's expense a special performance guarantee or other surety with respect to any substitute.
- D. Reimbursement of Engineer's Cost: Engineer will record Engineer's costs in evaluating a substitute proposed or submitted by Contractor. Whether or not Engineer approves a substitute so proposed or submitted by Contractor, Contractor shall reimburse Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for evaluating each such proposed substitute. Contractor shall also reimburse Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for making changes in the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner) resulting from the acceptance of each proposed substitute.
- E. *Contractor's Expense*: Contractor shall provide all data in support of any proposed substitute at Contractor's expense.
- F. Effect of Engineer's Determination: If Engineer approves the substitution request, Contractor shall execute the proposed Change Order and proceed with the substitution. The Engineer's denial of a substitution request will be final and binding, and may not be reversed through an appeal under any provision of the Contract. Contractor may challenge the scope of reimbursement costs imposed under Paragraph 7.06.D, by timely submittal of a Change Proposal.

7.07 Concerning Subcontractors and Suppliers

- A. Contractor may retain Subcontractors and Suppliers for the performance of parts of the Work. Such Subcontractors and Suppliers must be acceptable to Owner. The Contractor's retention of a Subcontractor or Supplier for the performance of parts of the Work will not relieve Contractor's obligation to Owner to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- B. Contractor shall retain specific Subcontractors and Suppliers for the performance of designated parts of the Work if required by the Contract to do so.
- C. Subsequent to the submittal of Contractor's Bid or final negotiation of the terms of the Contract, Owner may not require Contractor to retain any Subcontractor or Supplier to furnish or perform any of the Work against which Contractor has reasonable objection.
- D. Prior to entry into any binding subcontract or purchase order, Contractor shall submit to Owner the identity of the proposed Subcontractor or Supplier (unless Owner has already deemed such proposed Subcontractor or Supplier acceptable during the bidding process or

- otherwise). Such proposed Subcontractor or Supplier shall be deemed acceptable to Owner unless Owner raises a substantive, reasonable objection within 5 days.
- E. Owner may require the replacement of any Subcontractor or Supplier. Owner also may require Contractor to retain specific replacements; provided, however, that Owner may not require a replacement to which Contractor has a reasonable objection. If Contractor has submitted the identity of certain Subcontractors or Suppliers for acceptance by Owner, and Owner has accepted it (either in writing or by failing to make written objection thereto), then Owner may subsequently revoke the acceptance of any such Subcontractor or Supplier so identified solely on the basis of substantive, reasonable objection after due investigation. Contractor shall submit an acceptable replacement for the rejected Subcontractor or Supplier.
- F. If Owner requires the replacement of any Subcontractor or Supplier retained by Contractor to perform any part of the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, with respect to the replacement; and Contractor shall initiate a Change Proposal for such adjustment within 30 days of Owner's requirement of replacement.
- G. No acceptance by Owner of any such Subcontractor or Supplier, whether initially or as a replacement, will constitute a waiver of the right of Owner to the completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- H. On a monthly basis, Contractor shall submit to Engineer a complete list of all Subcontractors and Suppliers having a direct contract with Contractor, and of all other Subcontractors and Suppliers known to Contractor at the time of submittal.
- I. Contractor shall be solely responsible for scheduling and coordinating the work of Subcontractors and Suppliers.
- J. The divisions and sections of the Specifications and the identifications of any Drawings do not control Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or Suppliers, or in delineating the Work to be performed by any specific trade.
- K. All Work performed for Contractor by a Subcontractor or Supplier must be pursuant to an appropriate contractual agreement that specifically binds the Subcontractor or Supplier to the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract for the benefit of Owner and Engineer.
- L. Owner may furnish to any Subcontractor or Supplier, to the extent practicable, information about amounts paid to Contractor for Work performed for Contractor by the Subcontractor or Supplier.
- M. Contractor shall restrict all Subcontractors and Suppliers from communicating with Engineer or Owner, except through Contractor or in case of an emergency, or as otherwise expressly allowed in this Contract.

7.08 Patent Fees and Royalties

A. Contractor shall pay all license fees and royalties and assume all costs incident to the use in the performance of the Work or the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device which is the subject of patent rights or copyrights held by others. If an invention, design, process, product, or device is specified in the Contract Documents for use in the performance of the Work and if, to the actual knowledge of Owner or Engineer, its use is subject to patent rights or copyrights calling for the payment of any license fee or royalty to others, the existence of such rights will be disclosed in the Contract Documents.

- B. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors, from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device specified in the Contract Documents, but not identified as being subject to payment of any license fee or royalty to others required by patent rights or copyrights.
- C. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them, from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device not specified in the Contract Documents.

7.09 Permits

A. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall obtain and pay for all construction permits, licenses, and certificates of occupancy. Owner shall assist Contractor, when necessary, in obtaining such permits and licenses. Contractor shall pay all governmental charges and inspection fees necessary for the prosecution of the Work which are applicable at the time of the submission of Contractor's Bid (or when Contractor became bound under a negotiated contract). Owner shall pay all charges of utility owners for connections for providing permanent service to the Work.

7.10 *Taxes*

A. Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes required to be paid by Contractor in accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which are applicable during the performance of the Work.

7.11 Laws and Regulations

- A. Contractor shall give all notices required by and shall comply with all Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Neither Owner nor Engineer shall be responsible for monitoring Contractor's compliance with any Laws or Regulations.
- B. If Contractor performs any Work or takes any other action knowing or having reason to know that it is contrary to Laws or Regulations, Contractor shall bear all resulting costs and losses, and shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to

- such Work or other action. It is not Contractor's responsibility to make certain that the Work described in the Contract Documents is in accordance with Laws and Regulations, but this does not relieve Contractor of its obligations under Paragraph 3.03.
- C. Owner or Contractor may give written notice to the other party of any changes after the submission of Contractor's Bid (or after the date when Contractor became bound under a negotiated contract) in Laws or Regulations having an effect on the cost or time of performance of the Work, including but not limited to changes in Laws or Regulations having an effect on procuring permits and on sales, use, value-added, consumption, and other similar taxes. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times resulting from such changes, then within 30 days of such written notice Contractor may submit a Change Proposal, or Owner may initiate a Claim.

7.12 Record Documents

A. Contractor shall maintain in a safe place at the Site one printed record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, written interpretations and clarifications, and approved Shop Drawings. Contractor shall keep such record documents in good order and annotate them to show changes made during construction. These record documents, together with all approved Samples, will be available to Engineer for reference. Upon completion of the Work, Contractor shall deliver these record documents to Engineer.

7.13 Safety and Protection

- A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work. Such responsibility does not relieve Subcontractors of their responsibility for the safety of persons or property in the performance of their work, nor for compliance with applicable safety Laws and Regulations.
- B. Contractor shall designate a qualified and experienced safety representative whose duties and responsibilities are the prevention of Work-related accidents and the maintenance and supervision of safety precautions and programs.
- C. Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury, or loss to:
 - 1. all persons on the Site or who may be affected by the Work;
 - 2. all the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Site; and
 - 3. other property at the Site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, other work in progress, utilities, and Underground Facilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction.
- D. All damage, injury, or loss to any property referred to in Paragraph 7.13.C.2 or 7.13.C.3 caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by Contractor, any Subcontractor, Supplier, or any other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by Contractor at its expense (except damage or loss attributable to the fault of Drawings or Specifications or to the acts or omissions of Owner or Engineer or anyone employed by any

- of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, and not attributable, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of Contractor or any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them).
- E. Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations relating to the safety of persons or property, or to the protection of persons or property from damage, injury, or loss; and shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection.
- F. Contractor shall notify Owner; the owners of adjacent property; the owners of Underground Facilities and other utilities (if the identity of such owners is known to Contractor); and other contractors and utility owners performing work at or adjacent to the Site, in writing, when Contractor knows that prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in the protection, removal, relocation, and replacement of their property or work in progress.
- G. Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of Owner's safety programs, if any. Any Owner's safety programs that are applicable to the Work are identified or included in the Supplementary Conditions or Specifications.
- H. Contractor shall inform Owner and Engineer of the specific requirements of Contractor's safety program with which Owner's and Engineer's employees and representatives must comply while at the Site.
- I. Contractor's duties and responsibilities for safety and protection will continue until all the Work is completed, Engineer has issued a written notice to Owner and Contractor in accordance with Paragraph 15.06.C that the Work is acceptable, and Contractor has left the Site (except as otherwise expressly provided in connection with Substantial Completion).
- J. Contractor's duties and responsibilities for safety and protection will resume whenever Contractor or any Subcontractor or Supplier returns to the Site to fulfill warranty or correction obligations, or to conduct other tasks arising from the Contract Documents.

7.14 Hazard Communication Programs

A. Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating any exchange of safety data sheets (formerly known as material safety data sheets) or other hazard communication information required to be made available to or exchanged between or among employers at the Site in accordance with Laws or Regulations.

7.15 Emergencies

A. In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, Contractor is obligated to act to prevent damage, injury, or loss. Contractor shall give Engineer prompt written notice if Contractor believes that any significant changes in the Work or variations from the Contract Documents have been caused by an emergency, or are required as a result of Contractor's response to an emergency. If Engineer determines that a change in the Contract Documents is required because of an emergency or Contractor's response, a Work Change Directive or Change Order will be issued.

7.16 *Submittals*

- A. Shop Drawing and Sample Requirements
 - 1. Before submitting a Shop Drawing or Sample, Contractor shall:
 - a. review and coordinate the Shop Drawing or Sample with other Shop Drawings and Samples and with the requirements of the Work and the Contract Documents;
 - b. determine and verify:
 - 1) all field measurements, quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, installation requirements, materials, catalog numbers, and similar information with respect to the Submittal;
 - 2) the suitability of all materials and equipment offered with respect to the indicated application, fabrication, shipping, handling, storage, assembly, and installation pertaining to the performance of the Work; and
 - all information relative to Contractor's responsibilities for means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto;
 - c. confirm that the Submittal is complete with respect to all related data included in the Submittal.
 - 2. Each Shop Drawing or Sample must bear a stamp or specific written certification that Contractor has satisfied Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents with respect to Contractor's review of that Submittal, and that Contractor approves the Submittal.
 - 3. With each Shop Drawing or Sample, Contractor shall give Engineer specific written notice of any variations that the Submittal may have from the requirements of the Contract Documents. This notice must be set forth in a written communication separate from the Submittal; and, in addition, in the case of a Shop Drawing by a specific notation made on the Shop Drawing itself.
- B. Submittal Procedures for Shop Drawings and Samples: Contractor shall label and submit Shop Drawings and Samples to Engineer for review and approval in accordance with the accepted Schedule of Submittals.
 - 1. Shop Drawings
 - a. Contractor shall submit the number of copies required in the Specifications.
 - b. Data shown on the Shop Drawings must be complete with respect to quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, materials, and similar data to show Engineer the services, materials, and equipment Contractor proposes to provide, and to enable Engineer to review the information for the limited purposes required by Paragraph 7.16.C.
 - 2. Samples
 - a. Contractor shall submit the number of Samples required in the Specifications.
 - b. Contractor shall clearly identify each Sample as to material, Supplier, pertinent data such as catalog numbers, the use for which intended and other data as Engineer

may require to enable Engineer to review the Submittal for the limited purposes required by Paragraph 7.16.C.

3. Where a Shop Drawing or Sample is required by the Contract Documents or the Schedule of Submittals, any related Work performed prior to Engineer's review and approval of the pertinent submittal will be at the sole expense and responsibility of Contractor.

C. Engineer's Review of Shop Drawings and Samples

- Engineer will provide timely review of Shop Drawings and Samples in accordance with the accepted Schedule of Submittals. Engineer's review and approval will be only to determine if the items covered by the Submittals will, after installation or incorporation in the Work, comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, and be compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents.
- 2. Engineer's review and approval will not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or to safety precautions or programs incident thereto.
- 3. Engineer's review and approval of a separate item as such will not indicate approval of the assembly in which the item functions.
- 4. Engineer's review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample will not relieve Contractor from responsibility for any variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents unless Contractor has complied with the requirements of Paragraph 7.16.A.3 and Engineer has given written approval of each such variation by specific written notation thereof incorporated in or accompanying the Shop Drawing or Sample. Engineer will document any such approved variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents in a Field Order or other appropriate Contract modification.
- 5. Engineer's review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample will not relieve Contractor from responsibility for complying with the requirements of Paragraphs 7.16.A and B.
- 6. Engineer's review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample, or of a variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents, will not, under any circumstances, change the Contract Times or Contract Price, unless such changes are included in a Change Order.
- 7. Neither Engineer's receipt, review, acceptance, or approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample will result in such item becoming a Contract Document.
- 8. Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance with the requirements and commitments set forth in approved Shop Drawings and Samples, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 7.16.C.4.

D. Resubmittal Procedures for Shop Drawings and Samples

- 1. Contractor shall make corrections required by Engineer and shall return the required number of corrected copies of Shop Drawings and submit, as required, new Samples for review and approval. Contractor shall direct specific attention in writing to revisions other than the corrections called for by Engineer on previous Submittals.
- 2. Contractor shall furnish required Shop Drawing and Sample submittals with sufficient information and accuracy to obtain required approval of an item with no more than two

- resubmittals. Engineer will record Engineer's time for reviewing a third or subsequent resubmittal of a Shop Drawing or Sample, and Contractor shall be responsible for Engineer's charges to Owner for such time. Owner may impose a set-off against payments due Contractor to secure reimbursement for such charges.
- 3. If Contractor requests a change of a previously approved Shop Drawing or Sample, Contractor shall be responsible for Engineer's charges to Owner for its review time, and Owner may impose a set-off against payments due Contractor to secure reimbursement for such charges, unless the need for such change is beyond the control of Contractor.
- E. Submittals Other than Shop Drawings, Samples, and Owner-Delegated Designs
 - 1. The following provisions apply to all Submittals other than Shop Drawings, Samples, and Owner-delegated designs:
 - a. Contractor shall submit all such Submittals to the Engineer in accordance with the Schedule of Submittals and pursuant to the applicable terms of the Contract Documents.
 - b. Engineer will provide timely review of all such Submittals in accordance with the Schedule of Submittals and return such Submittals with a notation of either Accepted or Not Accepted. Any such Submittal that is not returned within the time established in the Schedule of Submittals will be deemed accepted.
 - c. Engineer's review will be only to determine if the Submittal is acceptable under the requirements of the Contract Documents as to general form and content of the Submittal.
 - d. If any such Submittal is not accepted, Contractor shall confer with Engineer regarding the reason for the non-acceptance, and resubmit an acceptable document.
 - 2. Procedures for the submittal and acceptance of the Progress Schedule, the Schedule of Submittals, and the Schedule of Values are set forth in Paragraphs 2.03. 2.04, and 2.05.
- F. Owner-delegated Designs: Submittals pursuant to Owner-delegated designs are governed by the provisions of Paragraph 7.19.
- 7.17 Contractor's General Warranty and Guarantee
 - A. Contractor warrants and guarantees to Owner that all Work will be in accordance with the Contract Documents and will not be defective. Engineer is entitled to rely on Contractor's warranty and guarantee.
 - B. Owner's rights under this warranty and guarantee are in addition to, and are not limited by, Owner's rights under the correction period provisions of Paragraph 15.08. The time in which Owner may enforce its warranty and guarantee rights under this Paragraph 7.17 is limited only by applicable Laws and Regulations restricting actions to enforce such rights; provided, however, that after the end of the correction period under Paragraph 15.08:
 - 1. Owner shall give Contractor written notice of any defective Work within 60 days of the discovery that such Work is defective; and

- 2. Such notice will be deemed the start of an event giving rise to a Claim under Paragraph 12.01.B, such that any related Claim must be brought within 30 days of the notice.
- C. Contractor's warranty and guarantee hereunder excludes defects or damage caused by:
 - abuse, or improper modification, maintenance, or operation, by persons other than Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or any other individual or entity for whom Contractor is responsible; or
 - 2. normal wear and tear under normal usage.
- D. Contractor's obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents is absolute. None of the following will constitute an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, a release of Contractor's obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or a release of Owner's warranty and guarantee rights under this Paragraph 7.17:
 - 1. Observations by Engineer;
 - 2. Recommendation by Engineer or payment by Owner of any progress or final payment;
 - 3. The issuance of a certificate of Substantial Completion by Engineer or any payment related thereto by Owner;
 - 4. Use or occupancy of the Work or any part thereof by Owner;
 - 5. Any review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal;
 - 6. The issuance of a notice of acceptability by Engineer;
 - 7. The end of the correction period established in Paragraph 15.08;
 - 8. Any inspection, test, or approval by others; or
 - 9. Any correction of defective Work by Owner.
- E. If the Contract requires the Contractor to accept the assignment of a contract entered into by Owner, then the specific warranties, guarantees, and correction obligations contained in the assigned contract will govern with respect to Contractor's performance obligations to Owner for the Work described in the assigned contract.

7.18 *Indemnification*

A. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, and in addition to any other obligations of Contractor under the Contract or otherwise, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them, from losses, damages, costs, and judgments (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising from third-party claims or actions relating to or resulting from the performance or furnishing of the Work, provided that any such claim, action, loss, cost, judgment or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to damage to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity

- directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.
- B. In any and all claims against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of such employee) of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under Paragraph 7.18.A will not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Contractor or any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

7.19 Delegation of Professional Design Services

- A. Owner may require Contractor to provide professional design services for a portion of the Work by express delegation in the Contract Documents. Such delegation will specify the performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy, and the Submittals that Contractor must furnish to Engineer with respect to the Owner-delegated design.
- B. Contractor shall cause such Owner-delegated professional design services to be provided pursuant to the professional standard of care by a properly licensed design professional, whose signature and seal must appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, and Submittals prepared by such design professional. Such design professional must issue all certifications of design required by Laws and Regulations.
- C. If a Shop Drawing or other Submittal related to the Owner-delegated design is prepared by Contractor, a Subcontractor, or others for submittal to Engineer, then such Shop Drawing or other Submittal must bear the written approval of Contractor's design professional when submitted by Contractor to Engineer.
- D. Owner and Engineer shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy, and completeness of the services, certifications, and approvals performed or provided by the design professionals retained or employed by Contractor under an Owner-delegated design, subject to the professional standard of care and the performance and design criteria stated in the Contract Documents.
- E. Pursuant to this Paragraph 7.19, Engineer's review, approval, and other determinations regarding design drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, and other Submittals furnished by Contractor pursuant to an Owner-delegated design will be only for the following limited purposes:
 - 1. Checking for conformance with the requirements of this Paragraph 7.19;
 - 2. Confirming that Contractor (through its design professionals) has used the performance and design criteria specified in the Contract Documents; and
 - 3. Establishing that the design furnished by Contractor is consistent with the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.
- F. Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of performance or design criteria specified by Owner or Engineer.

G. Contractor is not required to provide professional services in violation of applicable Laws and Regulations.

ARTICLE 8—OTHER WORK AT THE SITE

8.01 Other Work

- A. In addition to and apart from the Work under the Contract Documents, the Owner may perform other work at or adjacent to the Site. Such other work may be performed by Owner's employees, or through contracts between the Owner and third parties. Owner may also arrange to have third-party utility owners perform work on their utilities and facilities at or adjacent to the Site.
- B. If Owner performs other work at or adjacent to the Site with Owner's employees, or through contracts for such other work, then Owner shall give Contractor written notice thereof prior to starting any such other work. If Owner has advance information regarding the start of any third-party utility work that Owner has arranged to take place at or adjacent to the Site, Owner shall provide such information to Contractor.
- C. Contractor shall afford proper and safe access to the Site to each contractor that performs such other work, each utility owner performing other work, and Owner, if Owner is performing other work with Owner's employees, and provide a reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the execution of such other work.
- D. Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, and patching of the Work that may be required to properly connect or otherwise make its several parts come together and properly integrate with such other work. Contractor shall not endanger any work of others by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering such work; provided, however, that Contractor may cut or alter others' work with the written consent of Engineer and the others whose work will be affected.
- E. If the proper execution or results of any part of Contractor's Work depends upon work performed by others, Contractor shall inspect such other work and promptly report to Engineer in writing any delays, defects, or deficiencies in such other work that render it unavailable or unsuitable for the proper execution and results of Contractor's Work. Contractor's failure to so report will constitute an acceptance of such other work as fit and proper for integration with Contractor's Work except for latent defects and deficiencies in such other work.
- F. The provisions of this article are not applicable to work that is performed by third-party utilities or other third-party entities without a contract with Owner, or that is performed without having been arranged by Owner. If such work occurs, then any related delay, disruption, or interference incurred by Contractor is governed by the provisions of Paragraph 4.05.C.3.

8.02 Coordination

A. If Owner intends to contract with others for the performance of other work at or adjacent to the Site, to perform other work at or adjacent to the Site with Owner's employees, or to arrange to have utility owners perform work at or adjacent to the Site, the following will be

set forth in the Supplementary Conditions or provided to Contractor prior to the start of any such other work:

- 1. The identity of the individual or entity that will have authority and responsibility for coordination of the activities among the various contractors;
- 2. An itemization of the specific matters to be covered by such authority and responsibility; and
- 3. The extent of such authority and responsibilities.
- B. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Owner shall have sole authority and responsibility for such coordination.

8.03 Legal Relationships

- A. If, in the course of performing other work for Owner at or adjacent to the Site, the Owner's employees, any other contractor working for Owner, or any utility owner that Owner has arranged to perform work, causes damage to the Work or to the property of Contractor or its Subcontractors, or delays, disrupts, interferes with, or increases the scope or cost of the performance of the Work, through actions or inaction, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times. Contractor must submit any Change Proposal seeking an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times under this paragraph within 30 days of the damaging, delaying, disrupting, or interfering event. The entitlement to, and extent of, any such equitable adjustment will take into account information (if any) regarding such other work that was provided to Contractor in the Contract Documents prior to the submittal of the Bid or the final negotiation of the terms of the Contract, and any remedies available to Contractor under Laws or Regulations concerning utility action or inaction. When applicable, any such equitable adjustment in Contract Price will be conditioned on Contractor assigning to Owner all Contractor's rights against such other contractor or utility owner with respect to the damage, delay, disruption, or interference that is the subject of the adjustment. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times or Contract Price is subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E.
- B. Contractor shall take reasonable and customary measures to avoid damaging, delaying, disrupting, or interfering with the work of Owner, any other contractor, or any utility owner performing other work at or adjacent to the Site.
 - 1. If Contractor fails to take such measures and as a result damages, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the work of any such other contractor or utility owner, then Owner may impose a set-off against payments due Contractor, and assign to such other contractor or utility owner the Owner's contractual rights against Contractor with respect to the breach of the obligations set forth in this Paragraph 8.03.B.
 - 2. When Owner is performing other work at or adjacent to the Site with Owner's employees, Contractor shall be liable to Owner for damage to such other work, and for the reasonable direct delay, disruption, and interference costs incurred by Owner as a result of Contractor's failure to take reasonable and customary measures with respect to Owner's other work. In response to such damage, delay, disruption, or interference, Owner may impose a set-off against payments due Contractor.

C. If Contractor damages, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the work of any other contractor, or any utility owner performing other work at or adjacent to the Site, through Contractor's failure to take reasonable and customary measures to avoid such impacts, or if any claim arising out of Contractor's actions, inactions, or negligence in performance of the Work at or adjacent to the Site is made by any such other contractor or utility owner against Contractor, Owner, or Engineer, then Contractor shall (1) promptly attempt to settle the claim as to all parties through negotiations with such other contractor or utility owner, or otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding or at law, and (2) indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against any such claims, and against all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such damage, delay, disruption, or interference.

ARTICLE 9—OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- 9.01 Communications to Contractor
 - A. Except as otherwise provided in these General Conditions, Owner shall issue all communications to Contractor through Engineer.
- 9.02 Replacement of Engineer
 - A. Owner may at its discretion appoint an engineer to replace Engineer, provided Contractor makes no reasonable objection to the replacement engineer. The replacement engineer's status under the Contract Documents will be that of the former Engineer.
- 9.03 Furnish Data
 - A. Owner shall promptly furnish the data required of Owner under the Contract Documents.
- 9.04 Pay When Due
 - A. Owner shall make payments to Contractor when they are due as provided in the Agreement.
- 9.05 Lands and Easements; Reports, Tests, and Drawings
 - A. Owner's duties with respect to providing lands and easements are set forth in Paragraph 5.01.
 - B. Owner's duties with respect to providing engineering surveys to establish reference points are set forth in Paragraph 4.03.
 - C. Article 5 refers to Owner's identifying and making available to Contractor copies of reports of explorations and tests of conditions at the Site, and drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site.
- 9.06 *Insurance*
 - A. Owner's responsibilities, if any, with respect to purchasing and maintaining liability and property insurance are set forth in Article 6.
- 9.07 Change Orders
 - A. Owner's responsibilities with respect to Change Orders are set forth in Article 11.

9.08 Inspections, Tests, and Approvals

A. Owner's responsibility with respect to certain inspections, tests, and approvals is set forth in Paragraph 14.02.B.

9.09 Limitations on Owner's Responsibilities

A. The Owner shall not supervise, direct, or have control or authority over, nor be responsible for, Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Owner will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

9.10 Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition

A. Owner's responsibility in respect to an undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition is set forth in Paragraph 5.06.

9.11 Evidence of Financial Arrangements

A. Upon request of Contractor, Owner shall furnish Contractor reasonable evidence that financial arrangements have been made to satisfy Owner's obligations under the Contract (including obligations under proposed changes in the Work).

9.12 Safety Programs

- A. While at the Site, Owner's employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable requirements of Contractor's safety programs of which Owner has been informed.
- B. Owner shall furnish copies of any applicable Owner safety programs to Contractor.

ARTICLE 10—ENGINEER'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION

10.01 Owner's Representative

A. Engineer will be Owner's representative during the construction period. The duties and responsibilities and the limitations of authority of Engineer as Owner's representative during construction are set forth in the Contract.

10.02 Visits to Site

A. Engineer will make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction as Engineer deems necessary in order to observe, as an experienced and qualified design professional, the progress that has been made and the quality of the various aspects of Contractor's executed Work. Based on information obtained during such visits and observations, Engineer, for the benefit of Owner, will determine, in general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. Engineer will not be required to make exhaustive or continuous inspections on the Site to check the quality or quantity of the Work. Engineer's efforts will be directed toward providing for Owner a greater degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform generally to the Contract Documents. On the basis of such visits and observations, Engineer will keep Owner informed of the progress of the Work and will endeavor to guard Owner against defective Work.

B. Engineer's visits and observations are subject to all the limitations on Engineer's authority and responsibility set forth in Paragraph 10.07. Particularly, but without limitation, during or as a result of Engineer's visits or observations of Contractor's Work, Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work.

10.03 Resident Project Representative

- A. If Owner and Engineer have agreed that Engineer will furnish a Resident Project Representative to represent Engineer at the Site and assist Engineer in observing the progress and quality of the Work, then the authority and responsibilities of any such Resident Project Representative will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions, and limitations on the responsibilities thereof will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions and in Paragraph 10.07.
- B. If Owner designates an individual or entity who is not Engineer's consultant, agent, or employee to represent Owner at the Site, then the responsibilities and authority of such individual or entity will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions.

10.04 Engineer's Authority

- A. Engineer has the authority to reject Work in accordance with Article 14.
- B. Engineer's authority as to Submittals is set forth in Paragraph 7.16.
- C. Engineer's authority as to design drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications and other Submittals from Contractor in response to Owner's delegation (if any) to Contractor of professional design services, is set forth in Paragraph 7.19.
- D. Engineer's authority as to changes in the Work is set forth in Article 11.
- E. Engineer's authority as to Applications for Payment is set forth in Article 15.

10.05 Determinations for Unit Price Work

A. Engineer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor as set forth in Paragraph 13.03.

10.06 Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work

A. Engineer will render decisions regarding the requirements of the Contract Documents, and judge the acceptability of the Work, pursuant to the specific procedures set forth herein for initial interpretations, Change Proposals, and acceptance of the Work. In rendering such decisions and judgments, Engineer will not show partiality to Owner or Contractor, and will not be liable to Owner, Contractor, or others in connection with any proceedings, interpretations, decisions, or judgments conducted or rendered in good faith.

10.07 Limitations on Engineer's Authority and Responsibilities

A. Neither Engineer's authority or responsibility under this Article 10 or under any other provision of the Contract, nor any decision made by Engineer in good faith either to exercise or not exercise such authority or responsibility or the undertaking, exercise, or performance of any authority or responsibility by Engineer, will create, impose, or give rise to any duty in contract, tort, or otherwise owed by Engineer to Contractor, any Subcontractor, any

- Supplier, any other individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee or agent of any of them.
- B. Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Engineer will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- C. Engineer will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of Contractor or of any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or of any other individual or entity performing any of the Work.
- D. Engineer's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation, and all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, and other documentation required to be delivered by Contractor under Paragraph 15.06.A, will only be to determine generally that their content complies with the requirements of, and in the case of certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals, that the results certified indicate compliance with the Contract Documents.
- E. The limitations upon authority and responsibility set forth in this Paragraph 10.07 also apply to the Resident Project Representative, if any.

10.08 Compliance with Safety Program

A. While at the Site, Engineer's employees and representatives will comply with the specific applicable requirements of Owner's and Contractor's safety programs of which Engineer has been informed.

ARTICLE 11—CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT

11.01 Amending and Supplementing the Contract

- A. The Contract may be amended or supplemented by a Change Order, a Work Change Directive, or a Field Order.
- B. If an amendment or supplement to the Contract includes a change in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, such amendment or supplement must be set forth in a Change Order.
- C. All changes to the Contract that involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the Work, (2) the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3) other engineering or technical matters, must be supported by Engineer's recommendation. Owner and Contractor may amend other terms and conditions of the Contract without the recommendation of the Engineer.

11.02 Change Orders

- A. Owner and Contractor shall execute appropriate Change Orders covering:
 - Changes in Contract Price or Contract Times which are agreed to by the parties, including any undisputed sum or amount of time for Work actually performed in accordance with a Work Change Directive;
 - 2. Changes in Contract Price resulting from an Owner set-off, unless Contractor has duly contested such set-off;

- 3. Changes in the Work which are: (a) ordered by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 11.05, (b) required because of Owner's acceptance of defective Work under Paragraph 14.04 or Owner's correction of defective Work under Paragraph 14.07, or (c) agreed to by the parties, subject to the need for Engineer's recommendation if the change in the Work involves the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise) or other engineering or technical matters; and
- 4. Changes that embody the substance of any final and binding results under: Paragraph 11.03.B, resolving the impact of a Work Change Directive; Paragraph 11.09, concerning Change Proposals; Article 12, Claims; Paragraph 13.02.D, final adjustments resulting from allowances; Paragraph 13.03.D, final adjustments relating to determination of quantities for Unit Price Work; and similar provisions.
- B. If Owner or Contractor refuses to execute a Change Order that is required to be executed under the terms of Paragraph 11.02.A, it will be deemed to be of full force and effect, as if fully executed.

11.03 Work Change Directives

- A. A Work Change Directive will not change the Contract Price or the Contract Times but is evidence that the parties expect that the modification ordered or documented by a Work Change Directive will be incorporated in a subsequently issued Change Order, following negotiations by the parties as to the Work Change Directive's effect, if any, on the Contract Price and Contract Times; or, if negotiations are unsuccessful, by a determination under the terms of the Contract Documents governing adjustments, expressly including Paragraph 11.07 regarding change of Contract Price.
- B. If Owner has issued a Work Change Directive and:
 - 1. Contractor believes that an adjustment in Contract Times or Contract Price is necessary, then Contractor shall submit any Change Proposal seeking such an adjustment no later than 30 days after the completion of the Work set out in the Work Change Directive.
 - 2. Owner believes that an adjustment in Contract Times or Contract Price is necessary, then Owner shall submit any Claim seeking such an adjustment no later than 60 days after issuance of the Work Change Directive.

11.04 Field Orders

- A. Engineer may authorize minor changes in the Work if the changes do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times and are compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents. Such changes will be accomplished by a Field Order and will be binding on Owner and also on Contractor, which shall perform the Work involved promptly.
- B. If Contractor believes that a Field Order justifies an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, then before proceeding with the Work at issue, Contractor shall submit a Change Proposal as provided herein.

11.05 Owner-Authorized Changes in the Work

A. Without invalidating the Contract and without notice to any surety, Owner may, at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work. Changes involving

- the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise) or other engineering or technical matters will be supported by Engineer's recommendation.
- B. Such changes in the Work may be accomplished by a Change Order, if Owner and Contractor have agreed as to the effect, if any, of the changes on Contract Times or Contract Price; or by a Work Change Directive. Upon receipt of any such document, Contractor shall promptly proceed with the Work involved; or, in the case of a deletion in the Work, promptly cease construction activities with respect to such deleted Work. Added or revised Work must be performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents.
- C. Nothing in this Paragraph 11.05 obligates Contractor to undertake work that Contractor reasonably concludes cannot be performed in a manner consistent with Contractor's safety obligations under the Contract Documents or Laws and Regulations.

11.06 Unauthorized Changes in the Work

A. Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times with respect to any work performed that is not required by the Contract Documents, as amended, modified, or supplemented, except in the case of an emergency as provided in Paragraph 7.15 or in the case of uncovering Work as provided in Paragraph 14.05.C.2.

11.07 Change of Contract Price

- A. The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Change Proposal for an adjustment in the Contract Price must comply with the provisions of Paragraph 11.09. Any Claim for an adjustment of Contract Price must comply with the provisions of Article 12.
- B. An adjustment in the Contract Price will be determined as follows:
 - 1. Where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, then by application of such unit prices to the quantities of the items involved (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 13.03);
 - 2. Where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, then by a mutually agreed lump sum (which may include an allowance for overhead and profit not necessarily in accordance with Paragraph 11.07.C.2); or
 - 3. Where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents and the parties do not reach mutual agreement to a lump sum, then on the basis of the Cost of the Work (determined as provided in Paragraph 13.01) plus a Contractor's fee for overhead and profit (determined as provided in Paragraph 11.07.C).
- C. *Contractor's Fee*: When applicable, the Contractor's fee for overhead and profit will be determined as follows:
 - 1. A mutually acceptable fixed fee; or
 - 2. If a fixed fee is not agreed upon, then a fee based on the following percentages of the various portions of the Cost of the Work:
 - a. For costs incurred under Paragraphs 13.01.B.1 and 13.01.B.2, the Contractor's fee will be 15 percent;
 - b. For costs incurred under Paragraph 13.01.B.3, the Contractor's fee will be 5 percent;

- c. Where one or more tiers of subcontracts are on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee and no fixed fee is agreed upon, the intent of Paragraphs 11.07.C.2.a and 11.07.C.2.b is that the Contractor's fee will be based on: (1) a fee of 15 percent of the costs incurred under Paragraphs 13.01.B.1 and 13.01.B.2 by the Subcontractor that actually performs the Work, at whatever tier, and (2) with respect to Contractor itself and to any Subcontractors of a tier higher than that of the Subcontractor that actually performs the Work, a fee of 5 percent of the amount (fee plus underlying costs incurred) attributable to the next lower tier Subcontractor; provided, however, that for any such subcontracted Work the maximum total fee to be paid by Owner will be no greater than 27 percent of the costs incurred by the Subcontractor that actually performs the Work;
- d. No fee will be payable on the basis of costs itemized under Paragraphs 13.01.B.4, 13.01.B.5, and 13.01.C;
- e. The amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any change which results in a net decrease in Cost of the Work will be the amount of the actual net decrease in Cost of the Work and a deduction of an additional amount equal to 5 percent of such actual net decrease in Cost of the Work; and
- f. When both additions and credits are involved in any one change or Change Proposal, the adjustment in Contractor's fee will be computed by determining the sum of the costs in each of the cost categories in Paragraph 13.01.B (specifically, payroll costs, Paragraph 13.01.B.1; incorporated materials and equipment costs, Paragraph 13.01.B.2; Subcontract costs, Paragraph 13.01.B.3; special consultants costs, Paragraph 13.01.B.4; and other costs, Paragraph 13.01.B.5) and applying to each such cost category sum the appropriate fee from Paragraphs 11.07.C.2.a through 11.07.C.2.e, inclusive.

11.08 Change of Contract Times

- A. The Contract Times may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Change Proposal for an adjustment in the Contract Times must comply with the provisions of Paragraph 11.09. Any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Times must comply with the provisions of Article 12.
- B. Delay, disruption, and interference in the Work, and any related changes in Contract Times, are addressed in and governed by Paragraph 4.05.

11.09 Change Proposals

A. Purpose and Content: Contractor shall submit a Change Proposal to Engineer to request an adjustment in the Contract Times or Contract Price; contest an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Contract Documents; challenge a set-off against payment due; or seek other relief under the Contract. The Change Proposal will specify any proposed change in Contract Times or Contract Price, or other proposed relief, and explain the reason for the proposed change, with citations to any governing or applicable provisions of the Contract Documents. Each Change Proposal will address only one issue, or a set of closely related issues.

B. Change Proposal Procedures

- 1. *Submittal*: Contractor shall submit each Change Proposal to Engineer within 30 days after the start of the event giving rise thereto, or after such initial decision.
- 2. Supporting Data: The Contractor shall submit supporting data, including the proposed change in Contract Price or Contract Time (if any), to the Engineer and Owner within 15 days after the submittal of the Change Proposal.
 - a. Change Proposals based on or related to delay, interruption, or interference must comply with the provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E.
 - Change proposals related to a change of Contract Price must include full and detailed accounts of materials incorporated into the Work and labor and equipment used for the subject Work.

The supporting data must be accompanied by a written statement that the supporting data are accurate and complete, and that any requested time or price adjustment is the entire adjustment to which Contractor believes it is entitled as a result of said event.

- 3. Engineer's Initial Review: Engineer will advise Owner regarding the Change Proposal, and consider any comments or response from Owner regarding the Change Proposal. If in its discretion Engineer concludes that additional supporting data is needed before conducting a full review and making a decision regarding the Change Proposal, then Engineer may request that Contractor submit such additional supporting data by a date specified by Engineer, prior to Engineer beginning its full review of the Change Proposal.
- 4. Engineer's Full Review and Action on the Change Proposal: Upon receipt of Contractor's supporting data (including any additional data requested by Engineer), Engineer will conduct a full review of each Change Proposal and, within 30 days after such receipt of the Contractor's supporting data, either approve the Change Proposal in whole, deny it in whole, or approve it in part and deny it in part. Such actions must be in writing, with a copy provided to Owner and Contractor. If Engineer does not take action on the Change Proposal within 30 days, then either Owner or Contractor may at any time thereafter submit a letter to the other party indicating that as a result of Engineer's inaction the Change Proposal is deemed denied, thereby commencing the time for appeal of the denial under Article 12.
- 5. *Binding Decision*: Engineer's decision is final and binding upon Owner and Contractor, unless Owner or Contractor appeals the decision by filing a Claim under Article 12.
- C. Resolution of Certain Change Proposals: If the Change Proposal does not involve the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability of the Work, or other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will notify the parties in writing that the Engineer is unable to resolve the Change Proposal. For purposes of further resolution of such a Change Proposal, such notice will be deemed a denial, and Contractor may choose to seek resolution under the terms of Article 12.
- D. *Post-Completion*: Contractor shall not submit any Change Proposals after Engineer issues a written recommendation of final payment pursuant to Paragraph 15.06.B.

11.10 Notification to Surety

A. If the provisions of any bond require notice to be given to a surety of any change affecting the general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, Contract Price or Contract Times), the giving of any such notice will be Contractor's responsibility. The amount of each applicable bond will be adjusted to reflect the effect of any such change.

ARTICLE 12—CLAIMS

12.01 *Claims*

- A. *Claims Process*: The following disputes between Owner and Contractor are subject to the Claims process set forth in this article:
 - 1. Appeals by Owner or Contractor of Engineer's decisions regarding Change Proposals;
 - 2. Owner demands for adjustments in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or other relief under the Contract Documents;
 - 3. Disputes that Engineer has been unable to address because they do not involve the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability of the Work, or other engineering or technical matters; and
 - 4. Subject to the waiver provisions of Paragraph 15.07, any dispute arising after Engineer has issued a written recommendation of final payment pursuant to Paragraph 15.06.B.
- B. Submittal of Claim: The party submitting a Claim shall deliver it directly to the other party to the Contract promptly (but in no event later than 30 days) after the start of the event giving rise thereto; in the case of appeals regarding Change Proposals within 30 days of the decision under appeal. The party submitting the Claim shall also furnish a copy to the Engineer, for its information only. The responsibility to substantiate a Claim rests with the party making the Claim. In the case of a Claim by Contractor seeking an increase in the Contract Times or Contract Price, Contractor shall certify that the Claim is made in good faith, that the supporting data are accurate and complete, and that to the best of Contractor's knowledge and belief the amount of time or money requested accurately reflects the full amount to which Contractor is entitled.
- C. Review and Resolution: The party receiving a Claim shall review it thoroughly, giving full consideration to its merits. The two parties shall seek to resolve the Claim through the exchange of information and direct negotiations. The parties may extend the time for resolving the Claim by mutual agreement. All actions taken on a Claim will be stated in writing and submitted to the other party, with a copy to Engineer.

D. Mediation

- At any time after initiation of a Claim, Owner and Contractor may mutually agree to mediation of the underlying dispute. The agreement to mediate will stay the Claim submittal and response process.
- 2. If Owner and Contractor agree to mediation, then after 60 days from such agreement, either Owner or Contractor may unilaterally terminate the mediation process, and the Claim submittal and decision process will resume as of the date of the termination. If the mediation proceeds but is unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, the Claim submittal

- and decision process will resume as of the date of the conclusion of the mediation, as determined by the mediator.
- 3. Owner and Contractor shall each pay one-half of the mediator's fees and costs.
- E. *Partial Approval*: If the party receiving a Claim approves the Claim in part and denies it in part, such action will be final and binding unless within 30 days of such action the other party invokes the procedure set forth in Article 17 for final resolution of disputes.
- F. Denial of Claim: If efforts to resolve a Claim are not successful, the party receiving the Claim may deny it by giving written notice of denial to the other party. If the receiving party does not take action on the Claim within 90 days, then either Owner or Contractor may at any time thereafter submit a letter to the other party indicating that as a result of the inaction, the Claim is deemed denied, thereby commencing the time for appeal of the denial. A denial of the Claim will be final and binding unless within 30 days of the denial the other party invokes the procedure set forth in Article 17 for the final resolution of disputes.
- G. Final and Binding Results: If the parties reach a mutual agreement regarding a Claim, whether through approval of the Claim, direct negotiations, mediation, or otherwise; or if a Claim is approved in part and denied in part, or denied in full, and such actions become final and binding; then the results of the agreement or action on the Claim will be incorporated in a Change Order or other written document to the extent they affect the Contract, including the Work, the Contract Times, or the Contract Price.

ARTICLE 13—COST OF THE WORK; ALLOWANCES; UNIT PRICE WORK

13.01 *Cost of the Work*

- A. Purposes for Determination of Cost of the Work: The term Cost of the Work means the sum of all costs necessary for the proper performance of the Work at issue, as further defined below. The provisions of this Paragraph 13.01 are used for two distinct purposes:
 - 1. To determine Cost of the Work when Cost of the Work is a component of the Contract Price, under cost-plus-fee, time-and-materials, or other cost-based terms; or
 - 2. When needed to determine the value of a Change Order, Change Proposal, Claim, setoff, or other adjustment in Contract Price. When the value of any such adjustment is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, Contractor is entitled only to those additional or incremental costs required because of the change in the Work or because of the event giving rise to the adjustment.
- B. Costs Included: Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by Owner, costs included in the Cost of the Work will be in amounts no higher than those commonly incurred in the locality of the Project, will not include any of the costs itemized in Paragraph 13.01.C, and will include only the following items:
 - Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of Contractor in the performance of the Work under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by Owner and Contractor in advance of the subject Work. Such employees include, without limitation, superintendents, foremen, safety managers, safety representatives, and other personnel employed full time on the Work. Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on the Work will be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the Work. Payroll costs include, but are not limited to, salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe

benefits, which include social security contributions, unemployment, excise, and payroll taxes, workers' compensation, health and retirement benefits, sick leave, and vacation and holiday pay applicable thereto. The expenses of performing Work outside of regular working hours, on Saturday, Sunday, or legal holidays, will be included in the above to the extent authorized by Owner.

- 2. Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the Work, including costs of transportation and storage thereof, and Suppliers' field services required in connection therewith. All cash discounts accrue to Contractor unless Owner deposits funds with Contractor with which to make payments, in which case the cash discounts will accrue to Owner. All trade discounts, rebates, and refunds and returns from sale of surplus materials and equipment will accrue to Owner, and Contractor shall make provisions so that they may be obtained.
- 3. Payments made by Contractor to Subcontractors for Work performed by Subcontractors. If required by Owner, Contractor shall obtain competitive bids from subcontractors acceptable to Owner and Contractor and shall deliver such bids to Owner, which will then determine, with the advice of Engineer, which bids, if any, will be acceptable. If any subcontract provides that the Subcontractor is to be paid on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee, the Subcontractor's Cost of the Work and fee will be determined in the same manner as Contractor's Cost of the Work and fee as provided in this Paragraph 13.01.
- 4. Costs of special consultants (including but not limited to engineers, architects, testing laboratories, surveyors, attorneys, and accountants) employed or retained for services specifically related to the Work.
- 5. Other costs consisting of the following:
 - a. The proportion of necessary transportation, travel, and subsistence expenses of Contractor's employees incurred in discharge of duties connected with the Work.
 - b. Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of all materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, appliances, office, and temporary facilities at the Site, which are consumed in the performance of the Work, and cost, less market value, of such items used but not consumed which remain the property of Contractor.
 - 1) In establishing included costs for materials such as scaffolding, plating, or sheeting, consideration will be given to the actual or the estimated life of the material for use on other projects; or rental rates may be established on the basis of purchase or salvage value of such items, whichever is less. Contractor will not be eligible for compensation for such items in an amount that exceeds the purchase cost of such item.

c. Construction Equipment Rental

1) Rentals of all construction equipment and machinery, and the parts thereof, in accordance with rental agreements approved by Owner as to price (including any surcharge or special rates applicable to overtime use of the construction equipment or machinery), and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading, assembly, dismantling, and removal thereof. All such costs will be in accordance with the terms of said rental agreements. The rental of any such equipment,

- machinery, or parts must cease when the use thereof is no longer necessary for the Work.
- 2) Costs for equipment and machinery owned by Contractor or a Contractorrelated entity will be paid at a rate shown for such equipment in the equipment rental rate book specified in the Supplementary Conditions. An hourly rate will be computed by dividing the monthly rates by 176. These computed rates will include all operating costs.
- 3) With respect to Work that is the result of a Change Order, Change Proposal, Claim, set-off, or other adjustment in Contract Price ("changed Work"), included costs will be based on the time the equipment or machinery is in use on the changed Work and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading, assembly, dismantling, and removal when directly attributable to the changed Work. The cost of any such equipment or machinery, or parts thereof, must cease to accrue when the use thereof is no longer necessary for the changed Work.
- d. Sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes related to the Work, and for which Contractor is liable, as imposed by Laws and Regulations.
- e. Deposits lost for causes other than negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, and royalty payments and fees for permits and licenses.
- f. Losses and damages (and related expenses) caused by damage to the Work, not compensated by insurance or otherwise, sustained by Contractor in connection with the performance of the Work (except losses and damages within the deductible amounts of builder's risk or other property insurance established in accordance with Paragraph 6.04), provided such losses and damages have resulted from causes other than the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable. Such losses include settlements made with the written consent and approval of Owner. No such losses, damages, and expenses will be included in the Cost of the Work for the purpose of determining Contractor's fee.
- g. The cost of utilities, fuel, and sanitary facilities at the Site.
- h. Minor expenses such as communication service at the Site, express and courier services, and similar petty cash items in connection with the Work.
- i. The costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance that Contractor is required by the Contract Documents to purchase and maintain.
- C. Costs Excluded: The term Cost of the Work does not include any of the following items:
 - 1. Payroll costs and other compensation of Contractor's officers, executives, principals, general managers, engineers, architects, estimators, attorneys, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, expediters, timekeepers, clerks, and other personnel employed by Contractor, whether at the Site or in Contractor's principal or branch office for general administration of the Work and not specifically included in the agreed upon schedule of job classifications referred to in Paragraph 13.01.B.1 or specifically covered by Paragraph 13.01.B.4. The payroll costs and other compensation excluded here are to be considered administrative costs covered by the Contractor's fee.

- 2. The cost of purchasing, renting, or furnishing small tools and hand tools.
- 3. Expenses of Contractor's principal and branch offices other than Contractor's office at the Site.
- 4. Any part of Contractor's capital expenses, including interest on Contractor's capital employed for the Work and charges against Contractor for delinquent payments.
- Costs due to the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, including but not limited to, the correction of defective Work, disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied, and making good any damage to property.
- 6. Expenses incurred in preparing and advancing Claims.
- 7. Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not specifically and expressly included in Paragraph 13.01.B.

D. Contractor's Fee

- 1. When the Work as a whole is performed on the basis of cost-plus-a-fee, then:
 - a. Contractor's fee for the Work set forth in the Contract Documents as of the Effective Date of the Contract will be determined as set forth in the Agreement.
 - b. for any Work covered by a Change Order, Change Proposal, Claim, set-off, or other adjustment in Contract Price on the basis of Cost of the Work, Contractor's fee will be determined as follows:
 - 1) When the fee for the Work as a whole is a percentage of the Cost of the Work, the fee will automatically adjust as the Cost of the Work changes.
 - 2) When the fee for the Work as a whole is a fixed fee, the fee for any additions or deletions will be determined in accordance with Paragraph 11.07.C.2.
- 2. When the Work as a whole is performed on the basis of a stipulated sum, or any other basis other than cost-plus-a-fee, then Contractor's fee for any Work covered by a Change Order, Change Proposal, Claim, set-off, or other adjustment in Contract Price on the basis of Cost of the Work will be determined in accordance with Paragraph 11.07.C.2.
- E. Documentation and Audit: Whenever the Cost of the Work for any purpose is to be determined pursuant to this Article 13, Contractor and pertinent Subcontractors will establish and maintain records of the costs in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. Subject to prior written notice, Owner will be afforded reasonable access, during normal business hours, to all Contractor's accounts, records, books, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, vouchers, memoranda, and similar data relating to the Cost of the Work and Contractor's fee. Contractor shall preserve all such documents for a period of three years after the final payment by Owner. Pertinent Subcontractors will afford such access to Owner, and preserve such documents, to the same extent required of Contractor.

13.02 Allowances

- A. It is understood that Contractor has included in the Contract Price all allowances so named in the Contract Documents and shall cause the Work so covered to be performed for such sums and by such persons or entities as may be acceptable to Owner and Engineer.
- B. Cash Allowances: Contractor agrees that:
 - the cash allowances include the cost to Contractor (less any applicable trade discounts)
 of materials and equipment required by the allowances to be delivered at the Site, and
 all applicable taxes; and
 - 2. Contractor's costs for unloading and handling on the Site, labor, installation, overhead, profit, and other expenses contemplated for the cash allowances have been included in the Contract Price and not in the allowances, and no demand for additional payment for any of the foregoing will be valid.
- C. *Owner's Contingency Allowance*: Contractor agrees that an Owner's contingency allowance, if any, is for the sole use of Owner to cover unanticipated costs.
- D. Prior to final payment, an appropriate Change Order will be issued as recommended by Engineer to reflect actual amounts due Contractor for Work covered by allowances, and the Contract Price will be correspondingly adjusted.

13.03 Unit Price Work

- A. Where the Contract Documents provide that all or part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work, initially the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to the sum of the unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of each item as indicated in the Agreement.
- B. The estimated quantities of items of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids and determining an initial Contract Price. Payments to Contractor for Unit Price Work will be based on actual quantities.
- C. Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by Contractor to be adequate to cover Contractor's overhead and profit for each separately identified item.
- D. Engineer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor. Engineer will review with Contractor the Engineer's preliminary determinations on such matters before rendering a written decision thereon (by recommendation of an Application for Payment or otherwise). Engineer's written decision thereon will be final and binding (except as modified by Engineer to reflect changed factual conditions or more accurate data) upon Owner and Contractor, and the final adjustment of Contract Price will be set forth in a Change Order, subject to the provisions of the following paragraph.

E. Adjustments in Unit Price

- 1. Contractor or Owner shall be entitled to an adjustment in the unit price with respect to an item of Unit Price Work if:
 - a. the quantity of the item of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor differs materially and significantly from the estimated quantity of such item indicated in the Agreement; and

- b. Contractor's unit costs to perform the item of Unit Price Work have changed materially and significantly as a result of the quantity change.
- 2. The adjustment in unit price will account for and be coordinated with any related changes in quantities of other items of Work, and in Contractor's costs to perform such other Work, such that the resulting overall change in Contract Price is equitable to Owner and Contractor.
- 3. Adjusted unit prices will apply to all units of that item.

ARTICLE 14—TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL, OR ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK

14.01 Access to Work

A. Owner, Engineer, their consultants and other representatives and personnel of Owner, independent testing laboratories, and authorities having jurisdiction have access to the Site and the Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspection, and testing. Contractor shall provide them proper and safe conditions for such access and advise them of Contractor's safety procedures and programs so that they may comply with such procedures and programs as applicable.

14.02 Tests, Inspections, and Approvals

- A. Contractor shall give Engineer timely notice of readiness of the Work (or specific parts thereof) for all required inspections and tests, and shall cooperate with inspection and testing personnel to facilitate required inspections and tests.
- B. Owner shall retain and pay for the services of an independent inspector, testing laboratory, or other qualified individual or entity to perform all inspections and tests expressly required by the Contract Documents to be furnished and paid for by Owner, except that costs incurred in connection with tests or inspections of covered Work will be governed by the provisions of Paragraph 14.05.
- C. If Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction require any Work (or part thereof) specifically to be inspected, tested, or approved by an employee or other representative of such public body, Contractor shall assume full responsibility for arranging and obtaining such inspections, tests, or approvals, pay all costs in connection therewith, and furnish Engineer the required certificates of inspection or approval.
- D. Contractor shall be responsible for arranging, obtaining, and paying for all inspections and tests required:
 - 1. by the Contract Documents, unless the Contract Documents expressly allocate responsibility for a specific inspection or test to Owner;
 - 2. to attain Owner's and Engineer's acceptance of materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work;
 - 3. by manufacturers of equipment furnished under the Contract Documents;
 - 4. for testing, adjusting, and balancing of mechanical, electrical, and other equipment to be incorporated into the Work; and

- 5. for acceptance of materials, mix designs, or equipment submitted for approval prior to Contractor's purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work.
- Such inspections and tests will be performed by independent inspectors, testing laboratories, or other qualified individuals or entities acceptable to Owner and Engineer.
- E. If the Contract Documents require the Work (or part thereof) to be approved by Owner, Engineer, or another designated individual or entity, then Contractor shall assume full responsibility for arranging and obtaining such approvals.
- F. If any Work (or the work of others) that is to be inspected, tested, or approved is covered by Contractor without written concurrence of Engineer, Contractor shall, if requested by Engineer, uncover such Work for observation. Such uncovering will be at Contractor's expense unless Contractor had given Engineer timely notice of Contractor's intention to cover the same and Engineer had not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such notice.

14.03 Defective Work

- A. Contractor's Obligation: It is Contractor's obligation to assure that the Work is not defective.
- B. *Engineer's Authority*: Engineer has the authority to determine whether Work is defective, and to reject defective Work.
- C. *Notice of Defects*: Prompt written notice of all defective Work of which Owner or Engineer has actual knowledge will be given to Contractor.
- D. *Correction, or Removal and Replacement*: Promptly after receipt of written notice of defective Work, Contractor shall correct all such defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed, or, if Engineer has rejected the defective Work, remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective.
- E. *Preservation of Warranties*: When correcting defective Work, Contractor shall take no action that would void or otherwise impair Owner's special warranty and guarantee, if any, on said Work.
- F. Costs and Damages: In addition to its correction, removal, and replacement obligations with respect to defective Work, Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages arising out of or relating to defective Work, including but not limited to the cost of the inspection, testing, correction, removal, replacement, or reconstruction of such defective Work, fines levied against Owner by governmental authorities because the Work is defective, and the costs of repair or replacement of work of others resulting from defective Work. Prior to final payment, if Owner and Contractor are unable to agree as to the measure of such claims, costs, losses, and damages resulting from defective Work, then Owner may impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15.

14.04 Acceptance of Defective Work

A. If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, Owner prefers to accept it, Owner may do so (subject, if such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, to Engineer's confirmation that such acceptance is in general accord with the design intent and applicable engineering principles, and will not endanger public safety). Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages attributable to Owner's evaluation of and determination to accept such defective Work (such costs to be approved

by Engineer as to reasonableness), and for the diminished value of the Work to the extent not otherwise paid by Contractor. If any such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work will be incorporated in a Change Order. If the parties are unable to agree as to the decrease in the Contract Price, reflecting the diminished value of Work so accepted, then Owner may impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15. If the acceptance of defective Work occurs after final payment, Contractor shall pay an appropriate amount to Owner.

14.05 *Uncovering Work*

- A. Engineer has the authority to require additional inspection or testing of the Work, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed.
- B. If any Work is covered contrary to the written request of Engineer, then Contractor shall, if requested by Engineer, uncover such Work for Engineer's observation, and then replace the covering, all at Contractor's expense.
- C. If Engineer considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be observed by Engineer or inspected or tested by others, then Contractor, at Engineer's request, shall uncover, expose, or otherwise make available for observation, inspection, or testing as Engineer may require, that portion of the Work in question, and provide all necessary labor, material, and equipment.
 - 1. If it is found that the uncovered Work is defective, Contractor shall be responsible for all claims, costs, losses, and damages arising out of or relating to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, and testing, and of satisfactory replacement or reconstruction (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others); and pending Contractor's full discharge of this responsibility the Owner shall be entitled to impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15.
 - 2. If the uncovered Work is not found to be defective, Contractor shall be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing, replacement, and reconstruction. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount or extent thereof, then Contractor may submit a Change Proposal within 30 days of the determination that the Work is not defective.

14.06 Owner May Stop the Work

A. If the Work is defective, or Contractor fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment, or fails to perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, then Owner may order Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of Owner to stop the Work will not give rise to any duty on the part of Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or any surety for, or employee or agent of any of them.

14.07 Owner May Correct Defective Work

A. If Contractor fails within a reasonable time after written notice from Engineer to correct defective Work, or to remove and replace defective Work as required by Engineer, then

- Owner may, after 7 days' written notice to Contractor, correct or remedy any such deficiency.
- B. In exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 14.07, Owner shall proceed expeditiously. In connection with such corrective or remedial action, Owner may exclude Contractor from all or part of the Site, take possession of all or part of the Work and suspend Contractor's services related thereto, and incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere. Contractor shall allow Owner, Owner's representatives, agents and employees, Owner's other contractors, and Engineer and Engineer's consultants access to the Site to enable Owner to exercise the rights and remedies under this paragraph.
- C. All claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred or sustained by Owner in exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 14.07 will be charged against Contractor as set-offs against payments due under Article 15. Such claims, costs, losses and damages will include but not be limited to all costs of repair, or replacement of work of others destroyed or damaged by correction, removal, or replacement of Contractor's defective Work.
- D. Contractor shall not be allowed an extension of the Contract Times because of any delay in the performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by Owner of Owner's rights and remedies under this Paragraph 14.07.

ARTICLE 15—PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR; SET-OFFS; COMPLETION; CORRECTION PERIOD

15.01 Progress Payments

A. Basis for Progress Payments: The Schedule of Values established as provided in Article 2 will serve as the basis for progress payments and will be incorporated into a form of Application for Payment acceptable to Engineer. Progress payments for Unit Price Work will be based on the number of units completed during the pay period, as determined under the provisions of Paragraph 13.03. Progress payments for cost-based Work will be based on Cost of the Work completed by Contractor during the pay period.

B. Applications for Payments

- At least 20 days before the date established in the Agreement for each progress payment (but not more often than once a month), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for review an Application for Payment filled out and signed by Contractor covering the Work completed as of the date of the Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.
- 2. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the Site or at another location agreed to in writing, the Application for Payment must also be accompanied by: (a) a bill of sale, invoice, copies of subcontract or purchase order payments, or other documentation establishing full payment by Contractor for the materials and equipment; (b) at Owner's request, documentation warranting that Owner has received the materials and equipment free and clear of all Liens; and (c) evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance, a warehouse bond, or other arrangements to protect Owner's interest therein, all of which must be satisfactory to Owner.

- 3. Beginning with the second Application for Payment, each Application must include an affidavit of Contractor stating that all previous progress payments received by Contractor have been applied to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations associated with prior Applications for Payment.
- 4. The amount of retainage with respect to progress payments will be as stipulated in the Agreement.

C. Review of Applications

- 1. Engineer will, within 10 days after receipt of each Application for Payment, including each resubmittal, either indicate in writing a recommendation of payment and present the Application to Owner, or return the Application to Contractor indicating in writing Engineer's reasons for refusing to recommend payment. In the latter case, Contractor may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application.
- 2. Engineer's recommendation of any payment requested in an Application for Payment will constitute a representation by Engineer to Owner, based on Engineer's observations of the executed Work as an experienced and qualified design professional, and on Engineer's review of the Application for Payment and the accompanying data and schedules, that to the best of Engineer's knowledge, information and belief:
 - a. the Work has progressed to the point indicated;
 - b. the quality of the Work is generally in accordance with the Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial Completion, the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract Documents, a final determination of quantities and classifications for Unit Price Work under Paragraph 13.03, and any other qualifications stated in the recommendation); and
 - c. the conditions precedent to Contractor's being entitled to such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer's responsibility to observe the Work.
- 3. By recommending any such payment Engineer will not thereby be deemed to have represented that:
 - a. inspections made to check the quality or the quantity of the Work as it has been performed have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of the Work in progress, or involved detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer in the Contract; or
 - b. there may not be other matters or issues between the parties that might entitle Contractor to be paid additionally by Owner or entitle Owner to withhold payment to Contractor.
- 4. Neither Engineer's review of Contractor's Work for the purposes of recommending payments nor Engineer's recommendation of any payment, including final payment, will impose responsibility on Engineer:
 - a. to supervise, direct, or control the Work;
 - b. for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto;

- c. for Contractor's failure to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's performance of the Work;
- d. to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes Contractor has used the money paid by Owner; or
- e. to determine that title to any of the Work, materials, or equipment has passed to Owner free and clear of any Liens.
- 5. Engineer may refuse to recommend the whole or any part of any payment if, in Engineer's opinion, it would be incorrect to make the representations to Owner stated in Paragraph 15.01.C.2.
- 6. Engineer will recommend reductions in payment (set-offs) necessary in Engineer's opinion to protect Owner from loss because:
 - a. the Work is defective, requiring correction or replacement;
 - b. the Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders;
 - c. Owner has been required to correct defective Work in accordance with Paragraph 14.07, or has accepted defective Work pursuant to Paragraph 14.04;
 - d. Owner has been required to remove or remediate a Hazardous Environmental Condition for which Contractor is responsible; or
 - e. Engineer has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events that would constitute a default by Contractor and therefore justify termination for cause under the Contract Documents.

D. Payment Becomes Due

1. Ten days after presentation of the Application for Payment to Owner with Engineer's recommendation, the amount recommended (subject to any Owner set-offs) will become due, and when due will be paid by Owner to Contractor.

E. Reductions in Payment by Owner

- 1. In addition to any reductions in payment (set-offs) recommended by Engineer, Owner is entitled to impose a set-off against payment based on any of the following:
 - a. Claims have been made against Owner based on Contractor's conduct in the performance or furnishing of the Work, or Owner has incurred costs, losses, or damages resulting from Contractor's conduct in the performance or furnishing of the Work, including but not limited to claims, costs, losses, or damages from workplace injuries, adjacent property damage, non-compliance with Laws and Regulations, and patent infringement;
 - b. Contractor has failed to take reasonable and customary measures to avoid damage, delay, disruption, and interference with other work at or adjacent to the Site;
 - c. Contractor has failed to provide and maintain required bonds or insurance;
 - d. Owner has been required to remove or remediate a Hazardous Environmental Condition for which Contractor is responsible;

- e. Owner has incurred extra charges or engineering costs related to submittal reviews, evaluations of proposed substitutes, tests and inspections, or return visits to manufacturing or assembly facilities;
- f. The Work is defective, requiring correction or replacement;
- g. Owner has been required to correct defective Work in accordance with Paragraph 14.07, or has accepted defective Work pursuant to Paragraph 14.04;
- h. The Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders;
- i. An event has occurred that would constitute a default by Contractor and therefore justify a termination for cause;
- j. Liquidated or other damages have accrued as a result of Contractor's failure to achieve Milestones, Substantial Completion, or final completion of the Work;
- k. Liens have been filed in connection with the Work, except where Contractor has delivered a specific bond satisfactory to Owner to secure the satisfaction and discharge of such Liens; or
- I. Other items entitle Owner to a set-off against the amount recommended.
- 2. If Owner imposes any set-off against payment, whether based on its own knowledge or on the written recommendations of Engineer, Owner will give Contractor immediate written notice (with a copy to Engineer) stating the reasons for such action and the specific amount of the reduction, and promptly pay Contractor any amount remaining after deduction of the amount so withheld. Owner shall promptly pay Contractor the amount so withheld, or any adjustment thereto agreed to by Owner and Contractor, if Contractor remedies the reasons for such action. The reduction imposed will be binding on Contractor unless it duly submits a Change Proposal contesting the reduction.
- 3. Upon a subsequent determination that Owner's refusal of payment was not justified, the amount wrongfully withheld will be treated as an amount due as determined by Paragraph 15.01.D.1 and subject to interest as provided in the Agreement.

15.02 Contractor's Warranty of Title

A. Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials, and equipment furnished under the Contract will pass to Owner free and clear of (1) all Liens and other title defects, and (2) all patent, licensing, copyright, or royalty obligations, no later than 7 days after the time of payment by Owner.

15.03 Substantial Completion

- A. When Contractor considers the entire Work ready for its intended use Contractor shall notify Owner and Engineer in writing that the entire Work is substantially complete and request that Engineer issue a certificate of Substantial Completion. Contractor shall at the same time submit to Owner and Engineer an initial draft of punch list items to be completed or corrected before final payment.
- B. Promptly after Contractor's notification, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an inspection of the Work to determine the status of completion. If Engineer does not consider the Work substantially complete, Engineer will notify Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor.

- C. If Engineer considers the Work substantially complete, Engineer will deliver to Owner a preliminary certificate of Substantial Completion which will fix the date of Substantial Completion. Engineer shall attach to the certificate a punch list of items to be completed or corrected before final payment. Owner shall have 7 days after receipt of the preliminary certificate during which to make written objection to Engineer as to any provisions of the certificate or attached punch list. If, after considering the objections to the provisions of the preliminary certificate, Engineer concludes that the Work is not substantially complete, Engineer will, within 14 days after submission of the preliminary certificate to Owner, notify Contractor in writing that the Work is not substantially complete, stating the reasons therefor. If Owner does not object to the provisions of the certificate, or if despite consideration of Owner's objections Engineer concludes that the Work is substantially complete, then Engineer will, within said 14 days, execute and deliver to Owner and Contractor a final certificate of Substantial Completion (with a revised punch list of items to be completed or corrected) reflecting such changes from the preliminary certificate as Engineer believes justified after consideration of any objections from Owner.
- D. At the time of receipt of the preliminary certificate of Substantial Completion, Owner and Contractor will confer regarding Owner's use or occupancy of the Work following Substantial Completion, review the builder's risk insurance policy with respect to the end of the builder's risk coverage, and confirm the transition to coverage of the Work under a permanent property insurance policy held by Owner. Unless Owner and Contractor agree otherwise in writing, Owner shall bear responsibility for security, operation, protection of the Work, property insurance, maintenance, heat, and utilities upon Owner's use or occupancy of the Work.
- E. After Substantial Completion the Contractor shall promptly begin work on the punch list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. In appropriate cases Contractor may submit monthly Applications for Payment for completed punch list items, following the progress payment procedures set forth above.
- F. Owner shall have the right to exclude Contractor from the Site after the date of Substantial Completion subject to allowing Contractor reasonable access to remove its property and complete or correct items on the punch list.

15.04 Partial Use or Occupancy

- A. Prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work, Owner may use or occupy any substantially completed part of the Work which has specifically been identified in the Contract Documents, or which Owner, Engineer, and Contractor agree constitutes a separately functioning and usable part of the Work that can be used by Owner for its intended purpose without significant interference with Contractor's performance of the remainder of the Work, subject to the following conditions:
 - At any time, Owner may request in writing that Contractor permit Owner to use or occupy any such part of the Work that Owner believes to be substantially complete. If and when Contractor agrees that such part of the Work is substantially complete, Contractor, Owner, and Engineer will follow the procedures of Paragraph 15.03.A through 15.03.E for that part of the Work.

- 2. At any time, Contractor may notify Owner and Engineer in writing that Contractor considers any such part of the Work substantially complete and request Engineer to issue a certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work.
- 3. Within a reasonable time after either such request, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an inspection of that part of the Work to determine its status of completion. If Engineer does not consider that part of the Work to be substantially complete, Engineer will notify Owner and Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor. If Engineer considers that part of the Work to be substantially complete, the provisions of Paragraph 15.03 will apply with respect to certification of Substantial Completion of that part of the Work and the division of responsibility in respect thereof and access thereto.
- 4. No use or occupancy or separate operation of part of the Work may occur prior to compliance with the requirements of Paragraph 6.04 regarding builder's risk or other property insurance.

15.05 Final Inspection

A. Upon written notice from Contractor that the entire Work or an agreed portion thereof is complete, Engineer will promptly make a final inspection with Owner and Contractor and will notify Contractor in writing of all particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work, or agreed portion thereof, is incomplete or defective. Contractor shall immediately take such measures as are necessary to complete such Work or remedy such deficiencies.

15.06 Final Payment

A. Application for Payment

- After Contractor has, in the opinion of Engineer, satisfactorily completed all corrections identified during the final inspection and has delivered, in accordance with the Contract Documents, all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates or other evidence of insurance, certificates of inspection, annotated record documents (as provided in Paragraph 7.12), and other documents, Contractor may make application for final payment.
- 2. The final Application for Payment must be accompanied (except as previously delivered) by:
 - a. all documentation called for in the Contract Documents;
 - b. consent of the surety, if any, to final payment;
 - c. satisfactory evidence that all title issues have been resolved such that title to all Work, materials, and equipment has passed to Owner free and clear of any Liens or other title defects, or will so pass upon final payment.
 - d. a list of all duly pending Change Proposals and Claims; and
 - e. complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to Owner) of all Lien rights arising out of the Work, and of Liens filed in connection with the Work.
- 3. In lieu of the releases or waivers of Liens specified in Paragraph 15.06.A.2 and as approved by Owner, Contractor may furnish receipts or releases in full and an affidavit of Contractor that: (a) the releases and receipts include all labor, services, material, and equipment for which a Lien could be filed; and (b) all payrolls, material and equipment

bills, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which Owner might in any way be responsible, or which might in any way result in liens or other burdens on Owner's property, have been paid or otherwise satisfied. If any Subcontractor or Supplier fails to furnish such a release or receipt in full, Contractor may furnish a bond or other collateral satisfactory to Owner to indemnify Owner against any Lien, or Owner at its option may issue joint checks payable to Contractor and specified Subcontractors and Suppliers.

- B. Engineer's Review of Final Application and Recommendation of Payment: If, on the basis of Engineer's observation of the Work during construction and final inspection, and Engineer's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation as required by the Contract Documents, Engineer is satisfied that the Work has been completed and Contractor's other obligations under the Contract have been fulfilled, Engineer will, within 10 days after receipt of the final Application for Payment, indicate in writing Engineer's recommendation of final payment and present the final Application for Payment to Owner for payment. Such recommendation will account for any set-offs against payment that are necessary in Engineer's opinion to protect Owner from loss for the reasons stated above with respect to progress payments. Otherwise, Engineer will return the Application for Payment to Contractor, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to recommend final payment, in which case Contractor shall make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application for Payment.
- C. Notice of Acceptability: In support of its recommendation of payment of the final Application for Payment, Engineer will also give written notice to Owner and Contractor that the Work is acceptable, subject to stated limitations in the notice and to the provisions of Paragraph 15.07.
- D. Completion of Work: The Work is complete (subject to surviving obligations) when it is ready for final payment as established by the Engineer's written recommendation of final payment and issuance of notice of the acceptability of the Work.
- E. Final Payment Becomes Due: Upon receipt from Engineer of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation, Owner shall set off against the amount recommended by Engineer for final payment any further sum to which Owner is entitled, including but not limited to set-offs for liquidated damages and set-offs allowed under the provisions of this Contract with respect to progress payments. Owner shall pay the resulting balance due to Contractor within 30 days of Owner's receipt of the final Application for Payment from Engineer.

15.07 Waiver of Claims

- A. By making final payment, Owner waives its claim or right to liquidated damages or other damages for late completion by Contractor, except as set forth in an outstanding Claim, appeal under the provisions of Article 17, set-off, or express reservation of rights by Owner. Owner reserves all other claims or rights after final payment.
- B. The acceptance of final payment by Contractor will constitute a waiver by Contractor of all claims and rights against Owner other than those pending matters that have been duly submitted as a Claim, or appealed under the provisions of Article 17.

15.08 Correction Period

- A. If within one year after the date of Substantial Completion (or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by the Supplementary Conditions or the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the Contract Documents), Owner gives Contractor written notice that any Work has been found to be defective, or that Contractor's repair of any damages to the Site or adjacent areas has been found to be defective, then after receipt of such notice of defect Contractor shall promptly, without cost to Owner and in accordance with Owner's written instructions:
 - 1. correct the defective repairs to the Site or such adjacent areas;
 - 2. correct such defective Work;
 - 3. remove the defective Work from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective, if the defective Work has been rejected by Owner, and
 - 4. satisfactorily correct or repair or remove and replace any damage to other Work, to the work of others, or to other land or areas resulting from the corrective measures.
- B. Owner shall give any such notice of defect within 60 days of the discovery that such Work or repairs is defective. If such notice is given within such 60 days but after the end of the correction period, the notice will be deemed a notice of defective Work under Paragraph 7.17.B.
- C. If, after receipt of a notice of defect within 60 days and within the correction period, Contractor does not promptly comply with the terms of Owner's written instructions, or in an emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, Owner may have the defective Work corrected or repaired or may have the rejected Work removed and replaced. Contractor shall pay all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such correction or repair or such removal and replacement (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others). Contractor's failure to pay such costs, losses, and damages within 10 days of invoice from Owner will be deemed the start of an event giving rise to a Claim under Paragraph 12.01.B, such that any related Claim must be brought within 30 days of the failure to pay.
- D. In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in continuous service before Substantial Completion of all the Work, the correction period for that item may start to run from an earlier date if so provided in the Specifications.
- E. Where defective Work (and damage to other Work resulting therefrom) has been corrected or removed and replaced under this paragraph, the correction period hereunder with respect to such Work will be extended for an additional period of one year after such correction or removal and replacement has been satisfactorily completed.
- F. Contractor's obligations under this paragraph are in addition to all other obligations and warranties. The provisions of this paragraph are not to be construed as a substitute for, or a waiver of, the provisions of any applicable statute of limitation or repose.

ARTICLE 16—SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION

16.01 Owner May Suspend Work

A. At any time and without cause, Owner may suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a period of not more than 90 consecutive days by written notice to Contractor and Engineer. Such notice will fix the date on which Work will be resumed. Contractor shall resume the Work on the date so fixed. Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times directly attributable to any such suspension. Any Change Proposal seeking such adjustments must be submitted no later than 30 days after the date fixed for resumption of Work.

16.02 Owner May Terminate for Cause

- A. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events will constitute a default by Contractor and justify termination for cause:
 - Contractor's persistent failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment, or failure to adhere to the Progress Schedule);
 - 2. Failure of Contractor to perform or otherwise to comply with a material term of the Contract Documents;
 - 3. Contractor's disregard of Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction; or
 - 4. Contractor's repeated disregard of the authority of Owner or Engineer.
- B. If one or more of the events identified in Paragraph 16.02.A occurs, then after giving Contractor (and any surety) 10 days' written notice that Owner is considering a declaration that Contractor is in default and termination of the Contract, Owner may proceed to:
 - 1. declare Contractor to be in default, and give Contractor (and any surety) written notice that the Contract is terminated; and
 - 2. enforce the rights available to Owner under any applicable performance bond.
- C. Subject to the terms and operation of any applicable performance bond, if Owner has terminated the Contract for cause, Owner may exclude Contractor from the Site, take possession of the Work, incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere, and complete the Work as Owner may deem expedient.
- D. Owner may not proceed with termination of the Contract under Paragraph 16.02.B if Contractor within 7 days of receipt of notice of intent to terminate begins to correct its failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure such failure.
- E. If Owner proceeds as provided in Paragraph 16.02.B, Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is completed. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds the cost to complete the Work, including all related claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals) sustained by Owner, such excess will be paid to Contractor. If the cost to complete the Work including such related claims, costs, losses, and damages exceeds such unpaid balance, Contractor shall pay the difference to Owner. Such claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred by Owner will be reviewed by Engineer as

- to their reasonableness and, when so approved by Engineer, incorporated in a Change Order. When exercising any rights or remedies under this paragraph, Owner shall not be required to obtain the lowest price for the Work performed.
- F. Where Contractor's services have been so terminated by Owner, the termination will not affect any rights or remedies of Owner against Contractor then existing or which may thereafter accrue, or any rights or remedies of Owner against Contractor or any surety under any payment bond or performance bond. Any retention or payment of money due Contractor by Owner will not release Contractor from liability.
- G. If and to the extent that Contractor has provided a performance bond under the provisions of Paragraph 6.01.A, the provisions of that bond will govern over any inconsistent provisions of Paragraphs 16.02.B and 16.02.D.

16.03 Owner May Terminate for Convenience

- A. Upon 7 days' written notice to Contractor and Engineer, Owner may, without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of Owner, terminate the Contract. In such case, Contractor shall be paid for (without duplication of any items):
 - completed and acceptable Work executed in accordance with the Contract Documents prior to the effective date of termination, including fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such Work;
 - expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing services and furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the Contract Documents in connection with uncompleted Work, plus fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such expenses; and
 - 3. other reasonable expenses directly attributable to termination, including costs incurred to prepare a termination for convenience cost proposal.
- B. Contractor shall not be paid for any loss of anticipated profits or revenue, post-termination overhead costs, or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination.

16.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate

- A. If, through no act or fault of Contractor, (1) the Work is suspended for more than 90 consecutive days by Owner or under an order of court or other public authority, or (2) Engineer fails to act on any Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or (3) Owner fails for 30 days to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, then Contractor may, upon 7 days' written notice to Owner and Engineer, and provided Owner or Engineer do not remedy such suspension or failure within that time, terminate the contract and recover from Owner payment on the same terms as provided in Paragraph 16.03.
- B. In lieu of terminating the Contract and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, if Engineer has failed to act on an Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or Owner has failed for 30 days to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, Contractor may, 7 days after written notice to Owner and Engineer, stop the Work until payment is made of all such amounts due Contractor, including interest thereon. The provisions of this paragraph are not intended to preclude Contractor from submitting a Change Proposal for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times or otherwise for expenses or damage directly attributable to Contractor's stopping the Work as permitted by this paragraph.

ARTICLE 17—FINAL RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES

17.01 *Methods and Procedures*

- A. *Disputes Subject to Final Resolution*: The following disputed matters are subject to final resolution under the provisions of this article:
 - 1. A timely appeal of an approval in part and denial in part of a Claim, or of a denial in full, pursuant to Article 12; and
 - 2. Disputes between Owner and Contractor concerning the Work, or obligations under the Contract Documents, that arise after final payment has been made.
- B. *Final Resolution of Disputes*: For any dispute subject to resolution under this article, Owner or Contractor may:
 - 1. elect in writing to invoke the dispute resolution process provided for in the Supplementary Conditions;
 - 2. agree with the other party to submit the dispute to another dispute resolution process; or
 - 3. if no dispute resolution process is provided for in the Supplementary Conditions or mutually agreed to, give written notice to the other party of the intent to submit the dispute to a court of competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 18—MISCELLANEOUS

18.01 *Giving Notice*

- A. Whenever any provision of the Contract requires the giving of written notice to Owner, Engineer, or Contractor, it will be deemed to have been validly given only if delivered:
 - 1. in person, by a commercial courier service or otherwise, to the recipient's place of business;
 - 2. by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the recipient's place of business; or
 - 3. by e-mail to the recipient, with the words "Formal Notice" or similar in the e-mail's subject line.

18.02 Computation of Times

A. When any period of time is referred to in the Contract by days, it will be computed to exclude the first and include the last day of such period. If the last day of any such period falls on a Saturday or Sunday or on a day made a legal holiday by the law of the applicable jurisdiction, such day will be omitted from the computation.

18.03 Cumulative Remedies

A. The duties and obligations imposed by these General Conditions and the rights and remedies available hereunder to the parties hereto are in addition to, and are not to be construed in any way as a limitation of, any rights and remedies available to any or all of them which are otherwise imposed or available by Laws or Regulations, by special warranty or guarantee, or by other provisions of the Contract. The provisions of this paragraph will be

as effective as if repeated specifically in the Contract Documents in connection with each particular duty, obligation, right, and remedy to which they apply.

18.04 Limitation of Damages

A. With respect to any and all Change Proposals, Claims, disputes subject to final resolution, and other matters at issue, neither Owner nor Engineer, nor any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, shall be liable to Contractor for any claims, costs, losses, or damages sustained by Contractor on or in connection with any other project or anticipated project.

18.05 No Waiver

A. A party's non-enforcement of any provision will not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor will it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Contract.

18.06 Survival of Obligations

A. All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and guarantees made in, required by, or given in accordance with the Contract, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in the Contract, will survive final payment, completion, and acceptance of the Work or termination of the Contract or of the services of Contractor.

18.07 Controlling Law

A. This Contract is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.

18.08 Assignment of Contract

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party to this Contract of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on the other party without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without limitation, money that may become due and money that is due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract.

18.09 Successors and Assigns

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.

18.10 Headings

A. Article and paragraph headings are inserted for convenience only and do not constitute parts of these General Conditions.

This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of the contemplated Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations.

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Prepared By









Endorsed By





Copyright[©] 2018

National Society of Professional Engineers 1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794 (703) 684-2882

www.nspe.org

American Council of Engineering Companies 1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005 (202) 347-7474

www.acec.org

American Society of Civil Engineers 1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400 (800) 548-2723

www.asce.org

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed above. The National Society of Professional Engineers is the Copyright Administrator for the EJCDC documents; please direct all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE.

NOTE: EJCDC publications may be purchased at www.ejcdc.org, or from any of the sponsoring organizations above.

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Article 1— Definitions and Terminology	1
Article 2— Preliminary Matters	1
Article 3— Contract Documents: Intent, Requirements, Reuse	1
Article 4— Commencement and Progress of the Work	1
Article 5— Site, Subsurface and Physical Conditions, Hazardoud Environmental Conditions	2
Article 6— Bonds and Insurance	2
Article 7— Contractor's Responsibilities	6
Article 8— Other Work at the Site	7
Article 9— Owner's Responsibilities	7
Article 10— Engineer's Status During Construction	7
Article 11— Changes to the Contract	8
Article 12— Claims	8
Article 13— Cost of Work; Allowances, Unit Price Work	8
Article 14— Tests and Inspections; Correction, Removal, or Acceptance of Defective Work	9
Article 15— Payments to Contractor, Set Offs; Completions; Correction Period	9
Article 16— Suspension of Work and Termination	10
Article 17— Final Resolutions of Disputes	10
Article 18— Miscellaneous	10
Exhibit A— Software Requirements for Electronic Document Exchange Error! Bookmark not	defined.
Exhibit B— Foreseeable Bad Weather Days Error! Bookmark not	defined.
Exhibit C— Geotechnical Baseline Report Supplement to the Supplementary Conditions Error! Bonot defined .	ookmark

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

These Supplementary Conditions amend or supplement EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract (2018). The General Conditions remain in full force and effect except as amended.

The terms used in these Supplementary Conditions have the meanings stated in the General Conditions. Additional terms used in these Supplementary Conditions have the meanings stated below, which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof.

The address system used in these Supplementary Conditions is the same as the address system used in the General Conditions, with the prefix "SC" added—for example, "Paragraph SC-4.05."

ARTICLE 1—DEFINITIONS AND TERMINOLOGY

No suggested Supplementary Conditions in this Article.

ARTICLE 2—PRELIMINARY MATTERS

- 2.01 Delivery of Bonds and Evidence of Insurance
- SC-2.01 Delete Paragraphs 2.01.B. and C. in their entirety and insert the following in their place:
 - B. Evidence of Contractor's Insurance: When Contractor delivers the signed counterparts of the Agreement to Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to Owner copies of the policies (including all endorsements, and identification of applicable self-insured retentions and deductibles) of insurance required to be provided by Contractor in this Contract. Contractor may block out (redact) any confidential premium or pricing information contained in any policy or endorsement furnished under this provision.
 - C. Evidence of Owner's Insurance: After receipt from Contractor of the signed counterparts of the Agreement and all required bonds and insurance documentation, Owner shall promptly deliver to Contractor copies of the policies of insurance to be provided by Owner in this Contract (if any). Owner may block out (redact) any confidential premium or pricing information contained in any policy or endorsement furnished under this provision.

ARTICLE 3—CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, REQUIREMENTS, REUSE

ARTICLE 4—COMMENCEMENT AND PROGRESS OF THE WORK

- 4.05 Delays in Contractor's Progress
- SC-4.05 Amend Paragraph 4.05.C by adding the following subparagraphs:
 - 5. Weather-Related Delays
 - a. If "abnormal weather conditions" as set forth in Paragraph 4.05.C.2 of the General Conditions are the basis for a request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Times, such request must be documented by data substantiating each of the

following: 1) that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time in which the delay occurred, 2) that such weather conditions could not have been reasonably anticipated, and 3) that such weather conditions had an adverse effect on the Work as scheduled.

- b. The existence of abnormal weather conditions will be determined on a month-bymonth basis in accordance with the following:
 - 1) Every workday on which one or more of the following conditions exist will be considered a "bad weather day":
 - i) Total precipitation (as rain equivalent) occurring between 7:00 p.m. on the preceding day (regardless of whether such preceding day is a workday) through 7:00 p.m. on the workday in question equals or exceeds average precipitation as rain equivalent for previous 5 years, as determined by National Weather Service.
 - Determination of actual bad weather days during performance of the Work will be based on the weather records measured and recorded by National Weather Service weather monitoring station at Brownsville, TX.
 - 3) Contractor shall anticipate the number of foreseeable bad weather days per month.
 - 4) In each month, every bad weather day exceeding the number of foreseeable bad weather days will be considered as "abnormal weather conditions." The existence of abnormal weather conditions will not relieve Contractor of the obligation to demonstrate and document that delays caused by abnormal weather are specific to the planned work activities or that such activities thus delayed were on Contractor's then-current Progress Schedule's critical path for the Project.

ARTICLE 5—SITE, SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS, HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

- SC 5.02 Remove wording from Paragraph 5.02 A.2 "or otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding."
- 5.03 Subsurface and Physical Conditions

ARTICLE 6—BONDS AND INSURANCE

- 6.01 Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds
- SC-6.01 Add the following paragraphs immediately after Paragraph 6.01.A:
 - 1. Required Performance Bond Form: The performance bond that Contractor furnishes will be in the form of EJCDC® C-610, Performance Bond (2010, 2013, or 2018 edition).
 - 2. Required Payment Bond Form: The payment bond that Contractor furnishes will be in the form of EJCDC® C-615, Payment Bond (2010, 2013, or 2018 edition).

- SC-6.01 Add the following paragraphs immediately after Paragraph 6.01.B:
 - 1. After Substantial Completion, Contractor shall furnish a warranty bond issued in the form of EJCDC® C-612, Warranty Bond (2018). The warranty bond must be in a bond amount of 15 percent of the final Contract Price.
 - 2. The warranty bond must be issued by the same surety that issues the performance bond required under Paragraph 6.01.A of the General Conditions.

6.03 Contractor's Insurance

- SC-6.03 Supplement Paragraph 6.03 with the following provisions after Paragraph 6.03.C:
 - E. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability: Contractor shall purchase and maintain workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance, including, as applicable, United States Longshoreman and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act, Jones Act, stop-gap employer's liability coverage for monopolistic states, and foreign voluntary workers' compensation (from available sources, notwithstanding the jurisdictional requirement of Paragraph 6.02.B of the General Conditions).

Workers' Compensation and Related Policies	Policy limits of not less than:
Workers' Compensation	
State	Statutory
Applicable Federal (e.g., Longshoreman's)	Statutory
Foreign voluntary workers' compensation (employer's	Statutory
responsibility coverage), if applicable	
Jones Act (if applicable)	
Bodily injury by accident—each accident	\$100,000.00
Bodily injury by disease—aggregate	\$500,000.00
Employer's Liability	
Each accident	\$100,000.00
Each employee	\$100,000.00
Policy limit	\$500,000.00
Stop-gap Liability Coverage	
For work performed in monopolistic states, stop-gap liability coverage must be endorsed to either the worker's compensation or commercial general liability policy with a minimum limit of:	\$500,000.00

- F. Commercial General Liability—Claims Covered: Contractor shall purchase and maintain commercial general liability insurance, covering all operations by or on behalf of Contractor, on an occurrence basis, against claims for:
 - 1. damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than Contractor's employees,
 - 2. damages insured by reasonably available personal injury liability coverage, and
 - 3. damages because of injury to or destruction of tangible property wherever located, including loss of use resulting therefrom.

- G. Commercial General Liability—Form and Content: Contractor's commercial liability policy must be written on a 1996 (or later) Insurance Services Organization, Inc. (ISO) commercial general liability form (occurrence form) and include the following coverages and endorsements:
 - 1. Products and completed operations coverage.
 - a. Such insurance must be maintained for three years after final payment.
 - b. Contractor shall furnish Owner and each other additional insured (as identified in the Supplementary Conditions or elsewhere in the Contract) evidence of continuation of such insurance at final payment and three years thereafter.
 - 2. Blanket contractual liability coverage, including but not limited to coverage of Contractor's contractual indemnity obligations in Paragraph 7.18.
 - 3. Severability of interests and no insured-versus-insured or cross-liability exclusions.
 - 4. Underground, explosion, and collapse coverage.
 - 5. Personal injury coverage.
 - 6. Additional insured endorsements that include both ongoing operations and products and completed operations coverage through ISO Endorsements CG 20 10 10 01 and CG 20 37 10 01 (together). If Contractor demonstrates to Owner that the specified ISO endorsements are not commercially available, then Contractor may satisfy this requirement by providing equivalent endorsements.
 - 7. For design professional additional insureds, ISO Endorsement CG 20 32 07 04 "Additional Insured—Engineers, Architects or Surveyors Not Engaged by the Named Insured" or its equivalent.
- H. Commercial General Liability—Excluded Content: The commercial general liability insurance policy, including its coverages, endorsements, and incorporated provisions, must not include any of the following:
 - 1. Any modification of the standard definition of "insured contract" (except to delete the railroad protective liability exclusion if Contractor is required to indemnify a railroad or others with respect to Work within 50 feet of railroad property).
 - 2. Any exclusion for water intrusion or water damage.
 - 3. Any provisions resulting in the erosion of insurance limits by defense costs other than those already incorporated in ISO form CG 00 01.
 - 4. Any exclusion of coverage relating to earth subsidence or movement.
 - 5. Any exclusion for the insured's vicarious liability, strict liability, or statutory liability (other than worker's compensation).
 - 6. Any limitation or exclusion based on the nature of Contractor's work.
 - 7. Any professional liability exclusion broader in effect than the most recent edition of ISO form CG 22 79.

1. Commercial General Liability—Minimum Policy Limits

Commercial General Liability	Policy limits of not less than:
General Aggregate	\$500,000.00
Products—Completed Operations Aggregate	\$100,000.00
Personal and Advertising Injury	\$250,000.00
Bodily Injury and Property Damage—Each Occurrence	\$500,000.00

J. Automobile Liability: Contractor shall purchase and maintain automobile liability insurance for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of any motor vehicle. The automobile liability policy must be written on an occurrence basis.

Automobile Liability	Policy limits of not less than:
Bodily Injury	iess triair.
• • •	1
Each Person	\$100,000.00
Each Accident	\$500,000.00
Property Damage	
Each Accident	\$100,000.00
[or]	
Combined Single Limit	
Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage)	\$500,000.00

K. *Umbrella or Excess Liability:* Contractor shall purchase and maintain umbrella or excess liability insurance written over the underlying employer's liability, commercial general liability, and automobile liability insurance described in the Paragraphs above. The coverage afforded must be at least as broad as that of each and every one of the underlying policies.

Excess or Umbrella Liability	Policy limits of not less than:
Each Occurrence	\$250,000.00
General Aggregate	\$500,000.00

- L. Using Umbrella or Excess Liability Insurance to Meet CGL and Other Policy Limit Requirements: Contractor may meet the policy limits specified for employer's liability, commercial general liability, and automobile liability through the primary policies alone, or through combinations of the primary insurance policy's policy limits and partial attribution of the policy limits of an umbrella or excess liability policy that is at least as broad in coverage as that of the underlying policy, as specified herein. If such umbrella or excess liability policy was required under this Contract, at a specified minimum policy limit, such umbrella or excess policy must retain a minimum limit of \$500,000.00 after accounting for partial attribution of its limits to underlying policies, as allowed above.
- M. *Contractor's Pollution Liability Insurance:* Contractor shall purchase and maintain a policy covering third-party injury and property damage, including cleanup costs, as a result of

pollution conditions arising from Contractor's operations and completed operations. This insurance must be maintained for no less than three years after final completion.

Contractor's Pollution Liability	Policy limits of not less than:
Each Occurrence/Claim	\$100,000.00
General Aggregate	\$100,000.00

N. Contractor's Professional Liability Insurance: If Contractor will provide or furnish professional services under this Contract, through a delegation of professional design services or otherwise, then Contractor shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining applicable professional liability insurance. This insurance must cover negligent acts, errors, or omissions in the performance of professional design or related services by the insured or others for whom the insured is legally liable. The insurance must be maintained throughout the duration of the Contract and for a minimum of two years after Substantial Completion. The retroactive date on the policy must pre-date the commencement of furnishing services on the Project.

Contractor's Professional Liability	Policy limits of not less than:
Each Claim	\$500,000.00
Annual Aggregate	\$1,000,000.00

ARTICLE 7—CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- 7.03 Labor; Working Hours
- SC-7.03 Add the following new subparagraphs immediately after Paragraph 7.03.C:
 - 1. Regular working hours will be Monday-Friday 8:00 am to 5:00 pm.
 - 2. Owner's legal holidays are Federal recognized holidays.
- SC-7.03 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 7.03.C:
 - D. Contractor shall be responsible for the cost of any overtime pay or other expense incurred by the Owner for Engineer's services (including those of the Resident Project Representative, if any), Owner's representative, and construction observation services, occasioned by the performance of Work on Saturday, Sunday, any legal holiday, or as overtime on any regular work day. If Contractor is responsible but does not pay, or if the parties are unable to agree as to the amount owed, then Owner may impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15.
- 7.13 Safety and Protection
- SC-7.13 Insert the following at the end of the last sentence of Paragraph 7.13.F:
 - "with at least a 48-hour notice."
- SC-7.18 Delete the following from Paragraph 7.18.A:
 - "or arbitration"

ARTICLE 8—OTHER WORK AT THE SITE

8.03 Legal Relationships

SC-8.03 Delete the following from Paragraph 8.03.C:

"or otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding"

ARTICLE 9—OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

ARTICLE 10—ENGINEER'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION

10.03 Resident Project Representative

SC-10.03 Add the following new paragraphs immediately after Paragraph 10.03.B:

- C. The Resident Project Representative (RPR) will be Engineer's representative at the Site. RPR's dealings in matters pertaining to the Work in general will be with Engineer and Contractor. RPR's dealings with Subcontractors will only be through or with the full knowledge or approval of Contractor. The RPR will:
 - Conferences and Meetings: Attend meetings with Contractor, such as preconstruction conferences, progress meetings, job conferences, and other Project-related meetings (but not including Contractor's safety meetings), and as appropriate prepare and circulate copies of minutes thereof.
 - 2. Safety Compliance: Comply with Site safety programs, as they apply to RPR, and if required to do so by such safety programs, receive safety training specifically related to RPR's own personal safety while at the Site.

3. Liaison

- a. Serve as Engineer's liaison with Contractor. Working principally through Contractor's authorized representative or designee, assist in providing information regarding the provisions and intent of the Contract Documents.
- b. Assist Engineer in serving as Owner's liaison with Contractor when Contractor's operations affect Owner's on-Site operations.
- c. Assist in obtaining from Owner additional details or information, when required for Contractor's proper execution of the Work.

4. Review of Work: Defective Work

- a. Conduct on-Site observations of the Work to assist Engineer in determining, to the extent set forth in Paragraph 10.02, if the Work is in general proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- b. Observe whether any Work in place appears to be defective.
- c. Observe whether any Work in place should be uncovered for observation, or requires special testing, inspection or approval.

5. Inspections and Tests

- a. Observe Contractor-arranged inspections required by Laws and Regulations, including but not limited to those performed by public or other agencies having jurisdiction over the Work.
- b. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having jurisdiction over the Work.
- 6. *Payment Requests:* Review Applications for Payment with Contractor.

7. Completion

- a. Participate in Engineer's visits regarding Substantial Completion.
- b. Assist in the preparation of a punch list of items to be completed or corrected.
- c. Participate in Engineer's visit to the Site in the company of Owner and Contractor regarding completion of the Work, and prepare a final punch list of items to be completed or corrected by Contractor.
- d. Observe whether items on the final punch list have been completed or corrected.

D. The RPR will not:

- 1. Authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of materials or equipment (including "or-equal" items).
- 2. Exceed limitations of Engineer's authority as set forth in the Contract Documents.
- 3. Undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, Subcontractors, or Suppliers.
- 4. Advise on, issue directions relative to, or assume control over any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction.
- Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over security or safety practices, precautions, and programs in connection with the activities or operations of Owner or Contractor.
- 6. Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted off-site by others except as specifically authorized by Engineer.
- 7. Authorize Owner to occupy the Project in whole or in part.

ARTICLE 11—CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT

No suggested Supplementary Conditions in this Article.

ARTICLE 12—CLAIMS

No suggested Supplementary Conditions in this Article.

ARTICLE 13—COST OF WORK; ALLOWANCES, UNIT PRICE WORK

13.01 *Cost of the Work*

SC-13.01 Supplement Paragraph 13.01.B.5.c.(2) by adding the following sentence:

The equipment rental rate book that governs the included costs for the rental of machinery and equipment owned by Contractor (or a related entity) under the Cost of the Work provisions of this Contract is the most current edition of **Rental Rate Blue Book for Construction Equipment**.

13.03 Unit Price Work

SC-13.03 Delete Paragraph 13.03.E in its entirety and insert the following in its place:

- E. Adjustments in Unit Price
 - 1. Contractor or Owner shall be entitled to an adjustment in the unit price with respect to an item of Unit Price Work if:
 - a. the extended price of a particular item of Unit Price Work amounts to 5 percent or more of the Contract Price (based on estimated quantities at the time of Contract formation) and the variation in the quantity of that particular item of Unit Price Work actually furnished or performed by Contractor differs by more than 15 percent from the estimated quantity of such item indicated in the Agreement; and
 - b. Contractor's unit costs to perform the item of Unit Price Work have changed materially and significantly as a result of the quantity change.
 - 2. The adjustment in unit price will account for and be coordinated with any related changes in quantities of other items of Work, and in Contractor's costs to perform such other Work, such that the resulting overall change in Contract Price is equitable to Owner and Contractor.
 - 3. Adjusted unit prices will apply to all units of that item.

ARTICLE 14—TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL, OR ACCCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK

No suggested Supplementary Conditions in this Article.

ARTICLE 15—PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR, SET OFFS; COMPLETIONS; CORRECTION PERIOD

15.03 Substantial Completion

SC-15.03 Add the following new subparagraph to Paragraph 15.03.B:

1. If some or all of the Work has been determined not to be at a point of Substantial Completion and will require re-inspection or re-testing by Engineer, the cost of such re-inspection or re-testing, including the cost of time, travel and living expenses, will be paid by Contractor to Owner. If Contractor does not pay, or the parties are unable to agree as to the amount owed, then Owner may impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under this Article 15.

ARTICLE 16—SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION

No suggested Supplementary Conditions in this Article.

ARTICLE 17—FINAL RESOLUTIONS OF DISPUTES

SC-17.02 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 17.01.

17.02 Arbitration

A. Arbitration as a dispute resolution is deleted in its entirety in the contract, general and supplementary conditions.

ARTICLE 18—MISCELLANEOUS

CITY OF EDINBURG WAGE RATES

Document 00811

FEDERAL WAGE RATE DECISION

- 1.01 In accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act (Public Law No. 403, 7th Congress), the public body awarding this Contract does hereby specify the following to be assigned minimum wage rates which will be paid by the Contractor and all Subcontractors for this Project.
- 1.02 This prevailing wage rate does not prohibit the payment of more than the rates stated.
- 1.03 The wage scale for (Specify type of work).

Note to Specifier: Davis-Bacon Wage Rates can be found at http://www.wdol.gov/dba.aspx. Use the Wage Rates for Hidalgo County. Select the WD Determination that is appropriate for the Project Copy the Wage Rate directly from the DOL website to this Section.



CITY OF EDINBURG WAGE RATES

Page Intentionally Blank



SECTION 00830

WARRANTY

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

This section describes the warranty. The conditions contained in this Section are specific administrative and policy requirements in addition to the general conditions and other requirements listed in the contract documents.

- 1.02 REFERENCES Not Used
- 1.03 DEFINITIONS Section 0700

1.04 CONTRACTOR'S WARRANTY OF TITLE

CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees that all Work, materials, and equipment covered by any Application for Payment, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will pass to OWNER no later than the time of payment free and clear of all Liens.

1.05 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

- A. When CONTRACTOR considers the entire Work ready for its intended use CONTRACTOR shall notify OWNER and ENGINEER in writing that the entire Work is substantially complete (except for items specifically listed by CONTRACTOR as incomplete) and request that ENGINEER issue a certificate of Substantial Completion. Promptly thereafter, OWNER, CONTRACTOR, and ENGINEER shall make an inspection of the Work to determine the status of completion. If ENGINEER does not consider the Work substantially complete, ENGINEER will notify CONTRACTOR in writing giving the reasons therefore. If ENGINEER considers the Work substantially complete, ENGINEER will prepare and deliver to OWNER a tentative certificate of Substantial Completion which shall fix the date of Substantial Completion. There shall be attached to the certificate a tentative list of items to be completed or corrected before final payment. OWNER shall have seven days after receipt of the tentative certificate during which to make written objection to ENGINEER as to any provisions of the certificate or attached list. If, after considering such objections, ENGINEER concludes that the Work is not substantially complete, ENGINEER will within 14 days after submission of the tentative certificate to OWNER notify CONTRACTOR in writing, stating the reasons therefore. If, after consideration of OWNER's objections, ENGINEER considers the Work substantially complete, ENGINEER will within said 14 days execute and deliver to OWNER and CONTRACTOR a definitive certificate of Substantial Completion (with a revised tentative list of items to be completed or corrected) reflecting such changes from the tentative certificate as ENGINEER believes justified after consideration of any objections from OWNER. At the time of delivery of the tentative certificate of Substantial Completion ENGINEER will deliver to OWNER and CONTRACTOR a written recommendation as to division of responsibilities pending final payment between OWNER and CONTRACTOR with respect to security, operation, safety, and protection of the Work, maintenance, heat, utilities, insurance, and warranties and guarantees. Unless OWNER and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing and so inform ENGINEER in writing prior to ENGINEER's issuing the definitive certificate of Substantial Completion, ENGINEER's aforesaid recommendation will be binding on OWNER and CONTRACTOR until final payment.
- B. OWNER shall have the right to exclude CONTRACTOR from the Site after the date of Substantial Completion, but OWNER shall allow CONTRACTOR reasonable access to complete or correct items on the tentative list.



1.06 PARTIAL UTILIZATION

A. Use by OWNER at OWNER's option of any substantially completed part of the Work which has specifically been identified in the Contract Documents, or which OWNER, ENGINEER, and CONTRACTOR agree constitutes a separately functioning and usable part of the Work that can be used by OWNER for its intended purpose without significant interference with CONTRACTOR's performance of the remainder of the Work, may be accomplished prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work subject to the following conditions.

B. OWNER at any time may request CONTRACTOR in writing to permit OWNER to use any such part of the Work which OWNER believes to be ready for its intended use and substantially complete. If CONTRACTOR agrees that such part of the Work is substantially complete, CON-TRACTOR will certify to OWNER and ENGINEER that such part of the Work is substantially complete and request ENGINEER to issue a certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work. CONTRACTOR at any time may notify OWNER and ENGINEER in writing that CONTRACTOR considers any such part of the Work ready for its intended use and substantially complete and request ENGINEER to issue a certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work. Within a reasonable time after either such request, OWNER, CONTRACTOR, and ENGINEER shall make an inspection of that part of the Work to determine its status of completion. If ENGINEER does not consider that part of the Work to be substantially complete, ENGINEER will notify OWNER and CONTRACTOR in writing giving the reasons therefore. If ENGINEER considers that part of the Work to be substantially complete, the above provisions will apply with respect to certification of Substantial Completion of that part of the Work and the division of responsibility in respect thereof and access thereto. No occupancy or separate operation of part of the Work may occur prior to compliance with the requirement of regarding property insurance.

1.07 FINAL INSPECTION

A. Upon written notice from CONTRACTOR that the entire Work or an agreed portion thereof is complete, ENGINEER will promptly make a final inspection with OWNER and CONTRACTOR and will notify CONTRACTOR in writing of all particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work is incomplete or defective. CONTRACTOR shall immediately take such measures as are necessary to complete such Work or remedy such deficiencies.

1.08 FINAL PAYMENT

A. Application for Payment

- After CONTRACTOR has, in the opinion of ENGINEER, satisfactorily completed all
 corrections identified during the final inspection and has delivered, in accordance with the
 Contract Documents, all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees,
 Bonds, certificates or other evidence of insurance certificates of inspection, marked-up
 record documents (as provided in paragraph 6.12), and other documents, CONTRACTOR may make application for final payment following the procedure for progress payments.
- 2. The final Application for Payment shall be accompanied (except as previously delivered) by: (i) all documentation called for in the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the evidence of insurance required; (ii) consent of the surety, if any, to final payment; and (iii) complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to OWNER) of all Lien rights arising out of or Liens filed in connection with the Work.
- 3. In lieu of the releases or waivers of Liens specified above and as approved by OWNER,



CONTRACTOR may furnish receipts or releases in full and an affidavit of CONTRACTOR that: (i) the releases and receipts include all labor, services, material, and equipment for which a Lien could be filed; and (ii) all payrolls, material and equipment bills, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which OWNER or OWNER's property might in any way be responsible have been paid or otherwise satisfied. If any Subcontractor or Supplier fails to furnish such a release or receipt in full, CONTRACTOR may furnish a Bond or other collateral satisfactory to OWNER to indemnify OWNER against any Lien.

B. Review of Application and Acceptance

If, on the basis of ENGINEER's observation of the Work during construction and final inspection, and ENGINEER's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation as required by the Contract Documents, ENGINEER is satisfied that the Work has been completed and CONTRACTOR's other obligations under the Contract Documents have been fulfilled, ENGINEER will, within ten days after receipt of the final Application for Payment, indicate in writing ENGINEER's recommendation of payment and present the Application for Payment to OWNER for payment. At the same time ENGINEER will also give written notice to OWNER and CONTRACTOR that the Work is acceptable subject to the above provisions. Otherwise, ENGINEER will return the Application for Payment to CONTRACTOR, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to recommend final payment, in which case CONTRACTOR shall make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application for Payment.

C. Payment Becomes Due

Thirty days after the presentation to OWNER of the Application for Payment and accompanying documentation, the amount recommended by ENGINEER will become due and, when due, will be paid by OWNER to CONTRACTOR.

D. Final Completion Delayed

If, through no fault of CONTRACTOR, final completion of the Work is significantly delayed, and if ENGINEER so confirms, OWNER shall, upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's final Application for Payment and recommendation of ENGINEER, and without terminating the Agreement, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance to be held by OWNER for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than the retainage stipulated in the Agreement, and if Bonds have been furnished as required above, the written consent of the surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by CONTRACTOR to ENGINEER with the Application for such payment. Such payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of Claims.

1.09 WAIVER OF CLAIMS

- A. The making and acceptance of final payment will constitute:
 - a waiver of all Claims by OWNER against CONTRACTOR, except Claims arising from unsettled Liens, from defective Work appearing after final inspection pursuant to the above, from failure to comply with the Contract Documents or the terms of any special guarantees specified therein, or from CONTRACTOR's continuing obligations under the Contract Documents; and
 - 2. a waiver of all Claims by CONTRACTOR against OWNER other than those previously made in writing which are still unsettled.



END OF SECTION



Document 00900

ADDENDUM NO._____ (Sample Form)

Date of Addendum:[Enter date]	_
PROJECT NAME: Trenton Rd at Professional Dr Signal Construction	
PROJECT NO: <u>RFP- 2020 -04</u>	
BID DATE: <u>January 20, 2020</u> Date.)	. (There is no change to the Bid
FROM: City of Edinburg Att: Lorena Fuentes, Purchasing Agent 415 W. University Drive Edinburg, Texas 78539 Phone: (956) 388-1895	
TO: Prospective Bidders	
This Addendum forms a part of the Bidding Documents and will be incorp Documents, as applicable. Insofar as the original Project Manual and Dra Addendum governs. Acknowledge receipt of the Addendum by inserting 00310 - Form of Proposal. FAILURE TO DO SO MAY SUBJECT BIDDE DISQUALIFICATION.	awings are inconsistent, this its number in Document
******************	******
Use the following heading and select the appropriate wording for postponstatement beside Bid Date above which indicates that the Bid Date is unconsulated as separate addendum. Delete this section entirely if there is no characteristics.	changed. If change in Bid Date, nange in Bid Date.
CHANGE IN BID DATE	
The bid date for this Project has been changed from[Date] Time of day and place for submittal of bid remains the same]. [Time of s romto The place for submittal remain [Time]	_to [Date] submittal has been changed s the same].
[OR]	
The bid date for this project has been indefinitely postponed. Another Ad bid date or to cancel bidding on this Project.	dendum will be issued to reset the
************************************	*******
Delete the following paragraph if the sole purpose of the Addendum	is to postpone the Bid Date.





This Addendum uses the change page method: remove and replace or add pages, or Drawing sheets, as

directed in the change instructions below. Change bars (|) are provided in the right margins of pages from the Project Manual to indicate where changes have been made; no change bars are provided in added Sections. Reissued Drawing Sheets show the Addendum number above the title block and changes in the Drawing are noted by a revision mark. Number each item of the Addendum beginning with 1 through the total number of change items in the Addendum. Sample entries are provided in brackets. **CHANGES TO PREVIOUS ADDENDA** Reference Addendum Number and item number to correct clarifications or make minor corrections of changes issued by previous Addenda. ADDENDUM NO._____ [1. Add item] **CHANGES TO PROJECT MANUAL** Follow this format to sequence changes to the Project Manual. **BIDDING REQUIREMENTS** Give the individual change instructions for each item of change by Document number and title. List changes in order of Document number. [2. Add Item] CONTRACT FORMS [3. Add Item] **CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT** [4. Add Item] **SPECIFICATIONS** [5. Add Item] **CHANGES TO DRAWINGS**



CITY OF EDINBURG

[6. Add Item]

CLARIFICATIONS

[7. Add Item]

Minutes of the Pre-Bid Conference held on,,	Э
attached as a record and for the Bidders information.	
END OF ADDENDUM NO	
DATED:Name, P.E.	

END OF DOCUMENT

Page Intentionally Blank



CITY OF EDINBURG MODIFICATIONS

DOCUMENT 00910

MODIFICATIONS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

This section contains information pertaining to modifications and changes for the Contract Documents for the Project.

- 1.02 REFERENCES Not Used
- 1.03 DEFINTIONS Section 0700

1.04 MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- A. The Contract Documents may be amended to provide for additions, deletions, and revisions in the Work or to modify the terms and conditions thereof in one or more of the following ways: (i) a Written Amendment; (ii) a Change Order; or (iii) a Work Change Directive.
- B. The requirements of the Contract Documents may be supplemented and minor variations and deviations in the Work may be authorized, by one or more of the following ways: (i) a Field Order; (ii) Engineer's approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample; or (iii) Engineer's written interpretation or clarification.
- C. Contractor and any Subcontractor or Supplier or other individual or entity performing or furnishing any of the Work under a direct or indirect contract with Owner: (i) shall not have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Drawings, Specifications, or other documents (or copies of any thereof) prepared by or bearing the seal of Engineer or Engineer's Consultant, including electronic media editions; and (ii) shall not reuse any of such Drawings, Specifications, other documents, or copies thereof on extensions of the Project or any other project without written consent of Owner and Engineer and specific written verification or adoption by Engineer. This prohibition will survive final payment, completion, and acceptance of the Work, or termination or completion of the Contract. Nothing herein shall preclude Contractor from retaining copies of the Contract Documents for record purposes.
- PART 2 PRODUCT Not Used
- PART 3 EXECUTION Not Used

END OF SECTION



CITY OF EDINBURG MODIFICATIONS

Page Intentionally Blank



CITY OF EDINBURG SPECIFICATIONS

I. STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

Download

Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT)
Standard Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of Highways, Streets, and Bridges
November 1, 2014

at:

https://www.txdot.gov/business/resources/txdot-specifications.html

ftp://ftp.dot.state.tx.us/pub/txdot-info/des/spec-book-1114.pdf

II. SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Download

Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) 2014 Special Provisions (All)

at:

https://www.txdot.gov/business/resources/txdot-specifications.html

http://www.dot.state.tx.us/apps-cg/specs/toc.asp?year=4&type=SP&list=all



CITY OF EDINBURG SPECIFICATIONS

III. CITY OF EDINBURG CONSTRUCTION SIGN







Working for You!



Project Name: Trenton Road at Professional Drive Signal

Improvements: Traffic

Start Date: 01-13-20

Project End Date: 11-08-20

Mayor Richard Molina

Mayor Pro Tem - Gilbert Enriquez Councilmember Place 1 - Jorge Salinas Councilmember Place 3 - Johnny Garcia Councilmember Place 4 - David White Interm City Manager - Richard Hinojosa

CITY OF EDINBURG SPECIFICATIONS

END OF DOCUMENT



CITY OF EDINBURG SPECIFICATIONS

Page Intentionally Blank

